
NUAL REPORT

s__



nd



FELLOW SHAREHOLDERS

In 2009 NCI survived the deepest decline in nonresidential construction in the 44 years since

McGraw-Hill has been compiling data and we have emerged with the greatest financial

flexibility in our history as public company There is no question that we paid high price in

order to save the Company and put it on sound financial footing but we have attained much

more than strong balance sheet We now have the structure to withstand the continued

weakness projected for our markets the resources to look for new opportunities and the

ability to respond quickly when the market does rebound As result we are confident in

our ability to significantly rebuild the value of the Company over the next several years and

committed to making that happen

During this past year we were faced with extremely difficult business conditions which were due in large part

to the unprecedented reduction in demand for new construction According to recent McGraw-HiD statistics

nonresidential construction activity measured in square feet is projected to have declined as much as 42% for

calendar year 2009 compared to 2008 levels In particular the commercial and industrial subset of the industry

which traditionally has been our strongest sector is estimated to have declined 54% At the same time steel

prices which account for approximately 54% of our revenues increased by an incredible 82% during fiscal 2008

only to plunge by 58% by June 2009

Within this adverse macroeconomic environment we took progressive actions to reduce infrastructure costs

curtail capital spending and align our resources to optimize business capture and reflect prevailing demand levels

We did our best to maximize revenue Our people are excellent at pursuing business in those markets that

remained relatively resilient in this downturn including subsets of the institutional markets which involve

government-funded work like schools healthcare facilities and military installations the heavy industrial

market and the agricultural market We introduced new products and expanded our geographic reach

At the same time we significantly reduced our costs By leveraging our ongoing investments in technical

systems and automation we were able to close 25% of our manufacturing plants and reduce our workforce

by nearly 40% without sacrificing quality delivery times or customer service These and related initiatives

resulted in $560 million annualized reduction in direct variable costs and $120 million reduction in fixed

costs

We also streamlined and reconfigured our internal structure in order to better align our resources with current

market conditions This involved flattening our sales organization to bring senior sales people closer to the

customer and supporting each of our brands so they can compete most effectively with our competitors

Of course the success of these initiatives could not offset the overarching impact of the economic downturn

which severely curtailed business activity in our markets Our annual revenues for fiscal 2009 declined 45.1% to

$967.9 million and we incurred major losses for the year comprised mostly of non-cash charges Our actions

did however enable us to report positive operating cash flow in each of the four quarters of fiscal 2009 and we

succeeded in reporting adjusted positive operating income exclusive of special charges for the last half of the

fiscal year

This time last year we had hoped to be able to refinance our debt structure as capital market conditions

improved Unfortunately unprecedented bank lending restrictions collapsing economy and the joint freefall of

nonresidential construction and steel prices converged with our impending debt maturities This forced us to take

immediate action to ensure survival Fortunately we completed complex recapitalization in October of 2009 that



gives us the resources to both ride out the economic downturn as well as to re-start our growth strategy The

recapitalization involved

cash equity investment of $250 million by Clayton Dubilier Rice highly respected private equity firm

The reduction of our outstanding debt from $474 million to $150 million with four and half year extension

of maturity and

The placement of four and half year $125 million asset based lending facility that remains undrawn

As result NCI entered fiscal 2010 with strong financial position Our net cash position at fiscal 2009 year-end

was $90 million exclusive of an additional $13 million in restricted cash our outstanding debt has been reduced to

$150 million and we have the additional $125 million asset based lending facility noted above

Having completed the recapitalization our five-year goal is to surpass the $200 million in adjusted EBITDA that we

generated in 2008which would mean about four and half times more than the $45 million in adjusted EBITDA

we produced in fiscal 2009

Achieving this objective will not be easy given that there remains uncertainty regarding the economic recovery

For calendar year 2010 McGraw-Hill is currently forecasting further 4% decline in the volume of nonresidential

activity before recovery in nonresidential construction in 2011 and beyond

Despite these challenges we have excellent organic growth opportunities

Our Coaters group is gaining third-party sales because of the substantial production efficiencies they have

achieved and the fact that several of their competitors have closed paint lines

Our Components group is enjoying growth from the investments we made in insulated metal panels

benefiting their IPS and Eco-ficientTM brands re-roofing initiatives and new paint formulas that provide

wider selection of cool color options for our customers

Our Buildings group is poised to gain market share in the short term from financially weakened regional

competitors and the recognized staying power that we now enjoy We are able to support our extensive

builder network with very competitive pricing due to our hub-and-spoke delivery system shorter design and

delivery times and sustainable building products available in support of our green initiative

And while our EBITDA growth objective does not rely on acquisitions we will be disciplined and attentive to

potential accretive opportunities

As part of our recapitalization and new shareholder structure our Board of Directors has been reconfigured

would like to thank those directors who left our Board effective October 20 2009 Bernard Pieper William

Breedlove Philip Hawk Max Lukens Ed Phipps Larry Edwards and John Sterling for their service

and support Gary Forbes and George Martinez will remain on the board with me and join me in welcoming our

new directors James Berges Nathan Sleeper Lawrence Kremer Kathleen Affeldt Jonathan Zrebiec

and John Holland We look forward to benefiting from their financial management and operating expertise as

we move forward with the successful implementation of our five-year goal

Fiscal 2009 has been the toughest of times for our entire industry We sincerely appreciate the cooperation and

loyalty of our builders customers employees and suppliers We are committed to executing effectively on long

term strategy that will benefit all of our stakeholders

Sincerely

Norman Chambers

Chairman President and Chief Executive Officer
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FORWARD LOOKING STATEMENTS

This Annual Report includes statements concerning our expectations beliefs plans objectives goals

strategies future events or performance and underlying assumptions and other statements that are not historical

facts These statements are forward-looking statements within the meaning of the Private Securities

Litigation Reform Act of 1995 Actual results may differ materially from those expressed or implied by these

statements In some cases our forward-looking statements can be identified by the words anticipate

believe continue could estimate expect forecast goal intend may objective plan
potential predict projection should will or other similar words We have based our forward-

looking statements on our managements beliefs and assumptions based on information available to our

management at the time the statements are made We caution you that assumptions beliefs expectations

intentions and projections about future events may and often do vary materially from actual results Therefore

we cannot assure you that actual results will not differ materially from those expressed or implied by our

forward-looking statements Accordingly investors are cautioned not to place undue reliance on any forward-

looking information including any earnings guidance Although we believe that the expectations reflected in

the forward-looking statements are reasonable these expectations and the related statements are subject to

risks uncertainties and other factors that could cause the actual results to differ materially from those

projected These risks uncertainties and other factors include hut are not limited to

industry cyclicalitv and seasonality and adverse weather conditions

general economic conditions affecting the construction industry

the current financial crisis and U.S recession

current challenges in the credit market

ability to service or refinance our debt and obtain future financing

the Companys ahilits to comply with the financial tests and covenants in its existing and future debt

obligations

operational limitations in connection with our debt

the current economic and credit conditions are severely affecting its operations

recognition of asset impairment charges

raw material pricing and supply

retention and replacement of key personnel

enforcement and obsolescence of intellectual property rights

fluctuations in customer demand and other patterns

environmental cleanups investigations claims and liabilities

competitie activity and pricing pressure

the volatility of the Companys stock price

the ability to make strategic acquisitions accretive to earnings

the substantial rights seniority and potentially dilutive effect on our common stockholders of the

convertible preferred stock issued to investment funds affiliated with Clayton Duhilier Rice LLC

increases in energy costs

breaches of our information security system security measures

haiards that may cause personal injury or property damage thereby subjecting us to liabilities and

possible losses which may not be covered by insurance
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PART

Item Business

General

NCI Building Systems Inc together with its subsidiaries and predecessors unless the context requires

otherwise the Company we us or our is leading North American integrated manufacturer and

supplier of metal coil coating services metal building components and engineered metal buildings systems Of

the $169 billion non-residential construction industry we primarily serve the low-rise non-residential construc

tion market five stories or less which according to FW Dodge/McGraw-Hill represents approximately 91%

of the total non-residential construction industry Our broad range of products is used in repair retrofit and

new construction activities primarily in North America

We provide metal coil coating services for commercial and construction applications servicing both

internal and external customers We design engineer manufacture and market what we believe is one of the

most comprehensive lines of metal components and engineered building systems in the industry with

reputation for high quality and superior engineering and design We go to market with well-recognized brands

which allow us to compete effectively within broad range of end-user markets including industrial

commercial institutional and agricultural Our service versatility allows us to support the varying needs of our

diverse customer base which includes general contractors and sub-contractors developers manufacturers

distributors and network of over 5700 authorized builders across North America

We are comprised of family of companies operating 32 manufacturing facilities across the United States

and Mexico with additional sales and distribution offices throughout the United States and Canada Our broad

geographic footprint along with our hub-and-spoke distribution system allows us to efficiently supply broad

range of customers with high quality customer service and reliable deliveries

The Company was founded in 1984 and reincorporated in Delaware in 1991 In 1998 we acquired Metal

Building Components Inc MBCI and doubled our revenue base With the acquisition we became the

largest domestic manufacturer of non-residential metal components In 2006 we acquired Robertson-Ceco II

Corporation RCC which operates the Ceco Building Systems Star Building Systems and Robertson

Building Systems divisions and is leader in the metal buildings industry The RCC acquisition created an

organization with greater product and geographic diversification stronger customer base and more

extensive distribution network than either company had separately

The overall decline in economic conditions beginning in the third quarter of 2008 has reduced demand

for our products and adversely affected our business In addition the tightening of credit in financial markets

over the same period has adversely affected the ability of our customers to obtain financing for construction

projects As result we have experienced decreases in and cancellations of orders for our products and the

ability of our customers to make payments has been adversely affected Similar factors could cause our

suppliers to experience financial distress or bankruptcy resulting in temporary raw material shortages The

lack of credit also adversely affects non-residential construction which is the focus of our business

Over the same period there has been significant volatility in the price of steel the primary raw material

in our production process In fiscal 2009 steel prices decreased at precipitous rate until July 2009 when steel

prices began to increase According to the CRU North American Steel Price Index steel prices were 36%

lower in October 2009 compared with October 2008 This unusual level of volatility has negatively impacted

our business First in the first two quarters of fiscal 2009 we wrote down inventory to net realizable value

given these declines because our sales volume was significantly lower than previously anticipated while raw

material prices have declined more rapidly than anticipated Second some customers have delayed projects

waiting to see where steel prices would bottom out

The uncertainty surrounding future economic activity levels and the tightening of credit availability has

resulted in significantly decreased activity levels for our business During fiscal 2009 our sales volumes were

significantly below our expectations primarily in our engineered buildings and components segments See

Liquidity and Capital Resources Debt When we began fiscal 2009 McGraw-Hill was predicting 12%



decline in nonresidential construction in 2009 compared to 2008 Subsequently McGrawHill revised its

forecast further downward and as of October 2009 was predicting 42% sqLlaretootage decline in nOll

residential construction activity in 2009 compared to 2008 McGrawHill has also reported 42.2% reduction

in lowrise nonresidential less than stories squarefootage starts during fiscal 2009 compared with fiscal

2008

As result of the current market downturn we began phased process to resize and realign our

manufacturing operations The purpose of these closures is to rationalize our least efficient facilities and to

retool certain of these facilities to allow us to better utilize our assets and expand into new markets or better

provide products to our customers such as insulated panel systems As result of the restructuring we expect

to realize an annualized fixed cost savings in the amount of approximately $1 20 million upon full

implementation of this three phase restructuring plan

En November 2008 we approved the Phase plan to close three of our engineered building systems

manufacturing plants In addition as part of the restructuring we implemented general employee reduction

program Specifically one of our facilities which was closed during fiscal 2008 is being retooled for use in

connection with our insulated panel systems product line We have incurred facility closure costs of

approximately $3.4 million related to these Phase facility closures Most of these expenses were recorded

during the first and second quarters of fiscal 2009 We expect only minor acklitional costs as we wind down

Phase of our restructuring plan

In February 2009 we approved the Phase II plan to close one of our facilities within the engineered

building systems segment in continuing effort to rationalize our least efficient facilities We have incurred

facility closure costs of $0.9 million related to this facility Most of these expenses were recorded during the

second quarter of fiscal 2009 We expect only minor additional costs as we wind down Phase II of our

restructuring plan

In April 2009 we approved the Phase HI plan to close or idle three of our manufacturing facilities within

the engineered building systems segment and two facilities within the metal components segment in

continuing effort to rationalize our least efficient facilities In addition manufacturing at one of our metal

components facilities was temporarily suspended and currently functions as distribution and customer service

site As part of the restructuring we also added to the general employee reduction program We have incurred

facility closure costs of approximately $7.0 million related to these Phase III facility closures and expect to

incur additional facility closure costs of $1.6 million in liscal 2010

As result of the management actions taken in the Rccapitalization Plan and restructuring plan we have

right sized our cost structure and solidihed our liquidity position which we believe will enable us to withstand

sustained downturn in our industry

On October 20 2009 we completed financial restructuring that resulted in change of control of the

Company As part of the restructuring Clayton Duhilier Rice Fund VIII L.P and CDR Friends Family

Fund Viii L.P together the CDR Funds investment funds managed by Clayton Dubilier Rice LJ...C

purchased an aggregate of 250000 shares of newly created class of our convertible referred stock par
value

$1 .00 per share designated the Series Cumulative Convertible Participating Preferred Stock the Convert

ible Prehrred Stock and shares thereof the Preferred Shares representing approximately 68.4% of the

voting power and common stock of the Company on an asconverted basis the Equity Investment In

connection with the closing of the Equity Investnient among other things

we consummated an exchange oIler the Exchange Offer to acquire all of our existing $180 million

aggregate principal amount 2.12S% Convertible Senior Subordinated Notes due 2024 in exchange for

combination of $90.0 mil lion in cash and 70.2 11111 lion shares of common stock

we refinanced our existing term loan by repaying approximately $143 million in principal amount of

the existing $293 million principal amount of outstanding term loans and amending the terms and

extending the maturity of the remaining $150 niillion balance the Amended Credit Agreenient and



we entered into an asset-based revolving credit facility with maximum available amount of up to

$125 million the ABL Facility See Item Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial

Condition and Results of Operations Liquidity and Capital Resources

As of December 21 2009 the Preferred Shares were convertible into 196.1 million shares of common

stock at conversion price of $1 .2748 However as of that date only approximately 8.4 million shares of

common stock were authorized and unissued and therefore the CDR Funds could not fully convert the

Preferred Shares To the extent that the CDR Funds opt to convert their Preferred Shares as of December 21

2009 their conversion right is limited to conversion of their Preferred Shares into the approximately 8.4 million

shares of common stock that are currently authorized and unissued We intend to submit to shareholder vote

at our annual meeting of shareholders proposal to amend the Companys certificate of incorporation to

effect reverse stock split of the common stock of the Company If the shareholders vote in favor of the

reverse stock split at the annual meeting we expect that kllowing the completion of the reverse stock split

the CDR Funds will he able to convert 100% of their Preferred Shares into shares of common stock

Dividends on the Convertible Prelerred Stock are payable on cumulative daily basis as if and when

declared by the our board of directors at rate per annum of 12% of the liquidation preference of $1000 per

Preferred Share subject to adjustment under certain circumstances if paid in-kind or at rate per annum of

8% of the liquidation preference of $1000 per Preferred Share subject to adjustment under certain

circumstances if paid in cash We have the right to choose whether dividends are paid in cash or in-kind

subject to the conditions of the Amended Credit Agreement and ABL Facility including being contractually

limited in our ability to pay cash dividends until the first quarter of fiscal 2011 under the Amended Credit

Agreement and until October 20 2010 under the ABL Facility except for certain specified purposes

Our principal offices are located at 10943 North Sam Houston Parkway West Houston Texas 77064 and

our telephone number is 281 897-7788

We file annual quarterly and current reports and other information with the Securities and Exchange

Commission the SEC Our annual reports on Form 10-K quarterly reports on Form 10-Q and current

reports on Form 8-K along with any amendments to those reports are available free of charge at our corporate

website at http//www.ncup.com as soon as practicable after such material is electronically filed with or

furnished to the SEC In addition our website includes other items related to corporate governance matters

including our corporate governance guidelines charters of various committees of our board of directors and

the code of business conduct and ethics applicable to our employees officers and directors You may obtain

copies of these documents free of charge from our corporate website However the information on our

wehsite is not incorporated by reference into this Form 10-K

Business Segments

We have aggregated our operations into three reportable business segments based upon similarities in

product lines manufacturing processes marketing and management of our businesses metal coil coating

metal components and engineered building systems Our business segments are vertically integrated benefit

ing from common raw material usage like manufacturing processes and an overlapping distribution network

Steel is the primary raw material used by each of our business segments Our metal coil coating segment

which paints steel coils provides substantially all of our metal coil coating requirements for our metal

components and engineered building systems business segments Our metal components segment produces

parts and accessories that are sold separately or as part of comprehensive solution the most common of

which is metal building system custom-designed and manufactured in our engineered building systems

segment Our engineered building systems segment sources substantially all of its painted steel coil and large

portion of its components requirements from our other two business segments The manufacturing and

distribution activities of our segments are effectively coupled through the use of our nationwide huh-and-spoke

manufacturing and distribution system which supports and enhances our vertical integration



Corporate assets consist primarily ol cash hut also include deferred financing costs deferred taxes and

property ilanE and equipment associated with our headquarters in Houston Texas These items and incollie

and
expenses

related to these items are not allocated to the business segments

Our sales to customers operating income and total assets attributable to these business segments were as

tollows for the fiscal years indicated iii thousands

2009 2008 2007

Sales

Metal coil coating 169897 18 305657 17 272543 16

Metal components 458734 47 715255 41 663331 41

Engineered building systems 541609 56 11 10534 63 1021544 63

Intersegment sales 202317 21 367287 21 332350 20

Total net sales 967923 100 $1764 159 100 $1625068 100

Operating income loss

Metal coil coating 99631 29381 25136

Metal components 129975 82094 49609

Engineered building systems 389309 107851 113265

Corporate 64583 64616 56276

Total operating income loss $683498 154710 1734

Unallocated other expense 117990 24330 26909

Income loss hefore income taxes $801488 130380 104825

Total assets as of fiscal year end 2009 and

2008

Metal coil coating 57208 196615 14

Metal components 159690 26 371464 27

Engineered building systems 241260 39 716671 52

Corporate 155690 26 95951

Total assets 613848 100 $1380701 100

Metal Coil Coating

rod tiers Metal coil coating consists of cleaning treating and painting various hatrolled metal coil

material as well as slitting and/or embossing the coils before the steel is fahricated br use by various

industrial users Light gauge and heavy gauge steel coils that are painted either for decorative or corrosion

protection purposes are used in the building industry by inanutacturers of metal components and engineered

building systems In addition these painted steel coils are used by rnanulacturers of other steel products such

as water heaters lighting hixtures and ceiling grids We clean treat and coat hotrolled metal coils and light

gauge metal for third parties for variety of applications including construction products heating and air

conditioning systems water heaters lighting fixtures ceiling grids oltice burniture and other products We

provide both toll coating services and package coating We pertorm toll coating services when the customer

provides the steel coil and we provide only the coating service We perform package coating when we provide

both the steel coil and the coating service

We believe that our piepainted metal coils are better quality product environmentally cleaner and more

costc fective than painted metal products prepared in other manufacturers inhouse painting operations

Painted metal coils also oiler manufacturers the opportunity to produce broader and more aesthetically

pleasing range of products

Mmoifacritriitg We currently operate live metal coil coating facilities in five states two of which are

used for hotrolled heavy gauge steel coils and three of which are used for painting light gauge steel coils



Metal coil coating processes involve applying various types of chemical treatments and paint systems to

flat-rolled continuous coils of metal including steel and aluminum These processes give the coils baked-on

finish that both protects the metal and makes it more attractive In the initial step of the coating process

various metals in coil form are cleaned and pretreated The metal is then coated oven cured recoiled and

packaged for shipment Slitting and embossing services in accordance with customer specifications can also be

performed on the coated metal before shipping

Sales Marketing and Customers We clean treat and coat hot-roll and light gauge metal coils for

number of national accounts and to supply substantially all of our internal metal coil coating requirements

Our customers include other manufacturers of engineered building systems and metal components as well

as light gauge steel coils for steel mills and metal service centers that supply the painted coils to various

industrial users including manufacturers of engineered building systems metal components lighting fixtures

ceiling grids water heaters and other products Each of our metal coil coating facilities has its own sales

manager and sales staff

We market our metal coil coating products under the brand names Metal Coaters and Metal-Prep and

sell our products and services principally to manufacturers of painted steel products and steel mills as well as

to our own metal components and engineered building systems segments In 2007 the DOUBLECOTE
brand name was rebranded as Metal CoatersTM During fiscal 2009 the largest customer of our metal coil

coating segment accounted for approximately of our total consolidated sales

According to information collected by the National Coil Coating Association and from other market

sources we believe that approximately 3.0 3.5 million tons of light gauge fiat rolled steel and approximately

0.7 1.0 million tons of heavy gauge hot-rolled steel are currently being coated on an annual basis in the

United States We believe that we account for approximately 10% of the light gauge coated steel market and

approximately 40% of the heavy gauge coated steel market

Metal Components

Products Metal components include metal roof and wall systems metal partitions metal trim doors

and other related accessories These products are used in new construction and in repair and retrofit

applications for industrial commercial institutional agricultural and rural uses Metal components are used in

wide variety of construction applications including purlins and girts roofing standing seam roofing walls

doors trim and other parts of traditional buildings as well as in architectural applications and engineered

building systems Purlins and girts are medium gauge roll-formed steel components which builders use for

secondary structural framing Although precise market data is limited we estimate the metal components

market including roofing applications to be multi-billion dollar market We believe that metal products have

gained and continue to gain greater share of new construction and repair and retrofit markets due to

increasing acceptance and recognition of the benefits of metal products in building applications

Our metal components consist of individual components including secondary structural framing metal

roof and wall systems and associated metal trims We sell directly to contractors or end users for use in the

building industry including the construction of metal buildings We also stock and market metal component

parts for use in the maintenance and repair of existing buildings Specific component products we manufacture

include metal roof and wall systems purlins girts partitions header panels and related trim and screws We
are also developing and marketing new products such as our Insulated Panel Systems IPS Eco-efficientTM

panel systems SoundwallM Nu-RoofTM system and Energy Star cool roofing We believe we offer the widest

selection of metal components in the building industry We custom produce purlins and girts for our customers

and offer one of the widest selections of sizes and profiles in the United States Metal roof and wall systems

protect the rest of the structure and the contents of the building from the weather They may also contribute to

the structural integrity of the building



Metal rooting systems have several advantages over conventional rooting systems including the

fol lowing

Lower /ift crc/c cost The total cost over the life of metal rooting systems is lower than that of

conventional rooting systems for both new construction and retrofit rooting For new construction the

cost of installing metal roohng is greater than the cost of conventional rooting Yet the longer Ii Ic and

lower maintenance costs of metal roohng make the cost more attractive For retrofit roofing although

installation costs are higher for metal rooting due to the need for sloping support system the lower

ongoing costs more than ottsct the initial cost

Increased longevity Metal rooting systems generally last tir minimum of 20 years without

requiring major maintenance or replacement This compares to live to ten years
for conventional roots

The cost of leaks and roof failures associated with conventional roofing can he very high including

damage to building interiors and disruption of the functional usefulness of the htnlding Metal rooting

prolongs the intervals between costly and timeconsuming repair work

Attractive aesthetics and lesign flexibility Metal rooting systems allow architects and builders to

integrate colors and geometric design into the rooting of new and existing buildings providing an

increasingly fashionable means of enhancing buildings aesthetics Conventional rooting material is

generally tar paper or gravel surface and building designers tend to conceal roots niade with these

in ateri at

Our metal rooting products are attractive and durable We use standing seam roof technology to replace

traditional builtup and singleply roots as well as to provide distinctive look to new construction

Manufacturing We currently operate facilities in 10 states used tor manufacturing of metal

components for the nonresidential construction industry including three facilities for our door operations
In

addition we have one facility which we are currently retooling to manUfacture insulated panel systems

Metal component products are rollformed or fabricated at each plant using rolltormers and other metal

working equipment in rollforming pretinished coils of steel are unwound and passed through series of

progressive forming rolls that form the steel into various protiles of mediumgauge structural shapes and light

gauge root and wall panels

Sales Marketing and Custoiicrs We are one of the largest domestic suppliers ot metal components to

the nonresidential building industry We design manufacture sell and distribute one of the widest selections

of components br variety of new construction applications as well as for repair and retrofit uses

We manufacture and design metal rooting systems for sales to regional metal building manufacturers

general contractors and subcontractors We believe we have the broadest line of standing seam roofing

products in the building industry In addition we have granted 20 nonexclusive licenses relating to our

standing seam roof technology

We estimate that metal rooting currently accounts br less than 10% of total rooting material expendi

tures However metal rooting accounts for signiticant portion of the overall metal components market As

result we believe that signiticant opportunities exist for metal rooting with its advantages over conventioiial

rooting materials to increase its overall share of this market

In addition to metal rooting systems we manufacture rollup doors and sell interior and exterior walk

doors for use in the sell storage industry and metal and other buildings in addition one of our strategic

objectives and major part of our green initiative is to expand our insulated panel product lines which are

increasingly desirable because of their energy efficiency noise reduction and aesthetic qualities We are

retooling one facility as an insulated panel manufacturing operation and this facility will
reopen

in early 2010

to meet the increasing demand for environmentallyfriendly piodricts

Our green initiative enables us to capitalize on increasing consumer preferences for environmentally

friendly construction We believe this will allow us to further service the needs of our existing customer base



and to gain new customers For more information about our green initiatives please read Business

Strategy

We sell metal components directly to regional manufacturers contractors subcontractors distributors

lumberyards cooperative buying groups and other customers under the brand names MBCI American

Building Components ABC IPS and NCI Metal Depots Roll-up doors interior and exterior doors

interior partitions and walls header panels and trim are sold directly to contractors and other customers under

the brand Doors and Buildings Components DBCI These components also are produced for integration

into self storage and engineered building systems sold by us In addition to traditional business-to-business

channel we sell components through NC1 Metal Depots which has six retail stores in Texas and New Mexico

and specifically targets end-use consumers and small general contractors

We market our components products within five product lines commercial industrial architectural

agricultural and residential Customers include small medium and large contractors specialty roofers regional

fabricators regional engineered building fabricators and end users Commercial and industrial businesses

including self-storage are heavy users of metal components and metal buildings systems Standing seam roof

and architectural customers are emerging as an important part of our customer base As metal buildings

become more acceptable building alternative and aesthetics become an increasingly important consideration

for end users of metal buildings we believe that architects will participate more in the design and purchase

decisions and will use metal components to greater extent Wood frame builders also purchase our metal

components through distributors lumberyards cooperative buying groups and chain stores for various uses

including agricultural buildings

Our metal components sales operations are organized into four geographic regions Each region is headed

by general sales manager supported by individual plant sales managers Each local sales office is located

adjacent to manufacturing plant and is staffed by direct sales force responsible for contacting customers

and architects and sales coordinator who supervises the sales process from the time the order is received

until it is shipped and invoiced The regional and local focus of our customers requires extensive knowledge of

local business conditions During fiscal 2009 our largest customer for metal components accounted for less

than 1% of our total consolidated sales

Engineered Building Systenis

Products Engineered building systems consist of engineered structural members and panels that are

fabricated and roll-formed in factory These systems are custom designed and engineered to meet project

requirements and then shipped to construction site complete and ready for assembly with no additional field

welding required Engineered building systems manufacturers design an integrated system that meets applica

ble building code and designated end use requirements These systems consist of primary structural framing

secondary structural members purlins and girts and metal roof and wall systems or conventional wall

materials manufactured by others such as masonry and concrete tilt-up panels

Engineered building systems typically consist of three systems

Primary structurcilfraining Primary structural framing fabricated from heavy-gauge plate steel

supports the secondary structural framing roof walls and all externally applied loads Through the

primary framing the force of all applied loads is structurally transferred to the foundation

Secondary structural framing Secondary structural framing is designed to strengthen the primary

structural framing and efficiently transfer applied loads from the roof and walls to the primary structural

framing Secondary structural framing consists of medium-gauge roll-formed steel components called

purlins and girts Purlins are attached to the primary frame to support the roof Girts are attached to the

primary frame to support the walls

Metal roof and wall systems Metal roof and wall systems not only lock out the weather but may
also contribute to the structural integrity of the overall building system Roof and wall panels are

fabricated from light-gauge roll-formed steel in many architectural configurations



Accessory components complete the enginecred building system These components include doors

windows specialty trims gutters mid interior partitions

Our patented Long Bay System allows or construction of metal huiklings with bay spacings of up to

65 feet without internal supports This compares to hay spacings of up to 30 eel under other engineeied

building systems The Long F3ay System virtually eliminates all welding at the site signi hcantly reducing

construction time compared with conventional steel construction Our patented Long Bay System is designed

or larger buildings that typically require less custom engineering and design than our other engineered

building systems which allows us to meet our customers needs more efficiently

The following characteristics of engineered building systems distinguish them from other methods of

construction

Shorter construction tioe In many instances it takes less time to construct an engineered building

than other building types In addition because most of the work is lone in the factory the likelihood of

weather interruptions is reduced

More ejficient material utilization The larger engineered building systems manufacturers use

computeraided analysis and design to fabricate structural members with high strengthtoweight ratios

minimizing raw materials costs

Lower construction costs The inplant manufacture of engineered building systems coupled with

automation allows the substitution of less expensive factory labor for much of the skilled onsite

construction labor otherwise required br traditional building methods

Greater ease of expansion Engineered building systems can be modihed quickly and economically

before during or after the building is completed to accommodate all types of expansion Typically an

engineered building system can be expanded by removing the end or side walls erecting new framework

and adding matching wall and roof panels

Lower maintenance costs Unlike wood metal is not susceptible to deterioration From cracking

rotting or insect damage Furtherniore lactoryapplied roof and siding panel coatings resist cracking

peeling chipping chalking and fading

Environmentally fiendv Our buildings utilize recycled steel materials and our rooling and siding

utilize painted surfaces with high reflectance and emissivity which help conserve energy and operating

costs

Manufacturing We currently operate facilities br mu anu facturi ng and Ii stri but ng engineered bui ding

systems throughout the United States and Monterrey Mexico

Alter we receive an order our engineers design the engineered building system to meet the customers

requirements and to satisfy applicable building codes and zoning requirements To expedite this process we

use computeraided design and engineering systems to generate engineering and erection drawings and bill

of materials br the manufacture of the engineered building system hom timetotime depending on our

volume we outsource to thirdparties portions of our drabting requirements

Once the specifications and designs of the customers project have been finalized the manufacturing of

frames and other building systems begins at one of our frame manufacturing facilities Fabrication of the

primary structural framing consists of process in which steel plates are punched and sheared and then routed

through an automatic welding machine and sent through further fitting and welding processes The secondary

structural framing and the coverimig system are rollformed steel products that are manufactured at our full

manu facturing facilities as well as otir components plants

Upon completion of the manufacturing process structural framing members and metal roof and wall

systems are shipped to the job site br assembly Since onsite construction is perbormed by an unaffiliated

independent general contractor usually one of our authorized builders we generally are not responsible tor

claims by end users or owners attributable to faulty onsite construction The time elapsed between our receipt

Of ami order and shipment of completed building system has typically ranged brom four to eight weeks



although delivery can extend somewhat longer if engineering and drafting requirements are extensive or where

applicable if the permitting process is protracted

Sales Marketing and Customers We are one of the largest domestic suppliers of engineered building

systems We design engineer manufacture and market engineered building systems and self-storage building

systems for all non-residential markets including commercial industrial agricultural governmental and

community

Over the last 25 years engineered building systems have significantly increased penetration of the market

for non-residential low-rise structures and are being used in broad variety of other applications According to

the Metal Building Manufacturers Association MBMA domestic and export sales of engineered building

systems by its members which represent limited number of actual buildings manufactured for 2008 and

2007 totaled approximately $3.3 billion and $3.1 billion respectively Although final 2009 sales information

is not yet available from the MBMA we estimate that sales of engineered building systems decreased in 2009

compared with 2008 McGraw-Hill Construction reported that the low-rise non-residential market measured in

square footage actually declined by 42.2% during our fiscal year McGraw-Hill Constructions forecast for

calendar 2009 indicates total non-residential construction reduction of 42% in square footage and 30% in

dollar value The forecast for calendar 2010 indicates total non-residential construction reduction of 4% in

square footage and 2% in dollar value prior to increasing in 2011

We believe the cost of an engineered building system generally represents approximately 20% to 30% of

the total cost of constructing building which includes the cost of the land labor plumbing electricity

heating and air conditioning systems installation and interior finish Technological advances in products and

materials as well as significant improvements in engineering and design techniques have led to the

development of structural systems that are compatible with more traditional construction materials Architects

and designers now often combine an engineered building system with masonry concrete glass and wood

exterior facades to meet the aesthetic requirements of end users while preserving the inherent characteristics of

engineered building systems As result the uses for engineered building systems now include office

buildings showrooms retail shopping centers banks schools places of worship warehouses factories

distribution centers government buildings and community centers for which aesthetics and architectural

features are important considerations of the end users In addition advances in our products such as insulated

steel panel systems for roof and wall applications give buildings the perfect balance of strength thermal

efficiency and attractiveness

We sell engineered building systems to builders general contractors developers and end users nationwide

under the brand names Metallic Mid-West Steel All American Steel Systems Mesco
Star Ceco Robertson Garco Heritage and SteelBuilding.com We market engineered building

systems through an in-house sales force to authorized builder iietworks of over 5700 builders We also sell

engineered building systems to various private labels In addition to traditional business-to-business channel

we sell small custom-engineered metal buildings through two other marketing channels targeting end-use

consumers and small general contractors We sell through Heritage Building Systems Heritage which is

direct-response phone-based sales organization and Steelbuilding.com which allows customers to design price

and buy small metal buildings online During fiscal 2009 our largest customer for engineered building systems

accounted for approximately 1% of our total consolidated sales

Our authorized builder networks consist of independent general contractors that market our products and

services to end users Most of our sales of engineered building systems are made through our authorized

builder networks We enter into an agreement with an authorized builder which generally grants the builder

the non-exclusive right to market our products in specified territory Generally the agreement is cancelable

by either party on 60 days notice The agreement does not prohibit the builder from marketing engineered

building systems of other manufacturers We establish an annual sales goal for each builder and provide the

builder with sales and pricing information drawings and assistance application programs for estimating and

quoting jobs and advertising and promotional literature We also defray portion of the builders advertising

costs and provide volume purchasing and other pricing incentives to encourage
it to deal exclusively or

principally with us The builder is required to maintain place of business in its designated territory provide



sales organization conduct periodic advertising programs and perlorm constructioll warranty and other

ser\iCeS for customers and potential customers An authorized builder usually is lured by an enduser to erect

an engineered building system on the customers site and provide general contracting and other services related

to the completion of the project We sell our products to the builder which generally includes the price ol the

building as part of its overall construction contract with its custonicr We rely upon maintaining satistactory

business relationship for continuing job orders Ironi our authorized builders and do not consider the huilder

agreements to he material to our business

Our patented Long Bay System provides us with an entry to builders that focus on larger buildings This

also provides us with new opportunities to crosssell our other products to these new builders and to compete

with the conventional construction industry

Business Strategy

We intend to expand our business enhance our market position and increase our sales and prohtahility by

locusing on the implementation of number of key initiatives that we believe will help us grow and reduce

costs Our current strategy locuses primarily on organic initiatives hut also considers the use of opportunistic

acquisitions to achieve our growth ohlectives

CorporateWide Initiatives

Through introduction of new products and services we expect to capture an increasing share of the

growing market for green building products We will continue our focus on leveraging technology and

automation to he the lowest cost producers and enhance plant utiization through expanded use of our

hub spoke distribution model We will also implement common MRP platlorm linancial shared

services model and supply chain automation and efficiencies to allow for more cost reductions across all

businesses Finally we will continue to identify and assess opportunistic acquisition candidates

Metal Coil Coating Segment

Through diversification of our external customer base we plan to substantially increase toll and

package sales and make the segment somewhat less dependent on the construction industry We will

continue to leverage efficiency improvements to he the lowest cost producer

Components Segment

We ntenrl to maintain our leading positions in these markets and seek opportunities to protitably

expand our customer base We plan to expand our insulated panel product ollering utilizing our new

stateoltheart manufacturing facility in Jackson Mississippi In addition we plan to accelerate and

expand NuRoo1 our retrolit roofing product

Buildings Segment

We intend to maintain our leading positions in these markets and seek opportunities to protitably

expand our customer base We will continue to enhance and share engineering and dialling technologies

across all Buildings brands while at the same time continuing to increase product standardization We

will expand material sales by ollering furnish erect services and the ability to supply higher complexity

structures br the Industrial market In addition we are deploying webbased pricing soltware to enhance

small huildi
lug

sales across our brands Finally as construction markets improve we will expand our low

cost Irame product on as add it jonal capacity is required

Raw Materials

The principal raw material used in manufacturing of our metal compoilents and engineered building

systems is steel Our various products are fabricated lioin steel prodlucerl by mills including bars plates

structural shapes sheets hotrolled coils and galvanized or Galvalurnecoated coils Iuring fiscal 2009 and

200S we purchased approximately 30Y and 24Yr of our steel requirements respectively from one vendor No

other vendor accounted or over 0% of our steel requirements during fiscal 2009 or 200S Although we

It



believe concentration of our steel purchases among small group of suppliers that have mills and warehouse

facilities close to our facilities enables us as large customer of those suppliers to obtain better pricing

service and delivery the loss of one or all of these suppliers could have material adverse affect on our ability

to obtain the raw materials required to meet delivery schedules to our customers These suppliers generally

maintain an inventory of the types of materials we require

Our raw materials on hand decreased to $48.1 million at November 2009 from $142.6 million at

November 2008 primarily due to the decrease in the quantity on hand and decrease in steel costs During

fiscal 2009 we recorded charge of $40.0 million to reduce the carrying amount on certain raw material

inventory to the lower of cost or market

Our business is heavily dependent on the price and supply of steel The steel industry is highly cyclical in

nature and steel prices have been volatile in recent years and may remain volatile in the future Steel prices

are influenced by numerous factors beyond our control including general economic conditions domestically

and internationally the availability of raw materials competition labor costs freight and transportation costs

production costs import duties and other trade restrictions We believe the CRU North American Steel Price

Index published by the CRU Group since 1994 appropriately depicts the volatility in steel prices See

Item 7A Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk Steel Prices During fiscal 2009
steel prices fluctuated significantly due to market conditions ranging from high point on the CRU Index of

187 to low point of 112 Steel prices decreased rapidly during the first eight months of fiscal 2009 but

increased between July 2009 and October 2009 Rapidly declining demand for steel due to the effects of the

credit crisis and global economic slowdown on the construction automotive and industrial markets has resulted

in many steel manufacturers around the world announcing plans to cut production by closing plants and

furloughing workers Steel suppliers such as US Steel and Arcelor Mittal are among those manufacturers who
have cut production Given reduced steel production higher input costs and low inventories in the industry we
believe steel prices will increase in fiscal 2010 as compared with the prices we experienced during the second

half of fiscal 2009

Although we have the ability to purchase steel from number of suppliers production cutback by one

or more of our current suppliers could create challenges to meet delivery schedules to our customers Because

we have periodically adjusted our contract prices particularly in the engineered building systems segment we
have generally been able to pass increases in our raw material costs through to our customers We do not have

any long-term contracts for the purchase of steel and normally do not maintain an inventory of steel in excess

of our current production requirements However from time to time we may purchase steel in advance of

announced steel price increases In addition it is our current practice to purchase all steel consignment

inventory that remains in consignment after an agreed term Therefore our inventory may increase if demand

for our products declines For additional information about the risks of our raw material supply and pricing

see Item Risk Factors

Backlog

At November 2009 the total backlog of orders for our products we believe to be firm was

$253.7 million This compares with total backlog for our products of $332.4 million at November 2008

Backlog at November 2009 and November 2008 primarily consisted of engineered building systems

orders in the amount of $252.6 million and $330.0 million respectively Job orders are generally cancelable by

customers at any
time for any reason Current economic conditions could result in higher levels of

cancellations than we historically have experienced See Item IA Risk Factors Our industry is cyclical

and highly sensitive to macroeconomic conditions as result our industry is currently experiencing

downturn which if sustained will materially and adversely affect our business liquidity and results of

operations Occasionally orders in the backlog are not completed and shipped for reasons that include

changes in the requirements of the customers and the inability of customers to obtain necessary financing or

zoning variances We do not anticipate that any significant portion of this backlog will extend beyond one

year

II



Competition

We and other manufacturers of metal components and engineered building Systems compete in the

building industry with all other alternative methods of buildii construction such as tiltwall concrete and

wood singleply and built up all of which may he perceived as more traditional more aesthetically pleasing

or having oilier advantages over our products We compete with all manufacturers of building products from

small local flrms to large national inns

In addition competition in the metal components and engineered building systems market of the building

industry is intense It is based primarily on

quality

service

ontime delivery

ability to provide added value in the design and engineering of buildings

price amid

speed of construction

We compete with number of other manufacturers of metal components and engineered building systems

br the building industry ranging from small local firms to large national firms Most of these competitors

operate on regional basis although we believe that at least two other manufacturers of engineered building

systems and three manufacturers of metal components have nationwide coverage

We are comprised of family of companies operating 32 manufacturing facilities across the United States

and Mexico with additional sales and distribution olbmces throughout the United States and Canada These

facilities are used for the manufacturing of metal coniponents and engineered building systems for the building

industry including three for our door operations We believe this broad geographic distribution gives us an

advantage over our components and building competitors because major elements of customers decision are

the speed and cost of delivery from the mann facluring facility to the products ultimate destination We operate

fleet of trucks to deliver our products to our customers in more timely manner than most of our

corn pet it ors

We compete with number of other providers of metal coil coating services to manufacturers of metal

components and engineered building systems for the bLulding industry ranging from small local firms to large

national hirms Most of these competitors operate on regional basis although we believe there are at least

three other providers of light gauge metal coil coating services that have nationwide market Also

there are two other providers of heavy gauge metal coil coating services who have substantially the same

geographic reach as our heavy gauge coil coating facilities Competition in the metal coil coating industry is

intense and is based primarily on quality service delivery and price

Consolidation

Over the last several years theme has been consolidation of competitors within the industries of the

metal coil coating metal components and engineered building systems segments which include many small

local and regional firms We believe that these industries will continue to consolidate driven by the needs of

manufacturers to increase anticipated longterm manufacturing capacity achieve greater process integration

and add geographic diversity to meet customers product and delivery needs improve production efficiency

and manage costs When beneficial to our longterm goals and strategy we have sought to consolidate our

business operations with other conmpanies The resulting synergies from these consolidation efforts have

allowed us to reduce costs while continuing to serve our customers needs In January 207 we completed the

purchase of substantially all of the assets of Garco Building Systems Inc which designs manufactures and

distributes steel building systems primarily for markets in the northwestern United States and western Canada

In April 2006 we acquired 00% of the issued and outstanding shares of RCC RCC operates the Ceco
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Building Systems Star Building Systems and Robertson Building Systems divisions and is leader in the

metal buildings segment For more information see Acquisitions

In addition to the consolidation of competitors within the industries of the metal coil coating metal

components and engineered building systems segments in recent years there has been consolidation between

those industries and steel producers Several of our competitors have been acquired by steel producers and

further similar acquisitions are possible For discussion of the possible effects on us of such consolidations

see Item IA Risk Factors

Acquisitions

We have history of making acquisitions within our industry and we regularly evaluate growth

opportunities both through acquisitions and internal investment We believe that there remain opportunities for

growth through consolidation in the metal buildings and components segments and our goal is to continue to

grow through opportunistic strategic acquisitions as well as organically

In furtherance of this strategy on January 31 2007 we completed the purchase of substantially all the

assets of Garco Garco is headquartered in Spokane Washington where it operates manufacturing facility

for metal building systems for industrial commercial institutional and agricultural applications The addition

of Garco has strengthened our presence in growth markets in the northwestern United States and western

Canada In addition to an established distribution and builder network Garco has built well-respected brand

name Garco also provides us with an advanced manufacturing facility which is our first in the Northwest

highly experienced operating team and 33-acre site suitable for future expansion

Consistent with our growth strategy we frequently engage in discussions with potential sellers regarding

the possible purchase by us of businesses assets and operations that are strategic and complementary to our

existing operations Such assets and operations include engineered building systems and metal components

but may also include assets that are closely related to or intertwined with these business lines and enable us

to leverage our asset base knowledge base and skill sets Such acquisition efforts may involve participation by

us in processes that have been made public involve number of potential buyers and are commonly referred

to as auction processes as well as situations in which we believe we are the only party or one of the very

limited number of potential buyers in negotiations with the potential seller These acquisition efforts often

involve assets that if acquired would have material effect on our financial condition and results of

operations

We also evaluate from time to time possible dispositions of assets or businesses when such assets or

businesses are no longer core to our operations and do not fit into our long-term strategy

The Amended Credit Agreement contains number of covenants that among other things limit or restrict

the ability of the Company and its subsidiaries to dispose of assets make acquisitions and engage in mergers

Environmental Matters

The operation of our business is subject to stringent and complex laws and regulations pertaining to

health safety and the environment As an owner or operator of manufacturing facilities we must comply with

these laws and regulations at the federal state and local levels These laws and regulations can restrict or

impact our business activities in many ways such as

restricting the way we can handle or dispose of our waste

requiring investigative or remedial action to mitigate or address certain environmental conditions that

may have been caused by our operations or attributable to former operators and

enjoining the operations of facilities deemed in non-compliance with environmental laws and regula

tions or permits issued pursuant to such laws or regulations

Failure to comply with these laws and regulations may trigger variety of administrative civil and

criminal enforcement measures including the assessment of monetary penalties the imposition of investigative
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or remedial requirements and the issuance of orders enjoi nilig future operations Certain environmental

statutes impose strict Joint and several liability for costs required to clean up and restore sites where hazardous

substances have been disposed of or otherwise released Moreover it is not uncommon br neighboring

landowners and other third parties to file claims for personal injury and property damage allegedly caused by

the release of substances or other waste products into the environment

The trend in environmental regulation is to place more restrictions and limitations on activities that may

affect human health or the environ bent As resti it there can he no assurance as to the amount or ti ml ng of

future expenditures for environmental compliance or remediation and actual future expenditures may be

different from the amounts we currently anticipate We try to anticipate future regulatory requirements that

might be imposed and plan accordingly to remain in compliance with changing environmental laws and

regulations and to minimize the costs of such compliance

We 10 not believe that compliance with federal state or local environmental laws and regLilations will

have material adverse effect on our business financial position or results of operations In addition we

believe that the various environmental activities in which we are presently engaged arc not expected to

materially interrupt or di in iiii sh on operational ability to manufacture our products We cannot assure you

however that future events such as changes in existing laws the promulgation of new laws or the

development or discovery of new facts or conditions will not cause us to incur significant costs The following

isa discussion of certain environmental and safety concerns that relate to our business

Air Emissions Our operations are subject to the federal Clean Air Act and comparable state laws and

regulations These laws and regulations govern emissions of air pollutants from various industrial sources

including our manufacturing lacilities and also impose various monitoring and reporting requirements Such

laws and regulations may require that we obtain preapproval for the construction or modification of certain

projects or facilities expected to produce air emissions or result in the increase of existing air emissions obtain

and strictly comply with air permits containing various emissions and operational limitations or utilize speci Oc

emission control technologies to limit emissions Our failure to comply with these requirements could subject

us to monetary penalties injunctions conditions or restrictions on operations and potentially criminal

enforcement actions We will he required to incur certain capital and other expenditures in the future for air

pollution control equipment in connection with obtaining and maintaining operating permits and approvals for

air emissions We believe however that our operations will not be materially adversely affected by such

requirements

ilazzirdos 1111 Solid Waste ur operations generate wastes including some hazardous wastes that are

subject to the federal Resource Conservation and Recovery Act or RCRA and comparable state laws which

impose detailed requirements for the handling storage treatment and disposal of hazardous and solid waste

For example ordinary industrial waste such as paint waste waste solvents and waste oils may he regulated as

hazardous waste RCRA currently exempts many of our manufacturing wastes from classification as hazardous

waste However these nonhazardous or exempted wastes are still regulated under state law or the less

stringent solid waste requirements of RCRA

Site Remnediation The Comprehensive Environmental Response Compensation and Liability Act of

1980 as amended or CERCLA and comparable state laws impose liability without regard to fault or the

legality of the original conduct on certain classes of persomis responsible for the release of hazardous

substances into the environment Such classes of persois include the current and past owners or operators of

sites where hazardous substance was released and companies that disposed or arranged for disposal of

hazardous substances at offsite locations such as landfills In the course of our ordinary operations we

generate wastes that may full within the definition of hazardous substance CERCLA authorizes the EPA

and in some cases third parties to take actions in response to threats to the public health or the environment

and to seek to recover from tile responsible classes of persons the costs they incur Under CERCLA we could

he subject to joint and several liability for the costs of cleaning up aild restoring sites where llaZardotiS

substances have been released for damages to natural resources and for the costs of certain health studies

We currently own or lease and have in the past owned or leased nunierous properties that for many

years have been used br manufacturing operations Hazardous substances or wastes may have been disposed



of or released on or under the properties owned or leased by us or on or under other locations where such

wastes have been taken for disposal In addition some of these properties have been operated by third parties

or by previous owners whose treatment and disposal or release of hazardous substances or wastes was not

under our control These properties and the substances disposed or released on them may be subject to

CERCLA RCRA and analogous state laws Under such laws we could be required to remove previously

disposed wastes including waste disposed by prior owners or operators investigate or remediate contaminated

property including soil and groundwater contamination whether from prior owners or operators or other

historic activities or spills or perform remedial plugging or pit closure operations to prevent future

contamination See Item Legal Proceedings for further discussion of specific environmental remediation

activities

Waste Water Discharges Our operations are subject to the federal Water Pollution Control Act of 1972

as amended also known as the Clean Water Act and analogous state laws and regulations These laws and

regulations impose detailed requirements and strict controls regarding the discharge of pollutants into waters

of the United States The unpermitted discharge of pollutants including discharges resulting from spill or

leak incident is prohibited Any unpermitted release of pollutants from our facilities could result in fines or

penalties as well as significant remedial obligations

Employee Health and Safety We are subject to the requirements of the Occupational Safety and Health

Act or OSHA and comparable state laws that regulate the protection of the health and safety of workers In

addition the OSHA hazard communication standard requires that information he maintained about hazardous

materials used or produced in our operations and that this information be provided to employees state and

local government authorities and citizens We believe that we are in substantial compliance with these

requirements

Zoning and Building Code Requirements

The engineered building systems and components we manufacture must meet zoning building code and

uplift requirements adopted by local governmental agencies We believe that our products are in substantial

compliance with applicable zoning code and uplift requirements Compliance does not have material adverse

affect on our business

Patents Licenses and Proprietary Rights

We have number of United States patents pending patent applications and other proprietary rights

including those relating to metal roofing systems metal overhead doors our pier and header system our Long

Bay System and our building estimating and design system We also have several registered trademarks and

pending registrations in the United States

Research and Development Costs

Total expenditures for research and development were $1.0 million $1.8 million and $1.9 million for

fiscal 2009 2008 and 2007 respectively We incur research and development costs to develop new products

improve existing products and improve safety factors of our products in the metal components segment These

products include building and roofing systems panels clips purlins and fasteners

Employees

As of November 2009 we had approximately 3673 employees of whom 2071 were manufacturing

and engineering personnel We regard our employee relations as satisfactory Approximately 10.0% of our

workforce including the employees at our subsidiary in Mexico are represented by collective bargaining

agreement or union As part of our cost reduction program during fiscal 2009 we reduced our overall

employee headcount by approximately 40%
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Item 1A Risk Factors

Our industry is cyclical and highly sensitive to macroeconomic conditions as result our indiistiy is

currently experiencing downturn which if sustained nill materially amid adversely qfict our business

liquidity and results of operatwns

The nonresidential construction industry is highly sensitive to national and regional Illacroec000mic

conditions The United States economy is currently undergoing period of slowdown and unprecedented

volatility which is having an adverse effect on our business When we began fiscal 2009 McGrawH ill was

predicting 12% decline in nonresidential construction in 2009 compared to 2008 Subsequently McGraw

Itill revised its lorecast further downward and as of October 2009 was predicting 42% squarefootage

decline in nonresidential construction activity in 2009 compared to 2008 This industry decline contributed to

37.9% decline in our total tons shipped though we experienced the greatest impact in our engiieered

building systems segment

Continued uncertainty about current economic conditions has had negative effect on our business and

will continue to pose risk to our business as our customers may postpone spending in response to tighter

credit negative financial news and/or declines in income or asset values which could have material negative

effect on the demand for our products Other factors that could influence demand include fuel and other

energy costs conditions in the nonresidential real estate markets labor and healthcare costs access to credit

and other macroeconomic factors Irom time to time our industry has also been adversely affected in various

parts of the country by declines in nonresidential construction starts including but not liniited to high

vacancy rates changes in tax laws alTecting the real estate industry high interest rates and the unavailability

ot financing Sales ol our products may he adversely affected by continued weakness in demand or our

prod ucts within particular customer groups or continued decline in the general construction industry or

articular geographic regions These and other economic lactors could have material adverse effect on

demand for our products and on our financial condition and operating results

We cannot predict the ultimate severity or length of the current economic crisis or the timing or severity

of future economic or industry downturns prolonged economic downturn particularly in states where many

of our sales are made would have material adverse effect on our results of operations and financial

condition including potential asset impairments

Current challenges in the credit markets may adversely feet our business amid financial condition

The current financial turmoil affecting the banking system and financial markets and the possibility that

financial institutions may consolidate or go out of business have resulted in tightening in the credit markets

low level of liquidity in many financial markets and extreme volatility in fixed income credit currency and

equity markets The current challenges in the credit markets have had and will continue to have negative

impact on our business and our financial condition We nay face significant challenges if conditions in the

financial markets 10 not improve including raw material shortages resulting from the insolvency of key

suppliers and the inability of customers to obtain credit to finance purchases of our products in addition

declining customer spending svill result in higher levels of omder cancellations and lower level of demand for

our products than we have historically experienced and will drive us to sell our products at lower prices

which would have an adverse effect on our margins and profitability The lack of credit also adversely affects

nonresidential construction which is the locus of our business

We may not be able to service our debt obtain iture financing or may be limited operationally

The debt that we carry may have important consequences to us including the following

Our ability to obtain additional financing if necessary for working capital capital expenditures

acquisitions or other prposcs may be unpaired or additional financing may not be available on

favorable terms

We must use portion of our cash flow to pay the principal and interest on our debt These payments

reduce the funds that would otherwise be available for our operations and future business opportunities
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substantial decrease in our net operating cash flows could make it difficult for us to meet our debt

service requirements and force us to modify our operations and

We may be more vulnerable to downturn in our business or the economy generally

If we cannot service our debt we will be forced to take actions such as reducing or delaying acquisitions

and/or capital expenditures selling assets restructuring or refinancing our debt or seeking additional equity

capital We can give you no assurance that we can do any of these things on satisfactory terms or at all

We may incur additional debt from time to time to finance acquisitions capital expenditures or for other

purposes if we comply with the restrictions in our Amended Credit Agreement and ABL Facility

Restrictive covenants in the Amended Credit Agreement and the ABL Facility may adversely affect us

We must comply with operating and financing restrictions in the Amended Credit Agreement and the

ABL Facility We may also have similar restrictions with any future debt These restrictions affect and in

many respects limit or prevent us from

incurring additional indebtedness

making restricted payments including dividends or other distributions

incurring liens

making investments including joint venture investments

selling assets

repurchasing our debt and our capital stock and

merging or consolidating with or into other companies or sell substantially all our assets

We are required to make mandatory payments under the Amended Credit Agreement upon the occurrence

of certain events including the sale of assets and the issuance of debt in each case subject to certain

limitations and conditions set forth in our Amended Credit Agreement The Amended Credit Agreement also

requires us beginning with the fourth quarter of fiscal 2011 to satisfy set financial tests relating to our

leverage ratio provided that these financial tests will not apply to any fiscal quarter in which certain

amortization
targets are met

Under the ABL Facility Dominion Event occurs if either an event of default is continuing or excess

availability falls below certain levels during which period and for certain periods thereafter the administrative

agent may apply all amounts in the Companys concentration account to the repayment of the loans

outstanding under the ABL Facility subject to an intercreditor agreement between the lenders under the

Amended Credit Agreement and the ABL Facility In addition during Dominion Event we are required to

make mandatory payments on the ABL Facility upon the occurrence of certain events including the sale of

assets and the issuance of debt in each case subject to certain limitations and conditions set forth in the ABL

Facility If excess availability under the ABL Facility falls below certain levels our asset-based loan facility

also requires us to satisfy set financial tests relating to our fixed charge coverage ratio

These restrictions could limit our ability to plan for or react to market conditions or meet extraordinary

capital needs or otherwise could restrict our activities In addition under certain circumstances and subject to

the limitations set forth in the Amended Credit Agreement the Amended Credit Agreement requires us to pay

down our term loan to the extent we generate positive cash flow each fiscal year These restrictions could also

adversely affect our ability to finance our future operations or capital needs or to engage in other business

activities that would he in our interest

We may recognize additional goodwill or other intangible asset impairment charges

Based on lower than projected sales volumes in our first quarter of fiscal 2009 and based on revised

lower outlook for non-residential construction activity in 2009 management reduced the Companys cash flow
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projections We concluded this reduction was an impairnient indicator requiring us to perform an interim

goodwill impairment test br each of our six reporting units as of February 2009 As result of this

impairment iid icator we updated the first stel of our goodw il mpairrnent test in the first quarter of fiscal

2009 As of February 209 we estimated the market implied lu value of our goodwill was less than its

carrying value by approximately $508.9 million which was recorded as goodwill impairment charge iii the

first quarter of fiscal 2009 This charge was an estimate based on the result of lhc preliminary allocation ol

fair value iii the second step of the goodwill impairment test However due to the timing and complexity of

the valuation calculations required under the second step of the test we finalized our allocation of the fair

value during the second quarter of tiscal 2009

Based on the Phase Ill restructuring management determined we were required to perborm another

interim goodwill impairment test for each of our reporting units that had goodwill remaining as of May

2009 As result we updated the first step of our goodwill impairment test in the second quarter of fiscal

2009 and determined that the carrying value of the goodwill exceeded its fair value at most of the applicable

reporting units and as result we initialed the second step of the goodwill inlpairment test As of May

2009 we determined the market implied fair value ol our goodwill was less than its carrying value by

approximately $102.5 million and we recorded goodwill impairment charge br such aniounts in the second

quarter of fiscal 2009

1lowever luture triggering events such as declines in our cash flow projectiomis may cause additional

impairments of our goodwill or intangible assets based on lactors such as our stock price projected cash

flows assumptions used control premiums or other variables

We completed our annual assessment of the recoverability of goodwill and indefinite lived intangibles in

the fourth quarter of fiscal 2009 and determined that no further impairments of our goodwill or longlived

intangibles were required

Our businesses are seasonal and our results operations during our frst two fiscal quarters may be

adversely affected by seasonalily

The metal coil coating metal components and engineered building systems businesses and the construc

lion industry in general are seasonal in nature Sales normally are lower in the first calendar quarter of each

year compared to the other three quarters because of un lavorable weather conditions br construction and

typical business planniig cycles affecting construction This seasonality adversely affects our results of

operations for the first two fiscal quarters Prolonged severe weather conditions can delay construction projects

and otherwise adversely affect our business

Price volatility and supply constraints in the steel market could prevent us from meeting delivery sc/ted

tiles to our customers or reduce our prtit margins

Our business is heavily dependent on the price and supply of steel The steel industry is highly cyclical in

nature and steel prices have been volatile in recent years and may remai ii volatile in the future Steel prices

are influenced by numerous baclors beyond our control including general economic conditions domestically

and internationally the availability of raw materials coni pet iti on labor costs freight and transportation costs

production costs import duties and other trade restrictions Rapidly led in ng demand for steel due to the

effects of the credit crisis and global economic slowdown on the construction automotive and industrial

markets has resulted in many steel manufacturers around the world announcing plans to cut production by

closing plants and furloughing workers Steel suppliers such as US Steel and Arcelor Mittal are among those

manufacturers who have cut production With such production cuts sudden increase in demand could affect

our ability to purchase steel and result in rapidly increasing steel prices

We do not have any longterm contracts br the purchase ob steel and normally do not niaintai an

inventory of steel in excess of our current production requirements However bmoiii time to time we may

purchase steel in advance of announced steel price increases In addition it is our current practice to purchase

all consignment inventory that remains in consigmiment after an agreed term Therefore our inventory may

increase if demand br our products declines We can give \ou 110 assurance that steel will remain available or



that prices will not continue to he volatile While most of our contracts have escalation clauses that allow us

under certain circumstances to pass along all or portion of increases in the price of steel after the date of

the contract but prior to delivery we may for competitive or other reasons not be able to pass such price

increases along If the available supply of steel declines we could experience price increases that we are not

able to pass on to our customers deterioration of service from our suppliers or interruptions or delays that

may cause us not to meet delivery schedules to our customers Any of these problems could adversely affect

our results of operations and financial condition For more information about steel pricing trends in recent

years see Item Business Raw Materials and Item 7A Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about

market Risk Steel Prices

We rely on few major suppliers for our supply of steel which makes us more vulnerable to supply con

straints and pricing pressure as well as the financial condition of those suppliers

We rely on few major suppliers for our supply of steel and may he adversely affected by the

bankruptcy financial condition or other factors affecting those suppliers During fiscal 2009 we purchased

approximately 30% of our steel requirements from one vendor in the United States No other vendor accounted

for over 10% of our steel requirements during fiscal 2009 Due to unfavorable market conditions and our

inventory supply requirements during fiscal 2009 we purchased insignificant amounts of steel from foreign

suppliers Limiting purchases to domestic suppliers further reduces our available steel supply base Therefore

production cutbacks in the first half of fiscal 2009 or prolonged labor strike against one or more of our

principal domestic suppliers could have material adverse effect on our operations Furthermore if one or

more of our current suppliers is unable for financial or any other reason to continue in business or to produce

steel sufficient to meet our requirements essential supply of our primary raw materials could be temporarily

interrupted and our business could he adversely affected

Failure to retain or replace key personnel could hurt our operations

Our success depends to significant degree upon the efforts contributions and abilities of our senior

management plant managers and other highly skilled personnel including our sales executives These

executives and managers have many accumulated years of experience in our industry and have developed

personal relationships with our customers that are important to our business If we do not retain the services of

our key personnel or if we fail to adequately plan for the succession of such individuals our customer

relationships results of operations and financial condition may be adversely affected

If we are unable to enforce our intellectual property rights or if our intellectual property rights become

obsolete our competitive position could be adversely affected

We utilize variety of intellectual property rights in our services We have number of United States

patents pending patent applications and other proprietary rights including those relating to metal roofing

systems metal overhead doors our pier and header system our Long Bay System and our building

estimating and design system We also have several registered trademarks and pending registrations in the

United States We view our portfolio of process and design technologies as one of our competitive strengths

We may not be able to successfully preserve these intellectual property rights in the future and these rights

could he invalidated circumvented or challenged If we are unable to protect and maintain our intellectual

property rights or if there are any successful intellectual property challenges or infringement proceedings

against us our business and revenue could be materially and adversely affected

We incur costs to comply with environmental laws and have liabilities for environmental investigations

cleanups and claims

Because we emit and discharge pollutants into the environment own and operate real property that has

historically been used for industrial purposes and generate and handle hazardous substances and waste we
incur costs and liabilities to comply with environmental laws and regulations We may incur significant

additional costs as those laws and regulations or their enforcement change in the future if there is release of

hazardous substances into the environment or if historical release of hazardous substances or other
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contamination is identi bed The operations of our nianuf actur ig facilities are subject to stringent and complex

federal state and local environmental laws and regulations These include for example the federal Clean

Air Act and comparable state laws and regulations that iiiipose obligations related to air enlisSionS ii the

federal RCRA and comparable state laws that impose requirements for the storage treatment handling and

disposal ol waste Irom our facilities and iii the CERCLA and comparable state laws that regulate the

investigation and cleanup of hazardoUs substances that may have been released at properties currently or

previously owned or operated by us or locations to which we have sent waste for disposal Failure to comply

with these laws and regulations may trigger variety of administrative civil and criminal enforcement

measures including the assessment of monetary penalties the imposition of investigative or remedial

requirements personal injury property or natural resource damages claims and the issuance of orders enjoining

future operations For more information about costs we have incurred for environmental matters in recent

years see Item Legal Proceedings and Item Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial

Condition and Results of Operations

The industries in which we operate are highly competitive

We compete with all other alternative methods of building construction which may he viewed as more

traditional more aesthetically pleasing or having other advantages over our products In addition competition

in the metal components and metal buildings markets of the building industry and in the metal coil coating

segment is intense It is based primarily on

quality

service

onf me deli very

ability to provide added value in the design and engineering of buildings

price

speed of construction in buildings and coniponents and

personal relationships with customers

We compete with number of other manufacturers of metal components and engineered building systems

and providers of coil coating services ranging froni small local firms to large national brms In addition we

and other manufacturers of metal components and engineered building systems compete with alternative

niethods of building construction Ii these alternative building methods compete successfully against us such

competition could adversely affect us

in addition several of our competitors have recently been acquired by steel producers Competitors

owned by steel producers may have competitive advantage on raw materials that we do not enjoy Steel

producers may prioritize deliveries of raw materials to such competitors or provide them with more favorable

ricing both of which could enable them to offer products to customers at lower frices or accelerated delivery

schedules

Our stock price has beeii and iiiay continue to le volatile

The trading price of our common stock has fluctuated in the past and is subject to signi bcant fluctuations

in response to the following foctors some of which are beyond our control

variations in quarterly operating results

deviations in our earnings mom publicly disclosed forwardlooking guidance

declines in our revenues

changes in earnings estimates by analysts

our announcements of significant contracts acquisitions strategic partnerships or joint ventures
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general conditions in the metal components and engineered building systems industries

uncertainty about current global economic conditions

fluctuations in stock market price and volume and

other general economic conditions

During fiscal 2009 our closing stock price on the New York Stock Exchange ranged from high of

approximately $19.35 per share to low of approximately $1.60 per share In recent years the stock market in

general has experienced extreme price and volume fluctuations that have affected the market price for many

companies in industries similar to ours Some of these fluctuations have been unrelated to the operating

performance of the affected companies These market fluctuations may decrease the market price of our

common stock in the future

Acquisitions may be unsuccessful if we incorrectly predict operating results or are unable to identify and

complete future acquisitions and integrate acquired assets or businesses

We have history of expansion through acquisitions and we believe that if our industry continues to

consolidate our future success may depend in part on our ability to successfully complete acquisitions

Growing through acquisitions and managing that growth will require us to continue to invest in operational

financial and management information systems and to attract retain motivate and effectively manage our

employees Pursuing and integrating acquisitions including our acquisition of RCC involves number of

risks including

the risk of incorrect assumptions or estimates regarding the future results of the acquired business or

expected cost reductions or other synergies expected to be realized as result of acquiring the business

diversion of managements attention from existing operations

unexpected losses of key employees customers and suppliers of the acquired business

integrating the financial technological and management standards processes procedures and controls

of the acquired business with those of our existing operations and

increasing the scope geographic diversity and complexity of our operations

Although the majority of our growth strategy is organic in nature if we do pursue opportunistic

acquisitions we can provide no assurance that we will he successful in identifying or completing any

acquisitions or that any businesses or assets that we are able to acquire will be successfully integrated into our

existing business We cannot predict the effect if any that any announcement or consummation of an

acquisition would have on the trading prices of our securities

Acquisitions subjects us to numerous risks that could adversely affect our results of operations

If we pursue further acquisitions depending on conditions in the acquisition market it may be difficult or

impossible for us to identify businesses or operations for acquisition or we may not he able to make

acquisitions on terms that we consider economically acceptable Even if we are able to identify suitable

acquisition opportunities our acquisition strategy depends upon among other things our ability to obtain

financing and in some cases regulatory approvals including under the Hart-Scott-Rodino Act

Our incurrence of additional debt contingent liabilities and
expenses in connection with our acquisition

of RCC or in connection with
any

future acquisitions could have material adverse effect on our financial

condition and results of operations Furthermore our financial position and results of operations may fluctuate

significantly from period to period based on whether significant acquisitions are completed in particular

periods Competition for acquisitions is intense and may increase the cost of or cause us to refrain from

completing acquisitions
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Tue Convertible Ireferred Stock will be dilutive to oil stockholdeic Tue Convertible Preferred Stock

accrues dividends which iiiay he paid ii cash or in-kind dividends on the Convertible Preferred Stock

are paid ikiid they will dilute the ownership iterest .f our stockholders In addition the dividend ate

of the Convertible Preferred Stock will increase uipoii tile occurrence of certain events which constitute

defaults under the ternis of the Convertible Ireferred Stock which iiiay cause flirt/icr dilutio Further

more tile Convertible Preferred Stock also provides fin antidilution rig/its which may dilute the owner

ship iiterest of stockholdeis in the flituire

The Convertible Preferred Stock accrues dividends at rate per annum of 2.00% if paid inkind or at

rate per annum of t.00% if paid in cash unless and until such dividends are reduced to 0.00% which will

occur if ihe trading price per share of common stock equals or exceeds two times specified target price

which is equal to $1 .2745 as of November 2009 hut is subject to adjustments therealler for each trading

day during any period of 20 consecutive trading days occurring alter the 30month anniversary of October 20

2009

If dividends on the Convertible Preferred Stock are paid inkind it will dilute the ownership interest of

stockholders T7urtherniore upon the occurrence of default the applicable liVidend rate is subject to increase

by

600r/ per annum if the default is the result of failure by us after June 30 2011 to reserve and keep

available for issuance number ol shares of common stock equal to 110% of the number of shares of

common stock issuable upon conversion of all outstanding shares of Convertible Preferred Stock or

3.00% per annum for any other specified default

We do not have sufficient authorized and unissued shares of common stock to permit the conversion of

all 250000 shares of Convertible Preferred Stock owned by the CDR Funds The Company intends to submit

to shareholder vole at the annual meeting of stockholders of the Company proposal to amend the

certificate of incorporation of the Company to effect reverse stock split at conversion ratio of forS

for7 or ior9 If the shareholders vote in favor of the reverse stock
split at the annual meeting we expect

that following the completion of the reverse stock split the CDR Funds will he able to convert 00% of

their Preferred Shares into shares of common stock of the Company In the event that we do not increase the

number of authorized and unissued shares of common stock prior to June 30 2010 beginning on that date and

continuing until we receive stockholder approval for an increase in the number of shares available or

conversion of the Preferred Shares the CDR Funds will receive higher dividend rate per
share of

Convertible Preferred Stock owned by them than the ate that is currently payable on the Convertible Preferred

Stock

The conversion Irice of the Convertible Preferred Stock is subject to adjustment including if the

Company issues common stock or other securities below the thencurrent market price or during the first three

years after October 20 2009 below the thencurrent conversion price Adjustments to the conversion price

will dilute the ownership interest of stockholders

In connection with the Equity Investment we entered into stockholders agreement with the ClR
Funds pursuant to which the CD Funds have substantial governance and other rights and setting forth

certain terms and conditions regarding the Equity Investment and the ownership of the CDR Funds shares

of Convertible Preferred Stock Pursuant to the stockholders agreement with the CDR Funds subject to

certain ownership and other requirements and conditions the CDR Funds have the right to appoint

majority of directors to our board of directors including the Lead Director or Chairman of the Executive

Committee of our hoard of directors and have consent rights over variety of significant corporate and

Imnancing matters including subject to certain customary exceptions and speci0ed baskets sales and

acquisitions of assets issuances and redeniptions of equity incurrence of debt the declaration or payment of

extraordinary distributions or dividends and changes to the Companys line of business In addition the CDR
Funds are granted subscription rights under the terms and conditions of the stockholders agreement

Further effective as of the closing of the Equity Investnient the Company has taken all corporate action

amid tiled all election notices or other documentation with the New York Stock Exchange NYSE necessary

22



to elect to take advantage of the exemptions to the requirements of sections 303A.O1 303A.04 and 303A.05 of

the NYSE Listed Company Manual and for so long as we qualify as controlled company within the

meaning set forth in the NYSE Listed Company Manual or any similar provision in the rules of stock

exchange on which the securities of the Company are quoted or listed for trading we have agreed to use our

reasonable best efforts to take advantage of the exemptions therein Such exemptions exempt us from

compliance with the NYSEs requirements for companies listed on the NYSE to have majority of

independent directors nominating/corporate governance committee and compensation committee in

each case composed entirely of independent directors and charters for the nominating/corporate

governance committee and the compensation committee in each case addressing certain specified matters

The Convertible Preferred Stock issued in connection with the Equity Investment has substantial rights

and ranks senior to the common stock

Shares of our common stock rank junior as to dividend rights redemption payments and rights including

as to distribution of assets in
any liquidation dissolution or winding-up of the affairs of the Company and

otherwise to the shares of Convertible Preferred Stock issued to the CDR Funds in connection with the

Equity Investment The terms of the Convertible Preferred Stock entitle the holders thereof to vote on an as-

converted basis without taking into account any limitations on convertibility that may then be applicable with

the holders of common stock The CDR Funds have majority voting position and holders of common stock

are in the minority In addition certain actions by the Company including upon the occurrence of certain

specified defaults the adoption of an annual budget the hiring and firing or the changing of the compensa
tion of executive officers and the commitment resolution or agreement to effect

any
business combination

among others require the prior affirmative vote or written consent of the holders representing at least

majority of the then-outstanding shares of Convertible Preferred Stock voting together as separate class

This level of control together with the CDR Funds rights under the stockholders agreement could

discourage others from initiating any potential merger takeover or other change of control transaction that

may otherwise be beneficial to our business or our stockholders

Furthermore the terms of the Convertible Preferred Stock provide for anti-dilution rights which may
dilute the ownership interest of stockholders in the future and change of control redemption rights which may
entitle the holders of Convertible Preferred Stock to receive higher value for their shares of Convertible

Preferred Stock than the shares of common stock would receive in the event of change of control In

addition the terms of the Convertible Preferred Stock also provide that the CDR Funds participate in

common stock dividends receive preferred dividends and have preferential rights in liquidation including

make-whole rights

Increases in energy prices will increase our operating costs and we may be unable to pass all these

increases on to our customers in the form of higher prices for our products

Increases in energy prices will increase our operating costs and may reduce our profitability and cash

flows if we are unable to pass all the increases on to our customers We use energy in the manufacture and

transport of our products In particular our manufacturing plants use considerable electricity and natural gas

Consequently our operating costs typically increase if energy costs rise During periods of higher energy costs

we may not be able to recover our operating cost increases through price increases without reducing demand

for our products To the extent we are not able to recover these cost increases through price increases or

otherwise our profitability and cash how will he adversely impacted We partially hedge our exposure to

higher prices via fixed forward positions

Breaches of our information system security measures could disrupt our internal operations

We are dependent upon information technology for the distribution of information internally and also to our

customers and suppliers This information technology is subject to theft damage or interruption from variety of

sources including hut not limited to malicious computer viruses seculity breaches and defects in design Various

measures have been implemented to manage our risks related to information system and network disruptions but

system failure or breach of these measures could negatively impact our operations and financial results
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Our operations are sulject to hazards that izay cause persoilal in/lily 01 jroperty damage thereby sub

/ecting us to liabilities and possible losses which iiiay not be covered by insurance

Our workers are subject to the usual hazards associated with work in manufacturing environmenls

Operating hazards can cause personal injury and loss of life as well as damage to or destruclion of business

personal property and possible environmental impairment We are sUbject to either deductible or selfinsured

retention SIR aniounts per claim or occurrence under our Property/Casually insurance programs as well as

an individual sloploss limit per claim under our group medical insurance plan We maintain insurance

coverage to transfer risk with aggregate and peroc inence limits and deductible or retention levels thai we

believe are consistent with industry practice The transfer of risk through insurance cannot guarantee that

coverage will be available tor every loss or liability that we may incur in our operations

Exposures that could create insured or uninsured liabilities are difficult to assess and quantify due to

unknown factors including but not limited to iniury frequency and severity natural disasters terrorism threats

thirdparty liability and claims that are incurred but not reported IBNR Although we engage thudparty

actuarial professionals to assist us in determining our prolable future loss exposure it is possible that claims

or costs could exceed our estimates or our insurance limits or could be uninsurable In such instances we

might be required to use working capital to satisfy these losses rather than to maintain or expand our

operations which could materially and adversely affect our operating results and our financial condition

Item lB Unresolved Staff Conents

There are no unresolved stalf comments outstanding with the Securities and Exchange Commission at

this time

Item Properties

As of November 2009 we conduct manu facluring operations at the fallowing facilities
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Facility

Domestic

Chandler Arizona

Tolleson Arizona

Atwater California

Rancho Cucamonga California

Add Georgia

Lithia Springs Georgia

Douglasville Georgia

Marietta Georgia

Shelbyvifle Indiana

Monticello Iowa

Oskaloosa Iowa

Nicholasvilte Kentucky

Jackson Mississippi

Jackson Mississippi

Hernando Mississippi

Omaha Nebraska

Rome New York

Caryville Tennessee

Elizahethton Tennessee

Lexington Tennessee

Memphis Tennessee

Ennis Texas

Houston Texas

Houston Texas

Houston Texas

Houston Texas

Houston Texas

Lubbock Texas

San Antonio Texas

Stafford Texas

Salt Lake City Utah

Spokane Washington

Foreign

Monterrey Mexico

Products

Doors and related metal components

Metal components

Engineered building systems2

Metal coil coating

Metal componentsl
Metal components3
Doors and related metal components

Metal coil coating

Metal components

Engineered building systems4
Metal componentsS
Metal componentsS
Metal components9
Metal coil coating

Metal components
Metal componentsS
Metal components5

Engineered building systems4

Engineered building systems4

Engineered building systems6
Metal coil coating

Metal components
Metal components3
Metal coil coating

Engineered building systems4

Engineered building systems7

Doors and related metal components

Metal components
Metal componentsS

Metal components8

Metal components3

Engineered building systems4

Engineered building systems6

Secondary structures and metal roof and wall systems

End walls secondary structures and metal roof and wall systems for components and engineered building

systems

Full components product range

Primary structures secondary structures and metal roof and wall systems for engineered building systems

Metal roof and wall systems

Primary structures for engineered building systems

Structural steel

Insulated panel systems

Closed during fiscal 2008 and 2009 to be retooled to manufacture insulated panel systems

We also operate six NCI Metal Depots facilities that sell our products directly to the public In addition

we lease three facilities that serve as distribution centers for our sectional doors We also maintain several

drafting office facilities in various states We have short-term leases for these additional facilities We believe

that our present facilities are adequate for our current and projected operations

Additionally we own approximately acres of land in Houston Texas and have 60000 square
foot

facility that is used as our principal executive and administrative offices We also own approximately acres

of land at another location in Houston adjacent to one of our manufacturing facilities We own approximately

15 acres of undeveloped land adjacent to our Garco facility in Spokane Washington

Square Owned or

Feet Leased

37975

70956

219870

111611

78809

125081

83775

194836

71734

232368

74771

26943

171790

354350

132752

55460

83500

218430

228113

140504

65895

68627

335756

36509

497856

117208

42500

95361

42400

72504

93508

157000

Leased

Owned

Owned

Owned

Owned

Owned

Owned

Leased

Owned

Owned

Owned

Owned

Owned

Owned

Owned

Owned

Owned

Owned

Leased

Owned

Owned

Owned

Owned

Owned

Owned

Owned

Owned

Owned

Owned

Leased

Owned

Owned

246075 Owned

25



As result of the current market downturn we began phased process to resize and realign our

manufacturing operations The purpose ol these closures is to rationalize our least efficient facilities and to

retool certain of these facilities to allow us to better utilize our assets and expand into new markets or helter

provide products to our customers such as insulated panel systems As result of the restructuring we expect

to realize an annualized fixed cost savings in the amount of approximately $120 iiiillion upon the lull

implementation of this three phase restructuring plan

In November 2008 we approved the Phase plan to close three of our engineered building systems

manu facturing plants In addition as part of the restructuring we implemented general employee reduction

program Specifically one of our facilities which was closed during Oscal 2008 is being retooled far use in

connection with our insulated panel systems product line We have incurred facility closure costs of

approximately $3.4 million related to these Phase facility closures Most of these expenses were recorded

during the lirst and second quarters of fiscal 2009 We expect only iiiinor additional costs as we wind down

Phase of our restructuring plan

In February 2X9 we approved the Phase II plan to close one of our facilities within the engineered building

systems segment in continuing ellort to rationalize our least efficient facilities We have incurred
facility

closure

costs of $0.9 million related to Ibis facility Most of these expenses were recorded during the second quarter of fiscal

2X9 We expect only minor additional costs as we wind down Phase II of our restructuring plan

In April 2009 we approved the Phase ill plan to close or idle three of our manufacturing facilities within

the engineered building systems segment and two facilities within the metal components segnieni in

continuing elton to rationalize our least eflicient facilities In addition manu factuning at one of our metal

components facilities was temporarily suspended and currently functions as distribution and customer service

site As part of the restructuring we also added to the general employee reduction program We have incurred

facility closure costs of approximately $7.0 million related to these Phase Ill facility closures and expect to

incur additional facility closure costs of $1 .6 million in fiscal 2010

During fiscal 208 we closed our residential door facility in 1loListon Texas and we sold the facility in

April 2008 During fiscal 2007 we closed our nianulactuning facility located in Hamilton Ontario and we

sold the facility in August 2007 We also sold our Colonial Heights Virginia facility in August 2007 and built

new larger facility which was completed in July 2007 This facility is also located in Colonial Heights

Virginia During fiscal 2003 we closed our manufacturing facility located in Southlake Texas which is

currently under contract to be sold We have new 1500 square
loot olhce building in irving Texas that

replaced our oltice in Southlake Texas During fiscal 2002 we closed our manufacturing facility located in

Chester South Carolina and we sold this facility in January 2007

Item Legal Proceedings

From time to time we are involved in various legal proceedings and contingencies considered to be in the

ordinary course of business While we are not able to predict whether we will incur any liability in excess of

insurance coverages or to accurately estimate the damages or the range of damages if ally we might incur in

connection with these legal proceedings we believe these legal proceedings and claims will not have

material adverse effect on our business consolidated tijiancial position or results of operations

Item Submission of Matters to Vote of Security Holders

Not applicable
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PART II

Item Market for Registrants Common Equity Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of

Equity Securities

PRICE RANGE OF COMMON STOCK

Our common stock is listed on the NYSE under the symbol NCS As of December 18 2009 there were

79 holders of record and an estimated 10000 beneficial owners of our common stock The following table sets

forth the quarterly high and low sale prices of our common stock as reported by the NYSE for the prior two

fiscal
years

We have never paid dividends on our common stock and the terms of our Amended Credit

Agreement and ABL Facility restrict our ability to do so

Fiscal Year 2009

Quarter Ended High Low

February $19.35 $11.56

May $13.26 1.76

August 7.50 1.81

November 5.12 1.60

Fiscal Year 2008

Quarter Ended High Low

January 27 $39.90 $23.06

April 27 $34.13 $19.99

July 27 $39.81 $23.20

November $40.95 $14.25

The following table shows our purchases of our common stock during the fourth quarter of fiscal 2009

ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

Maximum
Number or

Total Number Approximate
of Shares Dollar Value of

Purchased as Part Shares that May
Total Nuniber Average Price of Publicly Yet be Purchased
of Shares Paid per Share Announced Plans Under the Plans or

Period Purchased1 or Unit or Programs Programs1

August 2009 to August 30
2009 82 3.72 646092

August 31 2009 to September 27
2009 646092

September 28 2009 to November

2009 145530 2.51 646092

Total 145612 2.51 646092

Our board of directors has authorized stock repurchase program Subject to applicable federal securities

law such purchases occur at times and in amounts that we deem appropriate Shares repurchased are used

primarily for later re-issuance in connection with our equity incentive and 401k profit sharing plans On

February 28 2007 we publicly announced that our hoard of directors authorized the repurchase of an

additional 1.0 million shares of our common stock There is no time limit on the duration of the program

Although we did not repurchase any shares of our common stock during fiscal 2009 we did withhold

shares of restricted stock to satisfy tax withholding obligations arising in connection with the vesting of

awards of restricted stock At November 2009 there were 0.6 million shares remaining authorized for

repurchase under the program
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STOCK PERFORMANCE CHART

The following chart compares the yearly percentage change in the cumulative stockholder return on our

common stock Irom November 2004 to the end of the Fiscal year ended Novemher 2009 with the

cumulative total return on the New York Stock Exchange Index and the Heniscott Industry Group 634

General Building Materials peer group The comparison assumes too was invested on November 2004

in our common stock and in each of the regoing indices and assumes reinvestment of dividends
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COMPARISON OF 5-YEAR CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN
AMONG NCI BUILDING SYSTEMS INC

NYSE MARKET INDEX AND HEMSCOTT GROUP INDEX

NCI BUILDING SYSTEMS INC HEMSCOTT GROUP INDEX

NYSEMARKETINDEX

ASSUMES $100 INVESTEI ON NOV 2004

ASSUMES DIVIDEND REINVESTED

FISCAL YEAR ENDING NOV 2009

In accordance with the rules and regulalions of the SEC the above stock pertormance chart shall not he

deemed to be soliciting niaterial or to be filed with the SEC or subject to Regulations 4A or 4C of the

Securities Exchange Act of 1934 the Exchange Act or to the liabilities of Section 18 oF the Exchange Act

and shall not be deemed to he incorporated by reference into any tiling under the Securities Act of 1933 or

the Exchange Act notwithstanding any general incorporation by reterence ot this proxy statement into any

other filed document

2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009
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Item Selected Financial Data

The selected financial data for each of the three fiscal
years ended November 2009 and as of

November 2009 and November 2008 has been derived from the audited Consolidated Financial

Statements included elsewhere herein The selected financial data for each of the two fiscal years ended

October 29 2006 and as of October 28 2007 October 29 2006 and October 29 2005 have been derived from

audited Consolidated Financial Statements not included herein The following data should be read in

conjunction with Item Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of

Operations and the audited Consolidated Financial Statements and the notes thereto included under Item
Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

2009 20082 2007 2006 2005

In thousands except per share data

Sales 967923 $1764159 $1625068 $1571183 $1130066

Net income loss 746964i 788813 63729 73796 55951

Net income loss applicable to

common shares 758677

Earnings loss per share

Basic 34.06 4.08 3.25 3.70 2.73

Diluted 34.061 4.053 3.06 3.45 2.68

Cash flow from operating activities 95370 40194 137625 121514 118267

Total assets 613848 1380701 1343058 1299701 990219

Total debt 150249 474400 497037 497984 373000

Convertible Preferred Stock 222815

Stockholders equity 49665 623829 539696 498409 444144

Diluted
average common shares 220134 19486 20793 21395 20857

Includes goodwill and other intangible asset impairment of $622.6 million $600.0 million after tax debt

extinguishment and refinancing costs of $100.3 million $94.1 million after tax lower of cost or market

charge of $40.0 million $25.8 million after tax change in control charges of $1 1.2 million $6.9 million

after tax restructuring charges of $9.1 million $5.6 million after tax asset impairments of $6.3 million

$3.9 million after tax interest rate swap of $3.1 million $1.9 million after tax and environmental and

other contingencies of $1.1 million $0.7 million after tax in fiscal 2009

Fiscal 2008 includes 53 weeks of operating activity

Includes executive retirement costs of $2.9 million $1.8 million after tax lower of cost or market charge

of $2.7 million $1.6 million after tax restructuring charges of $1.1 million $0.7 million after tax and

asset impairments of $0.2 million $0.12 million after tax in fiscal 2008

In October 2009 we consummated an exchange offer to acquire all our 2.125% Convertible Senior Subor
dinated Notes due 2024 in an exchange for cash and 70.2 million shares of our common stock

Item Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

OVERVIEW

We are one of North Americas largest integrated manufacturers and marketers of metal products for the

non-residential construction industry We provide metal coil coating services and design engineer manufacture

and market metal components and engineered building systems primarily for non-residential construction use

We manufacture and distribute extensive lines of metal products for the non-residential construction market

under multiple brand names through nationwide network of plants and distribution centers We sell our

products for both new construction and repair and retrofit applications

Metal components offers builders designers architects and end-users several advantages including lower

long-term costs longer life attractive aesthetics and design flexibility Similarly engineered building systems
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oiler number of advantages over traditional construction alternatives including shorter construction time

more efficient use of materials lower construction costs greater ease of expansion and lower maintenance

costs

We use 52/53 week year
with our fiscal year end on the Sunday closest to October 31 As result our

lourth quarter of Fiscal 2008 included an additional week ol operating activity

We assess performance across our business segments by analyzing and evaluating gross profit

operating income and ii nonlinancial efficiency indicators such as revenue per employee man hours per ton

of steel produced and shipped tons p_i employee In assessing our overall hnaiicial performance we regard

return on adjusted operating assets as well as growth iii earnings per share as key indicators of shareholder

val Lie

Recap ikdizatioi Plan and Refinancing Transaction

On October 20 2009 we issued and sold to the CDR Funds 250000 shares of Convertible Preferred

Stock for an aggregate purchase price of $250.0 million The Preferred Shares are convertible into shares of

our common stock and represent 68.4% of our voting and common stock on an asconverted basis

As of December 21 2009 the Preferred Shares are convertible into 196 million shares of common

stock at conversion price of $12748 However as of that date only approximately 8.4 million shares of

coniinon stock were authorized and unissued and therefore the CDR Funds could not fully convert the

Preferred Shares To the extent that the CDR Funds opt to convert their Preferred Shares as of December 21

2009 their conversion right is limited to conversion of their Preferred Shares into the approximately 8.4 million

shares of common stock that are currently authorized and unissued We intend to submit to shareholder vole

at our annual meeting of shareholders proposal to amend the Companys certificate of incorporation to

effect reverse stock split of the common stcck of the Company We expect the shareholders to vote in favor

of the reverse stock split at the annual meeting and we expect that following the completion of the reverse

stock split the CDR FLinds will be able to convert 100% of their Preferred Shares into shares of common

stock During fiscal 2009 we recorded an initial beneficial conversion feature of $10.5 million and the

remaining $230.9 million of the beneficial conversion feature will be recognized when the contingency related

to the availability of authorized shares is resolved

Dividends on the Convertible Preferred Stock are payable on cumulative daily basis as if and when

declared by our hoard of directors at rate per annum of 12% of the liquidation preference of $1 000 per

Preferred Share subject to adjustment under certain circumstances if paid nkind or at rate per annum of

8% of the liquidation preference of $1000 per Preferred Share subject to adjustment under certain

circumstances if paid in cash We have the right to choose whether dividends are paid in cash or inkind

subject to the conditions of the Amended Credit Agreement and ABL Facility including being contractually

Ii mited in our ability to pay
cash dividends until the first quarter of fiscal 2011 under the Amended Credit

Agreement and October 20 2010 under the ABL Facility except br certain specilied

Simultaneously with the closing of the Equily Investment we look the following actions together with

the Equity Investment the Recapilal ation Plan

we refinance our existing credit agreement as in effect prior to such date the Credit Agreement

which was due to mature on June 18 2010 by repaymg approximately $143 million in principal

amount of the approximately $293 million in principal amount then outstanding and amending the

terms and extending the maturity of the remaining $150 million balance of the term loans The

Amended Credit Agreement requires quarterly principal payments of 0.25% of the principal amount of

the term loan then outstanding as of the last day of each quarter and Ii nal payment of approxiiiiitely

$13 million in principal at maturity on April 20 2014

we entered into the ABL Facility an assetbased revolving credit facility agreement
with maximum

available amount of up to 125 million which has an additional $50 million incremental credit facility

The ABL Facility replaces the revolving credit facility and letters of credit subfacility tinder our Credit

Agreement which expired on June 2009 The ABE Facility has maturity of April 20 2014 and
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includes borrowing capacity of up to $25 million for letters of credit and up to $10 million for

swingline borrowings

The refinancing of our term loan and our entry into the revolving credit facility are further described in

Debt Amended Credit Agreement and Debt ABL Facility below

In connection with the closing of the Equity Investment we also completed an exchange offer the

Exchange Offer to acquire the $180 million of our then-outstanding 2.125% Convertible Senior Subordi

nated Notes due 2024 the Convertible Notes fir an aggregate combination of $90.0 million in cash and

70.2 million shares of common stock The Exchange Offer is further described in Debt Convertible Notes

below

Fiscal 2009 Overview

In fiscal 2009 we survived the deepest decline in non-residential construction in the 44
years since

McGraw-Hill has been compiling data and we have emerged with strengthened financial position with the

completion of our refinancing We now have the resources to withstand the continued weakness projected for

our markets and to re-start our growth strategy We are committed to significantly re-building the value of our

Company over the next several years

Business conditions in our fourth quarter of fiscal 2009 continued to be difficult across all our markets

According to McGraw-Hill statistics non-residential construction activity measured in square feet was down

47% in calendar year to date through October 2009 compared to the same period in calendar 2008 Our

traditionally strong commercial and industrial markets were even weaker down 60% in calendar year to date

through October 2009 compared to the same period in calendar 2008 At the same time steel prices in fiscal

2009 declined 34% compared to fiscal 2008

The AlAs Architectural Billing Index published for October indicated that inquiry levels have somewhat

stabilized and remain positive but billings are still negative McGraw-Hill is now forecasting that non
residential construction activity measured in square feet will be 42% lower in calendar 2009 compared to

calendar 2008 Steel prices have increased from the June of 2009 levels but were 34% lower in fiscal 2009

than the comparable period of 2008 according to the CRU North American Steel price index

Industry Conditions

Our sales and earnings are influenced by general economic conditions interest rates the price of steel

relative to other building materials the level of non-residential construction activity roof repair and retrofit

demand and the availability and cost of financing for construction projects

The overall decline in economic conditions beginning in the third quarter of 2008 has reduced demand

for our products and adversely affected our business In addition the tightening of credit in financial markets

over the same period has adversely affected the ability of our customers to obtain financing for construction

projects As result we have experienced decreases in and cancellations of orders for our products and the

ability of our customers to make payments has been adversely affected Similar factors could cause our

suppliers to experience financial distress or bankruptcy resulting in temporary raw material shortages The

lack of credit also adversely affects non-residential construction which is the focus of our business

Over the same period there has been significant volatility in the price of steel the primary raw material

in our production process In fiscal 2009 steel prices decreased at precipitous rate until July 2009 when steel

prices began to increase According to the CRU North American Steel Price Index steel prices were 36%
lower in October 2009 compared with October 2008 This unusual level of volatility has negatively impacted

our business First in the first two quarters of fiscal 2009 we wrote down inventory to net realizable value

given these declines because our sales volume was significantly lower than previously anticipated while raw

material prices have declined more rapidly than anticipated Second some customers have delayed projects

waiting to see where steel prices would bottom out
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The uncertainty surrounding future economic activity levels and the tightening of credit availability have

resulted in signihcantly decreased activity levels for our business During fiscal 2009 our sales volumes were

significantly below our expectations primarily in our engineered buildings and components segments See

Liquidity and Capital Resources Debt When we began liscal 2009 McGrawHill was predicting

2Yr decline in nonresidential construction in 2009 compared to 2108 Subsequently McGrawHill revised its

forecast further downward and as of October 2009 was predicting 42% squarefootage decline in lion

residential construction activity in 2009 compared to 2008 McGrawHill has also reported 42.2% reduction

in lowrise nonresidential less than stories squareiootage starts during fiscal 2009 compared with fiscal

2008

As result of the current market downturn we began phased process to resize and realign our

manufacturing operations The purpose of these closures is to rationalize our least efficient facilities and to

retool certain of these facilities to allow us to better utilize our assets and expand into new markets or better

provide products to our customers such as insulated panel systems As result of the restructuring we expect

to realize an annualized flxed cost savings in the amount of approximately $120 million upon full

implementation ot this three phase resirLiclurilig plaii

In November 2008 we approved the Phase plan to close three of our engineered building systems

nianulacturing plants In addition part of the restructuring we implemented general employee reduction

progllm Specifically one ot our facilities which was closed during fiscal 2008 is being retooled br use in

connection with our insulated panel systenis product line We have incurred facility closure costs of

approximately $3.4 million related to these Phase facility closures Most of these expenses were recorded

during the first and second quarters of fiscal 2009 We expect only minor additional costs as we wind down

Phase of our restructuring plan

In February 2009 we approved the Phase II plan to close one of our facilities within the engineered

building systems segment in continuing etlort to rationalize our least efficient facilities We have incurred

facility closure costs of $0.9 million related to this facility Most of these expenses were recorded during the

second quarter of fiscal 2009 We expect only minor additional costs as we wind down Phase II ol our

restructuring plan

In April 2009 we approved the Phase Ill plan to close or idle three of our manu tacturing facilities within

the engineered building systems segment and two facilities within the metal components segnient in

continuing effort to rationalize our least etticient facilities In addition manutacturing at one of our metal

components facilities was temporarily suspended and currently functions as distribution and customer service

site As part of the restructuring we also added to the general employee reduction program We have incurred

facility closure costs of approximately $7.0 million related to these Phase lU facility closures and expect to

incur additional facility closure costs ot $1.6 million in fiscal 2010

As result of the management actions taken in the Recapitalization Plan and restructuring plan we have

right sized our cost structure and solidi fed our liquidity position
which we believe will enable us to withstand

sustained downturn in our industry

One ot the primary challenges we face both short and long term is the volatility in the price ot steel Our

business is heavily dependent on the price and supply of steel For the fiscal year ended November 2009

steel represented approximately 71 Yr of our costs of goods sold The steel industry is highly cyclical in nature

and steel prices have been volatile in recent years and may rcmai ii volatile in the future Steel
prices are

influenced by numerous lactors beyond our control including general economic conditions domestically and

internationally competition labor costs proltct ion costs iii port duties and other trade restrictions For

additional discussion of steel prices see Item 7A Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market

Ri sk

During the tiscal year ended November 2009 we experienced significant decrease in the value of our

total inventory primarily due to the decrease in volume amid decreases in the price of steel During the fiscal

year ended November 2008 we experienced significant increases in the value of our total inventory
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primarily due to the substantial increases in the price of steel as well as significant increases in our fuel and

transportation costs

We do not have any long-term contracts for the purchase of steel and normally do not maintain an

inventory of steel in excess of our current production requirements However from time to time we may
purchase steel in advance of announced steel price increases We can give no assurance that steel will remain

available or that prices will not continue to he volatile While most of our contracts have escalation clauses

that allow us under certain circumstances to pass along all or portion of increases in the price of steel after

the date of the contract but prior to delivery we may for competitive or other reasons not be able to pass

such price increases along If the available supply of steel declines we could experience price increases that

we are not able to pass on to the end users deterioration of service from our suppliers or interruptions or

delays that may cause us not to meet delivery schedules to our customers Any of these problems could

adversely affect our results of operations and financial condition For additional discussion please see Item
Business Raw Materials Item IA Risk Factors We rely on few major suppliers for our supply of

steel which makes us more vulnerable to supply constraints and pricing pressure as well as the financial

condition of those suppliers Liquidity and Capital Resources Steel Prices and Item 7A Quantitative

and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk Steel Prices

In assessing the state of the metal construction market we rely upon various industry associations third

party research and various government reports such as industrial production and capacity utilization One such

industry association is the Metal Building Manufacturers Association MBMA which provides summary
member sales information and promotes the design and construction of metal buildings and metal roofing

systems Another is McGraw-Hill Construction Information Group which we look to for reports of actual and

forecasted growth in various construction related industries including the overall non-residential construction

market McGraw-Hill Constructions forecast for calendar 2010 indicates total non-residential construction

reduction of 4% in square footage and reduction of 2% in dollar value prior to increasing in 2011

Additionally we review the American Institute of Architects
survey for inquiry and billing activity for the

industrial commercial and institutional sectors

33



RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The liowing table presents as percentage of sales certain selected consolidated flnancial data for the

periods indicated

Fiscal year elided

November November October 28
2009 2008 2007

Saics 100.0% 00.0/r

Cost of sales 77.3 74.9 75.2

Lower of cost or market adjustment 4.1 0.2

Asset impairments
0.7

Gross prot 17.4 24.9 24.8

Selling general and administrative expenses
21.6 16.1 16.7

Goodwill and other intangible asset impairments 64.3

Restructuring charge 0.9

Change in control charges 1.2

Income loss from operations
70.6 8.8

Interest income 0.1 0.0

Interest expense 2.1 1.3 1.8

Debt extinguishment and refinancing costs 10.3

Other expense income net 0.2 0.1 0.1

Income loss before income taxes 82.8 7.4 6.4

Provision benel1 for income taxes 5.6 2.9 2.5

Net income loss 77.2% 4.5Yc

SUPPLEMENTARY BUSINESS SEGMENT INFORMATION

We have aggregated our operations into three reportable segments based upon similarities in product

lines manufacturing processes marketing and management of our businesses metal coil coating metal

components and engineered building systems All business segments operate primarily in the nonresidential

construction market Sales and earnings are influenced by general economic conditions the level of non

residential construct ion activity metal roof repair and retrofit demand and tile availability aild terms of

fin anci ng available for construction

Products of all our business segnlellts use similar basic raw materials The metal coil coating segment

consists of cleaning treating painting and slitting continuoLls steel coils before tile steel is fabricated for use

by construction and industrial users The metal components segment products include metal roof and wall

paiiels doors metal partitions metal trim and other related accessories The engineered building systems

segment includes tile manufacturing of main frames Long l3ay Systems and valueadded engineering and

drafting which are typically not part of metal components or metal coil coating products or services Tile

reporting segments follow tile same accounting policies used for our Consolidated Finailcial Statements

We evaluate segments pertorniaice based primarily upon operating income before corllorate expenses

Intersegnlent sales are recorded based on standard material costs plus standard markup to cover labor and

overhead and consist of hotrolled light gauge painted and slit material and other services provided by tile

metal coil coatillg segment to both the metal components and engineered building systelTis segments

ii building components provided by tile metal components segment to the engineered building systems

segment and iii structural franiimig provided by tile engineered building systenls segmemlt to the metal

components segment
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Corporate assets consist primarily of cash hut also include deferred financing costs deferred taxes and

property plant and equipment associated with our headquarters in Houston Texas These items and income

and expenses related to these items are not allocated to the business segments Segment information is

included in Note 25 of our Consolidated Financial Statements

The following table represents sales operating income and total assets attributable to these business

segments for the periods indicated in thousands except percentages

2009 2008 2007

Sales

Metal coil coating 169897 18 305657 17 272543 16

Metal components 458734 47 715255 41 663331 41

Engineered building systems 541609 56 1110534 63 1021544 63

Intersegment sales 202317 21 367287 21 332350 20
Total net sales 967923 100 $1764159 100 $1625068 100

Operating income loss

Metal coil coating 99631 29381 25136

Metal components 129975 82094 49609

Engineered building systems 389309 107851 113265

Corporate 64583 64616 56276

Total operating income loss of

sales $683498 154710 131734

Unallocated other expense 117990 24330 26909

Income loss before income taxes $801488 130380 104825

Total assets as of fiscal year end 2009 and

2008

Metal coil coating 57208 196615 14

Metal components 159690 26 371464 27

Engineered building systems 241260 39 716671 52

Corporate 155690 26 95951

Total assets 613848 100 $1380701 100

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS FOR FISCAL 2009 COMPARED TO FISCAL 2008

Consolidated sales for fiscal 2009 decreased 45.1 or $796.2 million from fiscal 2008 This decrease

resulted from 37.9% decrease in external tonnage volumes partially offset by higher relative sales prices as

result of higher steel costs in the engineered building systems and metal components segments Lower

tonnage volumes in all three of our segments in fiscal 2009 compared with fiscal 2008 were driven by reduced

demand for such products which is affirmed by the 42.2% reduction in low-rise non-residential less than

stories square-footage starts as reported by McGraw Hill during fiscal 2009 compared with fiscal 2008

Consolidated cost of sales decreased by 43.1% for fiscal 2009 compared to fiscal 2008 Gross margins

were 17.4% for fiscal 2009 compared to 24.9% for the prior fiscal year During fiscal 2009 we recorded

$40.0 million inventory adjustment which accounted for 4.1% of the reduction in the gross margin percentage

to adjust the carrying amount on certain raw material inventory to the lower of cost or market because this

inventory exceeded our current estimates of net realizable value less normal profit margins Although we have

taken steps to reduce our variable and fixed costs throughout the year margins decreased across all three

segments due to increased price competition and allocation of fixed costs over substantially reduced sales In

addition we recorded $6.3 million asset impairment charge which accounted for 0.6% of the reduction in
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gross margin percentage br certain assets primarily within the engineered building systems Segnient and at

our corporate operations

ft/Idol Oji coating sales decreased 44.4 or $135.8 million to $169.9 million in liscal 2009 compared

to $305.7 million in the prior fiscal year
Sales to third parties for fiscal 2009 decreased 45 1% to $51 million

Irom $97.0 million in the prior fiscal year as result of 16 1% decrease in external tonnage volumes

19.9% decrease in sales prices and shift in product mix from package sales of coated steel products to toll

processing revenue or coating services These results are primarily driven by reduced demand and increased

competition in the market resulting from the general weakness of nonresidential construction activity in fiscal

2009 In addition there was $92.0 million decrease in intersegment sales during fiscal 2009 compared with

fiscal 2008 which represents 44 1% reduction in intersegnient volume Metal coil coating thirdparty sales

accounted for 5.5% of total consolidated thirdparty sales in both fiscal 2009 and 2008

Operating income loss of the metal coil coating segment decreased in fiscal 2009 to loss oF

$99.6 million compared to income of $29.4 mill ion in the prior fiscal year primarily due to goodwill and

other intangible asset impairments of $99.0 million an incremental $5.4 million charge to adjust inventory to

lower of cost or market and remaining $26.3 million decrease in gross profit due to the declines iii volumes

and relative sales prices discussed above The gross margins were lower primarily due to lower relative sales

prices
than in the prior year 16 decrease in tonnage volumes on sales to third parties compared to the

prior year
and 38.5% decrease in intersegment tonnage sold compared to the prior year In addition

operating income in fiscal 2008 included an out of period pretax charge of $0.9 million to correct

workin-process standard costs

Metal components sales decreased 35.9% or $256.5 million to $458.7 million in liscal 209 compared to

$7 5.3 million in the prior fiscal year Sales were down priolari ly
due to 30.5% decrease in external toils

shipped compared to the prior year Sales to third parties for fiscal 2009 decreased $210.9 iii illion to

$389.1 million from $600.0 million in the
prior

fiscal year The remaining $45.6 million represents similar

decrease in inlersegnient sales These results are primarily driven by reduced demand and increased

competition in the market resulting Ironi the general weakness of nonresidential construction activity in 2009

Metal components thirdparty sales accounted for 40.2% of total consolidated thirdparty sales in fiscal 2009

compared to 34.0% in fiscal 2008

Operating income loss of the metal components segment decreased in fiscal 2009 to loss of

130.0 million compared to income of $82 million in the prior fiscal year This $212.1 million decrease

resulted from charges related to goodwill and other intangible asset impairments of $147.2 million

17.2 million inventory lower of cost or market adjustment $0.3 million increase in restructuring charges

and remaining $60.3 million decrease in gross prolit due to the declines in volumes and relative sales prices

noted above all partially offset by $13.7 million decrease in selling and administrative expenses We have

recorded restructuring charges of $1 .3 million in fiscal 2009 related to he closure of one of our manufacturing

plants compared to restructuring charges of $1 .0 million in fiscal 2008 to exit our residential overhead door

product line The 3.4 million decrease in selling and administrative expenses was Pr 1ari ly due to

$10.2 mil lion decrease in wage and benelit costs due to lower headcount and incentive compensation
and

across the board decreases in other various expenses in response
to the lower levels of business activity

Engineered building systems ca/es decreased 51.2% or $568.9 million to $541 .6 million in fiscal 2009

compared to $1 .11 billion in the prior fiscal year This decrease resulted from 52 1% decrease in external

tons shipped partially offset by slightly higher average sales prices Sales to third parties for fiscal 2009

decreased $541 .6 million to $525.6 million from $1 .07 billion in the prior fiscal year Inlersegment sales

decreased by $27.3 million compared to fiscal 2008 These results are primarily driven by reduced demand

increased competition in the miiarket and the impact of the significant rise in steel prices in the second half of

fiscal 2008 that declined throughout fiscal 2009 Engineered building systems thirdparty sales accounted lbr

54.3% of total consolidated thirdparty sales ill fiscal 2009 compared to 60.5% in fiscal 2008

Operating income loss of the engineered building systems segment decreased in fiscal 2009 to loss of

$389.3 million compared to income of $107.9 million in the prior fiscal year This $497.2 million decrease

resulted from charges related to goodwill and other intangible asset impairments of $376.4 milliomi



restructuring charges of $7.4 million in fiscal 2009 $14.7 million inventory lower of cost or market

adjustment $4.2 million asset impairment charge and remaining $141.0 million decrease in gross profit

due to the declines in volumes and relative sales prices noted above partially offset by $46.5 million

decrease in selling and administrative expenses The $46.5 million decrease in selling and administrative

expenses was primarily due to $40.9 million decrease in wage and benefit costs and temporary labor costs

due to lower headcount and lower incentive compensation and across the board decreases in other various

expenses in response to the lower levels of business activity

Consolidated selling general and administrative expenses consisting of engineering drafting selling and

administrative costs decreased to $209.6 million in fiscal 2009 compared to $283.6 million in the prior fiscal

year The decrease in selling and administrative expenses was primarily due to $59.3 million decrease in

wage and benefit costs and temporary labor costs due to lower headcount and lower incentive compensation

We also had $2.9 million decrease in executive retirement costs due primarily to accelerated vesting of

certain restricted stock grants of former executives upon retirement in fiscal 2008 The remaining decrease was

the result of $2.5 million decrease in pre-tax share-based compensation costs $2.2 million decrease in bad

debt expense $1.7 million decrease in travel and entertainment costs $1.6 million decrease in advertising

costs and decreases in other various expenses due to managed lower levels of activity As percentage of

sales selling general and administrative expenses were 21.7% for fiscal 2009 compared to 16.1% for fiscal

2008

Consolidated goodwill and other intangible asset impairment was $622.6 million in fiscal 2009 compared

with no amount recorded in the prior fiscal year This increase impacted all three of our reporting segments

and was the result of the reduction of our future cash flow projections in the first quarter of fiscal 2009 our

lowering projected cash flows and implementing Phase III of our restructuring plan in the second quarter of

fiscal 2009

Consolidated restructuring charge increased to $9.1 million in fiscal 2009 compared with $1 .1 million in

the prior years period This increase was primarily related to our plan to close six of our engineered building

systems manufacturing plants The purpose of these closures was to rationalize our least efficient facilities and

to retool certain of these facilities to allow us to better utilize our assets and expand into new markets or

better provide products to our customers The $0.9 million charge in the prior year was related to the plan to

exit our residential overhead door product line included in our metal components segment

Consolidated change in control charges for fiscal 2009 in the amount of $11.2 million related primarily

to $9 million in share-based compensation expense upon the accelerated vesting of our stock incentive plans

upon the change in control of our Company We also incurred $1.5 million charge related to new director

and officer insurance policy upon the majority change of our hoard of directors

Consolidated interest income for fiscal 2009 decreased by 63.8% to $0.4 million compared to $1.1 million

for the prior fiscal year This decrease was primarily due to lower interest rates on our cash balances during

fiscal 2009 compared to the prior fiscal year

Consolidated interest expense for fiscal 2009 decreased by 13.3% to $20.4 million compared to

$23.5 million for the prior fiscal year Lower market interest rates reduced the interest expense associated with

the variable portion of our outstanding debt partially offset by $3.1 million charge related to our interest

rate swap contract In connection with our 2009 refinancing we concluded the interest rate swap agreement

was no longer an effective hedge based on the modified terms of the Amended Credit Agreement which

includes 2% LIBOR floor As result we have reclassified to interest expense the remaining deferred losses

previously recorded to accumulated other comprehensive income loss

Consolidated provision for income taxes for fiscal 2009 decreased to benefit of $54.5 million

compared to provision of $51.5 million for the prior fiscal
year The decrease was primarily due to

$931 .8 million decrease in pre-tax earnings loss The effective tax rate for fiscal 2009 was 6.8% compared to

39.5% for the prior fiscal
year This decrease was primarily due to non-deductible goodwill impairment costs

and the non-deductible premium on the retirement of our Convertible Notes
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Consolidated debt extinguishment hid refinancing costs or hscal 2009 were $100.3 mu lion and related

to our refinancing which was completed oil October 20 2009 These costs primarily consisted of $84.5 million

related to debt extinguishment of our Convertible Notes $6.4 million related to payments to noncreditors on

the modi hcation ol our Credit Agreement $4.8 mu lion ol costs related to our abandoned plan br

packaged bankruptcy and $3.5 million related to the writeoil of the remaining deferred financing costs on our

Convertible Notes

Consolidated convertible ief cried stock dnidends 1/11 accretion br fiscal 2009 was $1.2 million and

related primarily to $1 million of accrued dividends on the Convertible Preh.rred Stock which accrues and

accumulates on daily basis and was accrued for the last thirteen lays of fiscal 2009 at the 2% paid inkind

rate

Consolidated convertible pie rred stock beneficial conversion feature for fiscal 2009 was $10.5 million

and related to the beneficial conversion feature on the Convertible Preferred Stock because it was issued with

conversion price of $1 .2748 per common share equivalent and the closing stock price per common share just

prior to the execution of the Equity Investment was $2.51 Because only 8.2 million of lie potentially

196 million common shares if converted are authorized and unissued at November 2009 only

$10.5 million of the heneflcial conversion feature is recognized in Oscal 2009

Diluted earnings per s-hare for fiscal 2009 decreased to loss of $34.06 p_u diluted share conipared to

earnings of $4.05 per diluted share tor the prior hscal year
The decrease was primarily due to an

$837.5 million decrease in net income loss applicable to common shares resulting from the factors described

above In addition the weighted average number of common shares outstanding increased by 2.5 million due

to the completion of our Convertible Notes exchange oiler in the last month of our fiscal year In connection

with the exchange otter we issued 70.2 million common shares In addition to the Convertible Notes exchange

otter our 2009 refinancing transaction included the issuance of $250 million of Series Convertible Preferred

Stock which required the use of the twoclass method in determining diluted earnings per share hut did not

increase the weighted average number of common shares outstanding The Convertible Preferred Stock will lie

convertible into 196 million corn mon shares and will only be included in the weighted average common

shares outstanding under the ifconverted method which is required when ii results in lower earnings per

share than determined under the twoclass method

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS FOR FISCAL 2008 COMPARED TO FISCAL 2007

Consolidated s-ales for fiscal 2008 increased 8.6% or $139.1 million over fiscal 2007 Of this increase

$180.3 million related to increased pricing on increased steel costs and $18.6 million was attributable to the

Garco acquisition These increases were partially oliset by 5.6% decrease in tonnage volumes in all thiee of

our segments in fiscal 2008 compared with fiscal 2007 which weie driven by reduced demand br such

products resulting from the 7.5% reduction in lowrise nonresidential square footage starts as reported by

McGraw Hill

Consolidated cost of sales increased by 8.5% for fiscal 2008 compared to fiscal 2007 Gross margins

weie 24.9% for fiscal 2008 compared to 24.8% for the prior fiscal year
The gross margin percentage was

higher as result of increased margins at the metal components and metal coil coating segments partially

offset by decreased margins at the engineered building systems segments

Metal coil coating sales increased $33 million to $305.7 million in fiscal 2008 compared to

$272.5 million in the prior fiscal year Sales to third parties for fiscal 2008 increased 16.0% to $97.0 million

from $83.6 million in the prior fiscal year as result of shift in product mix from toll processing sales for

coating services to package sales of coated steel products and increased pricing on higher raw material costs

partially offset by an .4% decrease in external tonnage volumes Package sales of coated steel products

contribute lower margin dollars per ton compared to toll processing sales as percentage of revenue The

dominant component ot the price in package sales is steel which only allows for minimal markup The

remaining $19.7 million represents an increase in inteisegment sales Metal coil coating thirdparty sales

accounted for 5.5% of total consolidated thirdparty sales in fiscal 2008 compared with 1% in fiscal 2007
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Operating income of the metal coil coating segment increased by 16.8% to $29.4 million compared to

$25.1 million in the prior fiscal year primarily due to increased gross profit The margins increased primarily

due to higher sales prices partially offset by higher costs During fiscal 2008 we recorded charge to cost of

sales to reduce the carrying amount on certain raw material inventory to the lower of cost or market in the

amount of $2.7 million In addition operating income included an out of period pretax charge of $0.9 million

to correct work-in-process standard costs in our metal coil coating segment As percentage of total segment

sales operating income in fiscal 2008 was 9.6% compared to 9.2% in fiscal 2007

Metal components sales increased $51.9 million to $715.3 million in fiscal 2008 compared to $663.3 mil

lion in the prior fiscal
year

Sales were up primarily due to increased pricing on account of increased raw

material costs partially offset by 6.5% decrease in external tons shipped Sales to third parties for fiscal

2008 increased $38.4 million to $600.0 million from $561.6 million in the prior fiscal year The remaining

$13.5 million represents an increase in intersegment sales Metal components third-party sales accounted for

34.0% of total consolidated third-party sales in fiscal 2008 compared to 34.6% in fiscal 2007

Operating income of the metal components segment increased by 65.5% in fiscal 2008 to $82.1 million

compared to $49.6 million in the prior fiscal year This $32.5 million increase resulted from $32.3 million

increase in gross profit and $0.2 million decrease in selling and administrative expenses The gross margins

were higher due to increased pricing compared to the prior fiscal year which had been depressed due to an

over abundance of steel inventory in the market at that time and due to our ability to effectively manage our

raw material and manufacturing costs In addition we incurred charges of $1.7 million in cost of sales related

to the exit of our residential overhead door product line which were partially offset by $1.0 million gain on

the disposition of related property and equipment Cost of sales also included an offset of pretax $1.0 million

out-of-period reversal of amounts previously recorded in accounts payable related to inventory received but not

invoiced

Engineered building systems sales increased $89.0 million to $1.11 billion in fiscal 2008 compared to

$1.02 billion in the prior fiscal year This increase resulted from increased pricing as result of increased steel

costs and by sales of $18.6 million attributable to the Garco acquisition Sales to third parties for fiscal 2008

increased $87.3 million to $1.07 billion from $0.98 billion in the prior fiscal
year Intersegment sales increased

by $1.7 million compared to fiscal 2007 Engineered building systems third-party sales accounted for 60.5% of

total consolidated third-party sales in fiscal 2008 compared to 60.3% in fiscal 2007

Operating income of the engineered building systems segment decreased 4.8% in fiscal 2008 to

$107.9 million compared to $113.3 million in the prior fiscal year This $5.4 million decrease resulted from

$1.5 million decrease in gross profit and $3.9 million increase in selling and administrative expenses

Although gross profit was relatively flat gross margins were lower due to increased raw material costs

primarily related to steel price increases as well as 3.9% decrease in external organic tons shipped In

addition the Garco acquisition partially offset the decrease in gross margins and accounted for $5.7 million in

gross profit The increase in selling and administrative
expenses was primarily due to $3.1 million increase

as result of the Garco acquisition $2.2 million increase in bonus
expense on higher consolidated profit

activity and $1.9 million increase in 401k matching costs This increase was partially offset by

$1.6 million decrease in depreciation and amortization costs due to intangible assets being fully amortized and

$1.0 million decrease in advertising costs

Consolidated selling general and administrative expenses consisting of engineering drafting selling and

administrative costs increased to $283.8 million in fiscal 2008 compared to $271.9 million in the prior fiscal

year Of this $11.9 million increase $5.2 million related to bonus expense on higher profit activity and

$3.1 million related to the Garco acquisition In addition $2.9 million related to the accelerated vesting of

certain benefits and restricted stock grants of former executives upon retirement The remaining increase

related to $2.5 million increase in partially self-insured health insurance costs $2.3 million increase in bad

debt expense and $2.0 million increase in wages and increases in other various expenses These increases were

partially offset by reductions of $2.1 million in workers compensation and general liability insurance costs

$1.4 million in advertising costs $1.3 million in stock compensation costs $1.2 million in compensation costs

related to the deferred compensation plan and $1.2 million in amortization and depreciation due to certain
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intangible costs being fully amorti ed As percentage of sales selling general and administrative expenses

were 16 for fiscal 2008 compared to 6.7% for tiscal 2007

Con.rolidaied jute 11/CO/ne tor fiScal 2008 increased by 49.7% to $1 million compared to $0.7 million

or thc prior fiscal year This increase was primarily due to higher invested cash balances during fiscal 2008

compared to the prior fiscal year

Consolidated interest expense or fiscal 2008 decreased by 8.4% to $23.5 mit lion compared to

$28.8 million for the prior fiscal year We repaid $2 .7 iiiill ion ot the loans under our Credit Agreement in

January 2008 In addition lower market interest rates reduced the interest expense associated with the variable

portion of our outstanding debt During June 2006 we entered into an interest rate swap agreement relating to

$160 million of the $400 million principal term loans under our Credit Agreement to manage our risk

associated with changing interest rates

Consolidated provision for i//Come taxes br tiscal 2008 increased by 25.3% to $5 1.5 million compared

to $41 million for the prior fiscal year The increase was primarily due to $25.6 iii lion increase iii pietax

earnings and the increase in the effective tax rate The effective tax rate for fiscal 2008 was 39.5% compared

to 39.2% for the prior fiscal year ihis increase was due to an increase of the deferred tax asset and

corresponding valuation allowance related to our Canadian operations partially offset by statutory increase in

the rate for the production activities deduction

Diluted earnings per share for fiscal 2008 increased by 32.4% to $4.05 pes diluted share compared to

$3.06 per diluted share for the prior fiscal year The increase was primarily due to $1 5.2 million increase in

net income resulting from the factors described above and decrease in the number of weighted average

shares assumed to he outstanding in the diluted earnings per share calculation There was no dilution effect of

the Convertible Notes in fiscal 2008 compared to $0.15 per share dilution effect in tiscal 2007

LIQUIDITY ANt CAPITAL RESOURCES

Getieral

On November 2009 we had working capital of $140.5 million compared to $230.7 million at the end

of fiscal 2008 $90.2 million decrease The decrease in working capital was primarily due to reduced needs

br working capital requirements on lower business activity levels and reduced transactional prices for

inventory leading up to the end of the fiscal period This reduction in working capital was ottset by the

development of an income tax receivable generated during the period resulting from the taxable losses

incurred During the fiscal year our cash and cash equivalents increased $22.2 million to $90.4 million at the

end of liscal 2009 trom $68.2 million at the end of fiscal 2008 The increase in cash resulted troni

$95.4 million of cash provided by operating activities partially offset by $19 million of cash used in

investing activities and $54.0 million of cash used in financing activities The cash provided by operating

activities was impacted by $52.5 million reduction in current working capital and noncurrent assets and

$42.9 million cash generated from operating activities The cash used in investing activities was prirnaril

related to $2 .7 million used for capital expenditures predominantly related to new IPS facilities and computer

sottware The cash used in financing activities was primarily impacted by the Recapitalization Plan where the

proceeds from the issuance of the Convertible Preferred Stock of $250.0 million were utilized to repay

$90.0 million of the Convertible Notes and $1413 million in connection with the Amended Credit Agreement

In addition we paid $54.7 million in transaction costs to complete the Recapitalization Plan

We invest our excess cash in various overnight investments

Debt

Capital Structure On October 20 2009 the Closing Date we closed the $250 million Equity

Investment As result of the Equity Investment the CDR Funds own 250.000 shares of Convertible

Preferred Stock representing approximately 68.4% oF the voting power and conimon stock of the Company on

an asconverted basis Simultaneously with the closing of the Equity 1I1\/estl//ent
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we refinanced our existing credit agreement as in effect prior to such date the Credit Agreement
which was due to mature on June 18 2010 by repaying approximately $143 million in principal

amount of the approximately $293 million in principal amount then outstanding and amending the

terms and extending the maturity of the remaining $150 million balance of the term loans The

Amended Credit Agreement our amended term loan requires quarterly principal payments of 0.25% of

the principal amount of the term loan then outstanding as of the last day of each quarter and final

payment of approximately $131.1 million in principal at maturity on April 20 2014

we entered into the ABL Facility an asset-based revolving credit facility agreement with maximum
available amount of up to $125 million which has an additional $50 million incremental credit facility

The ABL Facility replaces the revolving credit facility and letters of credit subfacility under our Credit

Agreement which expired on June 18 2009 The ABL Facility has maturity of April 20 2014 and

includes borrowing capacity of up to $25 million for letters of credit and up to $10 million for

swingline borrowings

we completed the Exchange Offer to acquire the $180 million of our then-outstanding Convertible

Notes for an aggregate combination of $90.0 million in cash and 70.2 million shares of common stock

Amended Credit Agreement The term loans under the Amended Credit Agreement will mature on

April 20 2014 four
years and six months from the Closing Date and prior to that date will amortize in

nominal quarterly installments equal to 0.25% of the principal amount of the term loan then outstanding as of

the last day of each
quarter

The Companys obligations under the Amended Credit Agreement and any interest rate protection

agreements or other permitted hedging agreement entered into with any lender under the Amended Credit

Agreement are irrevocably and unconditionally guaranteed on joint and several basis by each direct and

indirect domestic subsidiary of the Company other than any domestic subsidiary that is foreign subsidiary

holding company or subsidiary of foreign subsidiary Our obligations under the Amended Credit

Agreement and the permitted hedging agreements and the guarantees thereof are secured pursuant to

guarantee and collateral agreement dated as of October 20 2009 made by the Company and other grantors

as defined therein in favor of the term loan administrative agent and term loan collateral agent by all of

the capital stock of all direct domestic subsidiaries owned by the Company and the guarantors ii up to 65%
of the capital stock of certain direct foreign subsidiaries of the Company or any guarantor it being understood

that foreign subsidiary holding company or domestic subsidiary of foreign subsidiary will he deemed

foreign subsidiary and iii substantially all other tangible and intangible assets owned by the Company and

each guarantor in each case to the extent permitted by applicable law and subject to certain exceptions

The Amended Credit Agreement contains number of covenants that among other things limit or restrict

the ability of the Company and its subsidiaries to dispose of assets incur additional indebtedness incur

guarantee obligations prepay other indebtedness make dividends and other restricted payments create liens

make investments make acquisitions engage in mergers change the nature of their business and engage in

certain transactions with affiliates

The Amended Credit Agreement has no financial covenant test until the conclusion of the fourth quarter

of fiscal 2011 at which time the maximum ratio of total debt to Consolidated EBITDA is to This ratio

steps down by 0.25 each quarter until October 28 2012 at which time the maximum ratio is to The ratio

continues to step down by 0.125 each quarter until November 2013 to ratio of 3.5 to which remains

the maximum ratio for each fiscal quarter thereafter We will however not be subject to this financial

covenant with respect to specified period if certain prepayments or repurchases of the term loans under the

Amended Credit Agreement are made in the specified period

Borrowings under the Amended Credit Agreement may he repaid at any time without premium or

penalty but subject to customary LIBOR breakage costs We also have the ability to repurchase portion of

the term loans under the Amended Credit Agreement subject to certain terms and conditions set forth in the
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Amended Credit Agreement In addition subject to certain exceptions the term loans under the Aiiiended

Credit Agreement are subject to mandatory prepayment and reduction in an amount equal to

the net cash proceeds of certain asset sales certain debt ofieriiigs and certain insurance

recovery and condemnation events

50% of annual excess cash low as defined in the Amended Credit Agreement br any fiscal year

endmg on or after October 2010 unless speciIed leverage ratio target is met and

the greater of 10.0 million and 50% of certain 2009 lax relunds as deli ned in the Amended Credit

Agreement received by the Conipany

We expect to make mandatory prepayment on the Amended Credit Agreement in May 2010 in

connection with our 2009 tax retimd Therefore an additional $12.9 million of principal under the Amended

Credit Agreement has been classified as current portion of longterm debt in our Consolidated Balance Sheet

at November 2009

Term loans under the Amended Credit Agreement bear interest at our option as tollows

Base Rate loans at the Base Rate plus margin which for term loans is 5% until October 30

2011 After that date the margin liuctuates based on our leverage ratio and shall be either 5% or 3.5%

For revolving loans the Base Rate liuctuates based on our leverage ratio and ranges trom 0.25% to

1.25% As of the first fiscal quarter commencing January 30 2012 the margin in each case increases by

0.25% pi annum on the first day of each fiscal quarter unless the aggregate principal amount ol loans

outstanding under the Amended Credit Agreement in the immediately preceding fiscal quarter of the

Company has been reduced by $3750000 excluding scheduled principal amortization payments less

any prior reductions not previously applied to prevent an increase in the applicable niargin and

LIBOR loans at LIB having minimum rate of 2% plus margin which for term loans is

6% until October 30 2011 Aller that date the LIBORlinked margin fluctuates based on our leverage

ratio and shall be either 6% or 4.5% As of the First fiscal quarter commencing January 30 201 ihe

margin in each case increases by 0.25% per annum on the First day of each fiscal quarter unless the

aggregate principal amount of term loans outstanding under the Amended Credit Agreement in the

immediately preceding fiscal quarter of the Company has been reduced by $3750000 excluding

scheduled principal amortization payments less any prior reductions not previously applied to prevent an

increase in the applicable margin

verdue amounts will bear interest at rate that is 2% higher than the rate otherwise applicable Base

rate is delined as the highest of the Wachovia Bank National Association prime rate the overnight Federal

Funds rate plus 0.5% and 3.0% and LIB is defined as the applicable 1_ondon inierbank otlered rate

adjusted br reserves

/1 BL Facility The ABL Facility provides for an assetbased revolving credit Facility which allows

aggregate niaximuni borrowings by the Company of up to $125.0 million Borrowing availability on the ABl_

Facility is determined by monthly borrowing base collateral calculation that is based on specitiech

percentages of the value of qualiricd cash eligible inventory and eligible accounts receivable less certain

reserves and subject to certain other adjustments At November 2009 our excess availability under the ABL

Facility was $70.4 million

An unused conimilment fee is paid monthly on the ABL Facility at an annual rate of through May

2010 and therealler at 1% or if the average daily balance of the loans and letters of credit obligations or

given month is higher than 50% of the maximum credit then available 0.75% The calculation is determined

on the amount by which the maximum credit exceeds the average daily principal balance of outstanding loans

and letter of credit obligations Additional customary fees in connection with the ABL Facility also apply

The obligations under the ABL Facility and the guarantees therefore are secured by First priority lien

on our accounts receivable inventory certain deposit accounts and our associated intangibles subject to
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certain exceptions and second priority lien on the assets securing the term loans under the Amended Credit

Agreement on first-lien basis

Our obligations under the ABL Facility are guaranteed by the Company and each direct and indirect

domestic subsidiary of the Company other than
any domestic subsidiary that is foreign subsidiary holding

company or subsidiary of foreign subsidiary that is not borrower under the ABL Facility The

obligations of the Company under certain specified bank products agreements are guaranteed by each borrower

and each other direct and indirect domestic subsidiary of the Company and the other guarantors These

guarantees are made pursuant to guarantee agreement dated as of October 20 2009 entered into by the

Company and each other guarantor with Wells Fargo Foothill LLC as administrative agent

In addition the obligations under the ABL Facility and the guarantees thereof are secured pursuant to

pledge agreement dated as of October 20 2009 made by the Company and other pledgors as delned

therein in favor of Wells Fargo Foothill LLC as administrative agent by all of the capital stock of all

direct domestic subsidiaries owned by the Company and the pledgors and ii up to 65% of the capital stock

of certain direct foreign subsidiaries owned by the Company or any pledgor it being understood that foreign

subsidiary holding company or domestic subsidiary of foreign subsidiary will be deemed foreign

subsidiary

The ABL Facility contains number of covenants that among other things limit or restrict our ability to

dispose of assets incur additional indebtedness incur guarantee obligations engage in sale and leaseback

transactions prepay other indebtedness modify organizational documents and certain other agreements create

restrictions affecting subsidiaries make dividends and other restricted payments create liens make invest

ments make acquisitions engage in mergers change the nature of their business and engage in certain

transactions with affiliates

Under the ABL Facility Dominion Event occurs if either an event of default is continuing or excess

availability falls below certain levels during which period and for certain periods thereafter the administrative

agent may apply all amounts in the Companys concentration account to the repayment of the loans

outstanding under the ABL Facility subject to the Intercreditor Agreement In addition during such Dominion

Event we are required to make mandatory payments on our ABL Facility upon the occurrence of certain

events including the sale of assets and the issuance of debt in each case subject to certain limitations and

conditions set forth in the ABL Facility If excess availability under the ABL Facility falls below certain

levels our ABL Facility also requires us to satisfy set financial tests relating to our fixed charge coverage

ratio

The ABL Facility includes minimum fixed charge coverage ratio of one to one which will apply if we
fail to maintain specilied minimum level of borrowing capacity

Loans under the ABL Facility hear interest at our option as follows

Base Rate loans at the Base Rate plus margin which shall be 3.50% through April 30 2010

and shall thereafter range from 3.25% to 3.75% depending on the quarterly average excess availability

under such facility and

LIBOR loans at LIBOR plus margin which shall be 4.50% through April 30 2010 and shall

thereafter range from 4.25% to 4.75% depending on the quarterly average excess availability under such

facility

During an event of default loans under the ABL Facility will hear interest at rate that is 2% higher

than the rate otherwise applicable Base rate is defined as the highest of the Wells Fargo Bank N.A prime

rate or the overnight Federal Funds rate plus 0.5% and LIBOR is defined as the applicable London interbank

offered rate adjusted for reserves

Interc red itor Agreement The liens securing the obligations under the Amended Credit Agreement the

permitted hedging agreements and the guarantees thereof are first in priority as between the Amended Credit

Agreement and the ABL Facility with respect to stock material real property and assets other than accounts

receivable inventory certain deposit accounts associated intangibles and certain other property of the
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Company and the guarantors subject to certain exceptions Such liens are second in priority as between the

Amended Credit Agreement and the ABL Facility with respect to accounts receivable inventory certain

deposit accounts associated intangibles and certain othcr propcrty of the Company and the guarantors subject

to certain exceptions The details ot the respective collateral rights between lenders under the Amendcd Credit

Agreement and lenders under the AI3L Facility are governed by an intercreditor agreement dated as of the

Closing Date among the borrowers the term loan administrative agent tile ABL Facility administrative agent

and tile other parties thereto

Conceriible Notes in connection with the Equity lnvestnient we completed tile Exchange Offer to

acquire $1 80 million ot aggregate principal amount of Convertible Notes Approximately 99.9% of the

outstanding Convertible Notes wet-c tendered in the Exchange Offer and iloiders of Convertible Notes received

$500 in cash and 390 shares of common stock of the Company for each $1 C00 principal amount of

Convertible Notes tendered The proceeds of tile Equity Investment were used to pay tile cash portion of the

Exchange Offer in all amount of $90.0 million At November 2009 we had retired all but approximately

$0.06 million of the Convertible Notes

December 2009 we gave to holders of Convertible Notes irrevocable notice of our intent to redeem

tile $0.06 million of remaining Convertible Notes on December 29 2009 As of December 2009 until

December 28 2009 at the option
of

any
holder of Convertible Notes we are required to convert the lJrincipii

amount of such holders Convertible Notes or any portion of such principal aifloulit tilat is multiple of

1.000 into casil and fully paid shares of common stock of the Company ill accordance with tile terms

procedures and conditions outlined ill tile indenture pursuallt to which the Convertible Notes were issued As

of November 2009 the conversion rate or tile Convertible Notes was 24.9121 shares of common stock per

$1 000 in principal amount of tile Convertible Notes The terms of our Amended Credit Agreement and our

AI3L Facility require us to redeem tile Convertible Notes by January 15 2010 We expect to redeem tile

Convertible Notes by January IS 2010 hut if for any reason we do Ilot redeem tile Convertible Notes by

January iS 2010 this would constitute an event of detault under 110111 our Amended Credit Agreement and

our ABL Facility

Interest the Convertible Notes is not deductible or income tax purposes which creates permaneilt

tax difference that is reflected in our effective tax rate For niore intormation see Note 17 to our Consolidated

Financial Statements under Item Financial Statements and Supplementary Data The Convertible Notes

are general unsecured obligations and are subordinated to our present and future senior indebtedness

Interest Rate Swap

On June iS 2006 we entered into furward interest rate swap transaction tile Swap Agreement

iledging portion of the $400 million variable rate term loan umlder our Credit Agreement witll notional

amount of $160 milhon beginning ctoher 2006 The notional amount decreased to $145 million on

October ii 2007 decreased to $105 million on October 14 2008 and decreased again to $65 million on

October 13 2009 The term of tile Swap Agreement is tour years ending in June 2010 Under the Swap

Agreement we will pay fixed rate of 5.55% on quarterly basis in exchange for receiving floating rate

payments based on the threemonth LIBOR rate We are exposed to interest rate risk associated with

fluctuations ill the interest rates on our variable interest rate debt

Tile fair value of the Swap Agreement as of November 2009 and November 2008 was liability of

approximately $2.2 million and $3.9 million respectively and is included ill other accrued expenses in the

Consolidated Balance Sheet The fair value of tile Swap Agreement excludes accrued interest and takes into

consideration current interest rates and current creditworthiness of us or the counterparty as applicable Fair

value estijiiates presented fur tile Swap Agreement wet-c determined based on tile present value of all future

casil flows the fixed rate in the contract and assumptions regarding forward interest rates from yield curve

Tile interest rate swap agreement resulted ill additional interest expense during fiscal 2009 and fiscal 2008 ot

approximately $6.1 million and $2.6 million respectively

During the tourth quarter of fiscal 2009 in connection with our refinancing we concluded tile Swap

Agreement was no longer an effective hedge based on the terms of the Amended Credit Agreement which
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includes 2% LIBOR floor We do not believe the LIBOR rates over the remaining term of the Swap
Agreement will exceed the LIBOR floor stated in the Amended Credit Agreement which in effect results in

fixed rate debt Therefore during fiscal 2009 we reclassified to interest
expense the remaining $3.1 million of

deferred losses recorded to accumulated other comprehensive income loss For fiscal 2009 we have reduced

interest expense by $2.5 million as result of the changes in fair value of the hedge and we reclassified

$4.8 million into earnings as result of the discontinuance of the hedge designation of the Swap Agreement

Cash Flow

We periodically evaluate our liquidity requirements capital needs and availability of resources in view of

inventory levels expansion plans debt service requirements and other operating cash needs To meet our

short- and long-term liquidity requirements including payment of operating expenses and repaying debt we

rely primarily on cash from operations However we have recently as well as in the past sought to raise

additional capital

We expect that for the next fiscal year cash generated from operations will be sufficient to provide us

the ability to fund our operations provide the increased working capital necessary to support our strategy and

fund planned capital expenditures of between $10 million and $12 million for fiscal 2010 and expansion when

needed

We have used available funds to repurchase shares of our common stock under our stock repurchase

program Although we did not purchase any
shares of common stock during fiscal 2009 under the stock

repurchase program we did withhold shares of restricted stock to satisfy tax withholding obligations arising in

connection with the vesting of awards of restricted stock related to our 2003 long-term stock incentive plan

which are included in treasury stock purchases in the Consolidated Statements of Stockholders Equity We
also used the proceeds of our Equity Investment to purchase the Convertible Notes in the Exchange Offer

Our corporate strategy points to the synergistic value of potential acquisitions in our metal coil coating

metal components and engineered building systems segments From time to time we may enter into letters of

intent or agreements to acquire assets or companies in these business lines The consummation of these

transactions could require cash payments and/or issuance of additional debt

Steel Prices

Our business is heavily dependent on the price and supply of steel Our various products are fabricated

from steel produced by mills including bars plates structural shapes sheets hot rolled coils and galvanized or

GaIvalumecoated coils The steel industry is highly cyclical in nature and steel prices have been volatile in

recent years and may remain volatile in the future Steel prices are influenced by numerous factors beyond our

control including general economic conditions domestically and internationally the availability of raw

materials competition labor costs freight and transportation costs production costs import duties and other

trade restrictions We believe the CRU North American Steel Price Index published by the CRU Group since

1994 appropriately depicts the volatility in steel prices See Item 7A Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures

About Market Risk Steel Prices During fiscal 2009 steel prices fluctuated significantly due to market

conditions ranging from high point on the CRU Index of 187 to low point of 112 Steel prices decreased

rapidly during the first eight months of fiscal 2009 but increased slightly between July 2009 and October

2009 Rapidly declining demand for steel due to the effects of the credit crisis and global economic slowdown

on the construction automotive and industrial markets has resulted in many steel manufacturers around the

world announcing plans to cut production by closing plants and furloughing workers Steel suppliers such as

US Steel and Arcelor Mittal are among these manufacturers who have cut production Given reduced steel

production higher input costs and low inventories in the industry we believe steel prices will increase in fiscal

2010 as compared with prices we experienced during the second half of fiscal 2009

Although we have the ability to purchase steel from number of suppliers production cutback by one

or more of our current suppliers could create challenges in meeting delivery schedules to our customers

Because we have periodically adjusted our contract prices particularly in the engineered building systems

segment we have generally been able to pass increases in our raw material costs through to our customers
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Because the iiietal coil coating and metal Components scements have shorter lead times they have the ability

to react to steel price increases closer to the time they occur without revisilig cotitract prices for existillg

orders

We do 1101 have any longtcrni contracts or the purchase oF steel and normal do not maintain an

inventory of steel in excess of our current production requirenients However Ironi lime to time we may

purchase steel in advance of announced steel price increases We can give no assurance that steel will remain

available or that prices will not continue to he volatile While most of our contracts have escalation clauses

that allow us under certain circumstances to pass along all or portion of increases in the price of steel aller

the date of the contract hut prior to delivery we may for competitive or other reasons not he able to pass

such price increases along If the available supply of steel declines we could experience price increases that

we are not able to pass oii to the end users or deterioration of service from our suppliers or interruptions or

delays that may cause us not to meet delivery schedules to our customers Any of these problems could

adversely affect our resu Its ol operations and financial position

We rely on few major suppliers for our supply of steel and may be adversely affected by the

bankruptcy change in control financial condition or other factors affecting those suppliers During fiscal 209

we purchased approximately 30% of our steel requirements from one vendor in the United States No other

vendor accounted for over 10% of our steel requirements during 6scal 2009 Due to unfavorable market

conditions and our inventory supply requirements during fiscal 2009 we purchased insignificant amounts of

steel from foreign suppliers Limiting purchases to domestic suppliers further reduces our available steel

supply base Therefore recently announced cutbacks prolonged labor strike against one or more of our

principal domestic suppliers or Onancial or other difficulties of principal supplier that affects its ability to

produce steel could have material adverse effect on our operations Furthermore if one or more of our

current suppliers is unable for linancial or any other reason to contiiiue in business or to produce steel

sufficient to meet our requirements essential supply oF our primary raw materials could be temporarily

interrupted and our business could be adversely affected However alternative sources including foreign steel

are currently believed to be suihcient to maintain required deliveries For additional ilormation about the

risks of our raw material supply and pricing see Item IA Risk Factors

OFF-BALANCE SHEET ARRANGEMENTS

As part
of our ongoing business we do not participate in transactions that generate relationships with

unconsolidated entities or financial partnerships sLIcli as entities olten referred to as structured Finance or

special purpose entities SPEs which would have been established for the
purpose

of facilitating oIl

balance sheet arrangements or other contractually narrow or limited purposes As of November 2009 we

were not involved in
any

unconsolidated SPE transactions

CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS

The following table shows our contractual obligations as of November 2009 in thoUsands

layments Ille by period

Less than 4-5 More thaii

Contractual Obligation Total year 1-3 years years years

Total dehll $150249 $l4.164 2698 $133387

Interest payments on debt2 69661 17424 29919 22318

Convertible Preferred Stock dividends 202590 45020 45020 112550

Operating leases 16423 7162 6745 1042 1474

Other purchase obligations4 14464 7703 6761

Projected pension obligationsS 10730 2860 3.170 4700

Other longterm ohligations6 4864 107 300 300 57

Total contractual obligations 468981 $5056 $94303 $205237 $118881
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As of November 2009 the aggregate principal amount and accrued and unpaid interest thereon of the

outstanding Convertible Notes was approximately $59000 As of December 2009 until December 28
2009 the Convertible Notes may he converted at the option of the holder We are required to convert the

principal amount of holders Convertible Notes or any portion of such principal amount that is multi

ple of $1000 into cash and fully paid shares of common stock of the Company in accordance with the

terms procedures and conditions outlined in the indenture pursuant to which the Convertible Notes were

issued As of November 12009 the conversion rate is 24.9121 shares of common stock per $1000 in

principal amount of the Convertible Notes On December 29 2009 we have an obligation to redeem all

outstanding Convertible Notes

Interest payments were calculated based on the stated interest rate for fixed rate obligations and rates in

effect at November 2009 for variable rate obligations and the interest rate swap payments

We have assumed that the dividends required by our Convertible Preferred Stock will be paid in-kind dur

ing fiscal 2010 because we are limited in our ability to pay cash dividends until October 2010 under the

Amended Credit Agreement and the ABL Facility except for certain specified purposes For simplicity

we have assumed cash dividends of 8% will be paid subsequent to fiscal 2010 until the Convertible Pre
ferred Stock can be either called by us or put to us by the CDR funds on the tenth anniversary of the

Closing Date However if at any time after the 30 month anniversary of the Closing Date the trading

price of the common stock of the Company exceeds 200% of the initial conversion price as defined in the

Certificate of Designation for each of 20 consecutive trading days the dividend rate excluding any appli

cable adjustments as result of default will become 0.00%

Includes various agreements for steel delivery obligations gas contracts transportation services and tele

phone service obligations In general purchase orders issued in the normal course of business can be ter

minated in whole or part for
any reason without liability until the product is received Steel consignment

inventory from our suppliers does not constitute purchase commitment and are not included in our table

of contractual obligations However it is our current practice to purchase all consignment inventory that

remains in consignment after an agreed term Consignment inventory at November 2009 is estimated to

be approximately $22 million

Amounts represent our estimate of the minimum funding requirements as determined by government regu
lations Amounts are subject to change based on numerous assumptions including the performance of the

assets in the plan and bond rates

Includes contractual payments and projected supplemental retirement benefits to or on behalf of former

executives

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS

Our insurance carriers require us to secure standby letters of credit as collateral requirement for our

projected exposure to future period claims growth and loss development which includes incurred but not

reported or IBNR claims For all insurance carriers the total standby letters of credit are approximately

$12.1 million and $13.1 million at November 2009 and November 2008 respectively

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Our Consolidated Financial Statements are prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally

accepted in the United States which require us to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported

amounts of assets and liabilities and related disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities On an ongoing

basis we evaluate our estimates including those estimates that may have significant effect on our financial

condition and results of operations Our significant accounting policies are disclosed in Note to our

Consolidated Financial Statements The following discussion of critical accounting policies addresses those

policies that are both important to the portrayal of our financial condition and results of operations and require

significant judgment and estimates We base our estimates and judgment on historical experience and on

various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances Actual results may differ from

these estimates under different assumptions or conditions
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Rerenue recognhlion We recognize revenues when all or the Iollowiig conditions al_C met perSuaSiVe

evidence of an arrangement exists delivery has occurred or services have been rendered the price is fixed or

determinable and collectihility is reasonably assured Generally these criteria are met at the time product is

shipped or services are complete Provisions are made upon the sale ror estimated product returns Costs

associated with shipping and handling our products are included in cost or sales

Insurance accruals We are sd insured br substantial portion or the cost of employee group
health

insurance and Rr the cost of workers compensation henelits and general liability and automobile claims We

purchase third party insurance that provides individual and aggregate stop loss protection for these costs Each

reporting period we record the costs or our health insurance plan including paid claims an estimate of the

change in incurred hut not reported IBNR claims taxes and administrative rees collectively the Plan

Costs as general and administrative expenses and cost or sales in our Consolidated Statements of Operations

The estimated IBNR claims are based upon recent average level or paid claims under the plan ii an

estimated lag lactor and iii an estimated growth lactor to provide tor those claims that have been incurred

hut not yet paid For workers coilipensation costs we monitor the number or accidents and the severity or

such accidents to develop appropri1te estimates for expected costs to provide both medical care and henelts

during the period an employee is unable to work These accruals are developed using thirdparty estimates of

the expected cost and length or time an employee will be unable to work based on industry statistics lor the

cost or similar disabilities For general liability and automobile claims accruals are developed based on third

party estimates of the expected cost to resolve each claim based on industry statistics and the nature and

severity of the claim and include estimates br IBNR claims taxes and administrative fees This statistical

information is trended to provide estimates of future expected costs based on factors developed 1mm our

experience
of actual claims cost conipared to original estimates

We believe that the assumptions and information used to develop these accruals provide the best basis for

these estimates each quarter because as general matter the accruals have historically proven
to he

reasonable and accurate However significant changes in expected medical and health care costs negative

changes in the severity of previously reported claims or changes in laws that govern
the administration or

these plans could have an impact on the determination or the amount of these accruals in future periods Our

methodology br determining the amount of health insurance accrual considers claims growth and claims lag

which is the length of time between the incurred date and proceng date For the health insurance accrual

change of 10% in the lag assumption would result in binancial inipact of $0.3 million

ShareBased Compensation Under ASC Topic 718 Compensation Stock Compensation the fair value

and compensatioll expense of each option award is estimated as of the date of grant using BlackScholes

Merton option pricing formula Expected volatility is based historical volatility of our stock over

preceding period commensurate with the expected term of the option The expected volatility considers lactors

such as the volatility of our share price implied volatility of our share price length of time our shares have

been publicly traded appropriate and regular intervals for price observations and our corporate and capital

structure The Iorleiture rate in our calculation of sharebased compensation expense is based on historical

experience and is estimated at 10% Ior our nonofficers and 0% to 10% for our obhcers The riskfree rate br

the expected term of the option is based on the U.S Treasury yield curve in effect at the lime of grant

Expected dividend yield was not considered in the option pricing bormula since we historically have 1101 paid

dividends and have current plans to do so in the future There were no options granted during the fiscal

years ended November 2009 and November 2008

The conipensation cost related to these share-based awards is recognized over the requisite service period

The requisite service period is generally the period during which an employee is required to provide service in

exchange for the award

Our option awards and restricted stock awards are subject to graded vesting over service period which

is typically tour years We recognize conipensation cost or these awards on straightline basis over the

requisite service period for the entire award In addition certain of our awards provide for accelerated vesting

uipon qualified retirement We recognize compensation cost for such awards over the period from giant date to

the late the employee birst becomes eligible for retirenment
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Income taxes The determination of our provision for income taxes requires significant judgment the

use of estimates and the interpretation and application of complex tax laws Our provision for income taxes

reflects combination of income earned and taxed in the various U.S federal and state Canadian federal and

provincial as well as Mexican federal jurisdictions Jurisdictional tax law changes increases or decreases in

permanent differences between book and tax items accruals or adjustments of accruals for tax contingencies

or valuation allowances and the change in the mix of earnings from these taxing jurisdictions all affect the

overall effective tax rate

In assessing the realizability of deferred tax assets we must consider whether it is more likely than not

that some portion or all of the deferred tax assets will not he realized We consider all available evidence in

determining whether valuation allowance is required Such evidence includes the scheduled reversal of

deferred tax liabilities projected future taxable income and tax planning strategies in making this assessment

and judgment is required in considering the relative weight of negative and positive evidence The entire

U.S federal net operating loss will be fully utilized through carryhack against taxable income generated in

fiscal 2008 and 2007 At both November 2009 and November 2008 we had full valuation allowance in

the amount of $5.0 million on the deferred tax assets of Robertson Building Systems Ltd our Canadian

subsidiary

Accounting for acquisitions intangible assets and goodwill Accounting for the acquisition of business

requires the allocation of the purchase price to the various assets and liabilities of the acquired business For

most assets and liabilities purchase price allocation is accomplished by recording the asset or liability at its

estimated fair value The most difficult estimations of individual fair values are those involving property plant

and equipment and identifiable intangible assets We use all available information to make these fair value

determinations and for major business acquisitions such as RCC typically engage an outside appraisal firm to

assist in the fair value determination of the acquired long-lived assets

In connection with the acquisition of Garco we recorded intangible assets for trade names backlog

customer relationships and non-competition agreements in the amount of $0.8 million $0.7 million $2.5 mil

lion and $1 .8 million respectively All Garco intangible assets are amortized on straight-line basis over their

expected useful lives Garcos trade names are being amortized over 15 years based on our expectation of our

use of the trade names Garcos backlog was amortized over one year because items in Garcos backlog were

expected to be delivered within one year Garcos customer lists and relationships are being amortized over

fifteen years based on review of the historical length of Garcos customer retention experience Garcos non-

competition agreements are being amortized over their agreement terms of five
years

At November 2009 we have total goodwill of $5.2 million which is all included in our engineered

building systems segment At November 2008 we had total goodwill of $616.6 million of which

$99.0 million $147.2 million and $370.4 million is included in the metal coil coating metal components and

engineered building systems segments

In connection with the acquisition of RCC we recorded intangible assets for trade names backlog and

customer relationships in the amount of $24.7 million $2.3 million and $6.3 million respectively Trade

names were determined to have indefinite useful lives and so are not amortized Trade names were determined

to have indefinite lives due to the length of time the trade names have been in place with some having been

in place for decades Our past practice with other acquisitions and our current intentions are to maintain the

trade names indefinitely This judgmental assessment of an indefinite useful life must be continuously

evaluated in the future If due to changes in facts and circumstances management determines that these

intangible assets then have definite useful lives amortization will commence at that time on prospective

basis As long as these intangible assets are judged to have indefinite lives they will he subject to periodic

impairment tests that require managements judgment of the estimated fair value of these intangible assets We
assess impairment of our non-amortizing intangibles at least annually in accordance with ASC Topic 350

Intangibles Goodwill and Other ASC 350 All other intangible assets are amortized on straight-line

basis over their expected useful lives RCCs backlog was amortized over one year because items in RCCs

backlog were expected to he delivered within one year RCCs customer lists and relationships are being
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amortized over hlleen years based on review of the historical length of RCCs customer retention experience

See Note Acquisitions in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements br additional information

We had recorded approximately $277.3 million ol goodwill as result of the RCC acquisition Goodwill

of $17.0 million $17.8 million and $242.5 million had been recorded in our metal coil coating metal

components and engineered building systems segments respectively We perform test br impairment ol all

our goodwill annually as prescribed by ASC 350 The fair value ol our report ig units is based on blend of

estimated discounted cash flows publicly traded company multiples and acquisition multiples The results

lroni each of these models are then weighted and combined into single estimate of fair value for our one

remaining reporting
unit Estimated discounted cash flows are based on projected sales and related cost of

sales Publicly traded company multiples and acquisition multiples are derived trom information on traded

shares and analysis of recent acquisitions in the marketplace respectively for conlpanies with operations

similar to ours The primary assumptions used in these various models include earnings multiples of

acquisitions in comparable industry future cash flow estimates of each of our reporting units weighted

average cost of capital working capital and capital expenditure requirements During fiscal 2008 we adopted

an approach to the computation of the terminal value in the discounted cash flow method using the Gordon

growth model instead of market based EI3ITDA multiple approach We have not made any material changes

our impairment assessment methodology during each fiscal year of 2009 and 2007 We do not believe the

estimates used in the analysis are reasonably likely to change materially in the future hut we will continue to

assess the estimates in the future based on the expectations of the reporting units Changes iii assumptions

used in the fair value calculation could result in an estimated reporting unit fair value that is below the

carrying value which may give rise to an impairment of goodwill

We perform an annual assessment of the recoverability of goodwill and indefinite lived intangibles

Additionally we assess goodwill and indefinite lived intangibles for impairment whenever events or changes

in circumstances indicate that such carrying values may not be recoverable Unforeseen events changes in

circumstances and market conditions and material differences in the value of intangible assets clue to changes

in estimates of future cash flows could negatively affect the air value of our assets and result in noncash

impairment charge Some factors considered importamit that could trigger an impairment review include the

following significant underperlormance relative to expected historical or projected future operating results

significant changes in the manner of our use of the acquired assets or the strategy br our overall business and

significant sustained negative industry or economic trends

Subsequent to our fiscal 2008 annual assessment of the recoverability of goodwill and indefinite lived

intangibles and beginning largely in late September our stock price and market capitalization decreased from

$36.51 and $720.3 million respectively at July 27 2008 to $18.61 and $367.3 million respectively at

November 2108 We evaluated whether the recent decline in our stock price and market capitalization

represented significant decline in the underlying fair value of the Company Based upon our analysis we

concluded that the decline in our stock price and the resulting decline in our market capitalization did not

require us to perlorm an additional goodwill and indefinite lived intangibles impairment test because we did

not believe the decline was caused by significant unclerperformance of the Company relative to historical or

projected future operating results significant change in the manner of our use of the acquired assets or the

strategy for our overall business or significant negative industry or economic trend

Based on lower than projected sales volumes in our first quarter of fiscal 2009 and based on revised

lower outlook for nonresidential construction activity in 200 management reduced the Companys cash flow

pmoiecbiotis We concluded that this reduction was an impairnlent indicator requiring us to perform an interim

goodwill impairment test for each of our six reporting units as of February 2009 As result ol this

nipairmen indicator we updated the first step of our goodwill impairment test in the first quarter of fiscal

2009 The first step of our goodwill impairment test determines fair value of the reporting unit based on

blend of estimated discounted cash flows publicly traded company multiples and acquisitiomi multiples

reconciled to our recent publicly traded stock price including reasonable control premTiumT1
The result broni

this model was then weighted and combined into single estimate of fair value We determined hat our

carrying value exceeded our fair vatume at most of our reporting units in each of our operating segments

indicating that goodwill was potentially impaired As result we initiated the second step of the goodwill
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impairment test which involves calculating the implied fair value of our goodwill by allocating the fair value

of the reporting unit to all assets and liabilities other than goodwill and comparing it to the carrying amount of

goodwill The fair value of each of the reporting units assets and liabilities were determined based on

combination of prices of comparable businesses and present value techniques

As of February 2009 we estimated the market implied fair value of our goodwill was less than its

carrying value by approximately $508.9 million which was recorded as goodwill impairment charge in the

first quarter of fiscal 2009 This charge was an estimate based on the result of the preliminary allocation of

fair value in the second step of the goodwill impairment test However due to the timing and complexity of

the valuation calculations required under the second step of the test we were not able to finalize our allocation

of the fair value until the second quarter of fiscal 2009 with regard to property plant and equipment and

intangible assets in which their respective values are dependent on property plant and equipment The

finalization was included in our goodwill impairment charge in the second quarter of fiscal 2009

Further declines in cash flow projections and the corresponding implementation of the Phase III

restructuring plan caused management to determine that there was an indicator requiring us to perform another

interim goodwill impairment test for each of our reporting units with goodwill remaining as of May 2009
As result of this impairment indicator we again performed the first step of our goodwill impairment test in

the second quarter of fiscal 2009 the results of which indicated that our carrying value exceeded our fair value

at most of our reporting units with goodwill remaining indicating that goodwill was potentially impaired As

result we initiated the second step of the goodwill impairment test As of May 2009 we determined the

market implied fair value of our goodwill was less than the carrying value for certain reporting units by

approximately $102.5 million which has been recorded as goodwill impairment charge in the second quarter

of fiscal 2009

As result of the aforementioned goodwill impairment indicators and in accordance with ASC 350 we

performed an impairment analysis on our indefinite lived intangible asset related to RCCs trade names in our

engineered building systems segment to determine the fair value Based on changes to our projected cash

flows in the first quarter of fiscal 2009 and based on the lower projected cash flows and related Phase III

restructuring plan in the second quarter of fiscal 2009 we determined the carrying cost exceeded the future

fair value attributable to the intangible asset and recorded impairment charges of $8.7 million in the first

quarter of fiscal 2009 and $2.4 million in the second quarter of fiscal 2009 related to the intangible asset

The results of our fiscal year 2009 annual assessment of the recoverability of goodwill and indefinite

lived intangibles indicated that the fair value of the Companys one remaining reporting unit was in excess of

the carrying value of that reporting unit including goodwill and thus no impairment existed in the fourth

quarter of fiscal 2009 In fiscal 2009 our one remaining reporting units fair value would have had to have

been lower by more than 50% compared to the fair value estimated in our impairment analysis before its

carrying value would exceed the fair value of the reporting unit indicating that goodwill was potentially

impaired

Allowance for doubtful accounts Our allowance for doubtful accounts reflects reserves for customer

receivables to reduce receivables to amounts expected to be collected Management uses significant judgment

in estimating uncollectible amounts In estimating uncollectible accounts management considers factors such

as current overall economic conditions industry-specific economic conditions historical customer performance

and anticipated customer performance While we believe these processes effectively address our exposure for

doubtful accounts and credit losses have historically been within expectations changes in the economy
industry or specific customer conditions may require adjustments to the allowance for doubtful accounts

During fiscal years 2009 2008 and 2007 we established new reserves for doubtful accounts of $1.2 million

$3.5 million and $0.3 million respectively Additionally in each of the three fiscal
years ended November

2009 we wrote off uncollectible accounts of $2.5 million $2.1 million and $6.6 million respectively all of

which had been previously reserved

Inventory valuation In determining the valuation of inventory and record an allowance for obsolete

inventory using the specific identification method for steel coils and other raw materials Management also

reviews the carrying value of inventory for lower of cost or market Our primary raw material is steel coils
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which have historically shown signi leant price volatility We generally manufacture to customers orders and

thus niaintain raw materials with variety ol ultimate end uses We record lower of cost or market charge to

cost of sales when the net realizable value selling price less estimated Cost of disposal based on our intended

end usage is below our estimated product cost at completion Estimated net realizable value is based upon

assumptions of targeted inventory turn rates future demand anticipated finished goods sales prices manage

mciii strategy and market conditions for steel If projected end usage or projected sales prices change

significantly Irom managements current estimates or actual market conditions are less lavorable than those

projected by management additional inventory writedowns may be required and in the case ol niajor

downturn in market conditions such writedowns could he significant

We adjusted our raw material inventory to the lower of cost or market because this inventory exceeded

our current estimates of net realizable value less normal profit margins At November 2009 all inventory

with lower of cost or market adjustment was fully utilized The balance of the lower of cost or market

adjustment was $2.7 million at November 2008

Properv plant and equip/ne/Il ialoatzon We assess the recoverability of the carrying amount of

property plant and equipment if certain events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value of

such assets may not he recoverable such as significant decrease in market value of the assets or significant

change in our business conditions If we determine that the carrying value of an asset is not recoverable based

on expected undiscounted future cash flows excluding interest charges we record an impairnient loss equal to

the excess of the carrying amount of the asset over its fair value The lair value of assets is determined based

on prices of similar assets adjusted for their remaining uselul life

During fiscal 209 we adjusted our property plant and equipment because we determined that the

carrying value of certain assets were not recoverable based on expected undiscounted luture cash flows We

recorded asset impairments of $6.3 million in fiscal 2009

Contingencies We establish reserves for estimated loss contingencies when we believe loss is

probable and the amount of the loss can he reasonably estimated Our contingent liability reserves are related

rimarily to litigation and environmental matters Revisions to contingent liability reserves re reflected in

income in the period in which there are changes in facts and circumstances that affect our pre\hious

assumptions
with respect to the likelihood or amount of loss Reserves for contingent liabilities are based upon

our assumptions and estimates regarding the probable outcome of the matter We estimate the probable cost by

evaluating historical precedent as well as the specific facts relating to each particular contingency including

the opinion of outside advisors prolessionals and experts Should the outcome differ from our assumptions

and estimates or other events result in material adjustment to the accrued estimated reserves revisions to the

estimated reserves for contingent liabilities would be required and would be recognized in the period the new

in lormation becomes known

RECENT ACCOUN11NG PRONOUNCEMENTS

In December 2008 the FASB issued guidance that has been codilied under ASC Topic 71520 Defined

Benefit Plans General ASC 71520 ASC 71520 provides guidance on an employers disclosures about

plan assets of dehned benefit pension or other postretirement plan The disclosures about plan assets required

by ASC 71520 are effective for our fiscal year ended 2010 and are not required for earlier periods presented

for comparative prirposes
We will adopt the disclosure provisions required by ASC 71520 in fiscal 2010

In June 2008 the FASB issued guidance that has been codified under ASC Topic 260I Earnings Per

Share ASC 26010 This pronouncement provides that unvested sharebased payment awards that contain

nonlorleitable rights to dividends or dividend equivalents are participating securities and therefore should

he included in computing earnings share using the two class method We will implement this statement in

our fiscal year that begins November 2009 and apply it as applicable All prior period earnings per
share

data would he adjusted retrospectively to con forni with the provisions of this pronoulicement We are cLirrently

evaluating the impact of this pronouncement
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In May 2008 the FASB issued guidance that has been codified under ASC Topic 470-20 Debt with

Conversion and Other Options ASC 470-20 ASC 470-20 will change the accounting for certain

convertible debt instruments including our Convertible Notes Under the new rules for convertible debt

instruments that may he settled entirely or partially in cash upon conversion an entity shall separately account

for the liability and equity components of the instrument in manner that reflects the issuers economic

interest cost The effect of ASC 470-20 for our Convertible Notes is that the equity component will be

included in the paid-in-capital section of stockholders equity on our consolidated balance sheet and the value

of the equity component will be treated as an original issue discount for purposes of accounting for the debt

component of the Convertible Notes Higher interest expense will result by recognizing the accretion of the

discounted carrying value of the Convertible Notes to their face amount as interest expense over the term of

the Convertible Notes using an effective interest rate method ASC 470-20 is effective for our fiscal year

ended 2010 does not permit early application and will he applied retrospectively to all periods presented

While this accounting pronouncement does not change the economic substance or cash flow requirements for

the Convertible Notes the amount reported as interest expense in our consolidated statement of operations will

increase due to the accretion of the discounted carrying value of the Convertible Notes to their face amount

The Convertible Notes will also reflect higher than previously reported interest
expense due to retrospective

application We are currently evaluating the impact of adopting ASC 470-20 hut anticipate the reported interest

expense on our Convertible Notes will increase from 2.125% to 7.5% The retroactive application of this

pronouncement to fiscal
years 2005 to 2009 will result in an increase to annual interest expense of

approximately $7.5 million in fiscal 2005 gradually increasing to approximately $9.9 million in fiscal 2009

In October 2009 we completed the Exchange Offer to acquire $180 million aggregate principal amount of the

Convertible Notes Therefore we will not have additional prospective interest
expense upon adoption

In February 2008 the FASB issued additional guidance codified under ASC 820-10 Fair Value

Measureineius and Disclosures ASC 820-10 This Statement defines fair value establishes framework for

measuring fair value and expands disclosures about fair value measurements ASC 820-10 partially delays the

effective date for nonfinancial assets and nonfinancial liabilities except for items that are recognized or

disclosed at fair value in the financial statements on recurring basis at least annually We will adopt ASC
820-10 in our fiscal year that begins November 2009 for nonrecurring non-financial assets and liabilities

that are recognized or disclosed at fair value However we do not believe the adoption of this accounting

pronouncement for nonrecurring non-financial assets and liabilities will have material impact on our

consolidated financial statements

In December 2007 the FASB issued guidance that has been codified under ASC Topic 810 consolidci

tions ASC 810 This Statement amends previous guidance to establish accounting and reporting standards

fOr the noncontrolling interest in subsidiary and for the deconsolidation of subsidiary It clarifies that

noncontrolling interest in subsidiary is an ownership interest in the consolidated entity that should be

reported as equity in the consolidated financial statements It requires consolidated net income to he reported

at amounts that include the amounts attributable to both the parent and the noncontrolling interest It also

requires disclosure on the face of the consolidated statement of income of the amounts of consolidated net

income attributable to the parent and to the noncontrolling interest ASC 10 established single method of

accounting for changes in parents ownership interest in subsidiary that do not result in deconsolidation

and requires that
parent recognize gain or loss in net income when subsidiary is deconsolidated In

addition ASC 810 requires expanded disclosures in the consolidated financial statements that clearly identify

and distinguish between the interests of the parents owners and the interests of the noncontrolling owners of

subsidiary We will implement this statement in our fiscal
year that begins November 2009 and apply it as

applicable We currently do not have any ownership interest which would he impacted by ASC 810

In December 2007 the FASB issued guidance that has been codified under ASC Topic 805 Business

Consolidations ASC 805 This statement replaces previous guidance hut retains the fundamental require

ments of the previous guidance ASC 805 establishes principles and requirements for how the acquirer

recognizes and measures in its financial statements the identifiable assets acquired the liabilities assumed and

any noncontrolling interest in the acquiree In addition ASC 805 recognizes and measures the goodwill

acquired in the business combination or gain from bargain purchase and determines disclosures to enable

53



users of the financial statement to evaluate the nature and Financial effects of the business combi nation We

will implement this statement for all luture acquisitiolls following the date of adoption in our fiscal year that

begins November 2009 The impact of adoption of ASC 05 on our Financial position or results of

operations is dependent upon the nature and terms of bus less comhiiations if any that we may consummate

in liscal 2010 and therealler

Item 7A Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

Steel Prices

We are subject to market risk exposure related to volatility in the price of steel For the fiscal year ended

November 2009 steel constituted approximately 71% oF our cost of sales Our business is heavily dependent

on the price and supply of steel Our various products are fabricated from steel produced by mills to forms

including bars plates structural shapes sheets hotrolled coils and galvanized or Galvalume_coated coils

The steel industry is highly cyclical in nature and steel prices have been volatile in recent years and may

remain volatile in the luturc Steel prices are influenced by numerous factors beyond our control including

general economic conditions domestically and internationally the availability of raw materials competition

labor costs lreight and transportation costs production costs import duties and other trade restrictions

Rapidly declining demand for steel due to the effects of the credit crisis and global economic slowdown on

the construction automot and industrial markets has resulted in many steel manufacturers around the world

announcing plans to cut production by closing plants and furloughing workers Steel suppliers such as US

Steel and Arcelor Mittal are among these manufacturers who have cut production Given reduced steel

production higher input costs and low inventories in the industry we believe steel prices will increase in fiscal

2010 as compared with the prices we experienced during the second half of fiscal 2009

Although we have the ability to purchase steel from number ol suppliers production cutback by one

or more of our current suppliers could create challenges in meeting delivery schedules to our customers

Because we have periodically adjusted our contract prices particularly in the engineered building systems

segment we have generally been able to pass increases in our raw material costs through to our customers

The graph below shows the monthly CRU Index data for the North American Steel Price Index over the

historical liveyear period The CRU North American Steel Price Index has been published by the CRU Ciioup

since 1994 and we believe this index appropriately depicts the volatility of steel prices The index based on

CRU survey of industry participants is now commonly used in the settlement of physical and financial

contracts in the steel indusfry The prices surveyed are purchases for forward delivery according to lead time

which will vary For example the October index would likely approximate our fiscal November or December

steel purchase deliveries based on current leadtimes The volatility in this steel price index is comparable to

the volatility we experienced in our average cost of steel Further due to the market conditions described

above the most recent CRU prices have heemi based on lower than normal trading volume
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Source www.crugroup.com

We do not have any long-term contracts for the purchase of steel and normally do not maintain an

inventory of steel in excess of our current production requirements However from time to time we may
purchase steel in advance of announced steel price increases We can give no assurance that steel will remain

available or that prices will not continue to he volatile While most of our contracts have escalation clauses

that allow us under certain circumstances to pass along all or portion of increases in the price of steel after

the date of the contract but prior to delivery we may for competitive or other reasons not be able to pass

such price increases along If the available supply of steel declines we could experience price increases that

we are not able to pass on to the end users deterioration of service from our suppliers or interruptions or

delays that may cause us not to meet delivery schedules to our customers Any of these problems could

adversely affect our results of operations and financial position

We rely on few major suppliers for our supply of steel and may be adversely affected by the

bankruptcy change in control financial condition or other factors affecting those suppliers During fiscal 2009
we purchased approximately 30% of our steel requirements from one vendor in the United States No other

vendor accounted for over 10% of our steel requirements during fiscal 2009 Due to unfavorable market

conditions and our inventory supply requirements during fiscal 2009 we purchased insignificant amounts of

steel from foreign suppliers Limiting purchases to domestic suppliers further reduces our available steel

supply base Therefore recently announced cutbacks prolonged labor strike against one or more of our

principal domestic suppliers or financial or other difficulties of principal supplier that affects its ability to

produce steel could have material adverse effect on our operations Furthermore if one or more of our

current suppliers is unable for financial or any other reason to continue in business or to produce steel

sufficient to meet our requirements essential supply of our primary raw materials could be temporarily

interrupted and our business could he adversely affected However alternative sources including foreign steel

are currently believed to he sufficient to maintain required deliveries

With steel accounting for approximately 71 of our cost of sales for fiscal 2009 one percent change in

the cost of steel would have resulted in pre-tax impact on cost of sales of approximately $5.7 million for our

fiscal
year ended November 2009 if such costs were not passed on to our customers The impact to our

financial results of operations would he significantly dependent on the competitive environment and the costs

of other alternative building products which could impact our ability to pass on these higher costs

CRU Steel Price Index North America
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Interest Rates

We are subject to market risk exposure related to changes in interest rates on our Amended Credit

Agreement and ABL Facility These instruments hear interest at an agreed upon percentage point spread from

either the prime interest ratc or L1lR Under our Amended Credit Agreement we may at our option lix the

interest rate for certain borrowings based on spread over LII3OR for 30 days to six months At November

2009 we had $150.0 million outstanding under our Amended Credit Agreement Based on this balance and

considerig the Swap Agreement discussed below an immediate change ot one percent in the interest rate

would cause change in interest expense of approxinlately $1.1 million on an annual basis The hnr value of

our Convertible Notes at November 2009 was approximately $0 million compared to the face value of

$0.1 million The fair value of our Convertible Notes at November 2008 was approximately $149.5 million

compared to the face value of $180.0 million The lair value of our Amended Credit Agreement at

November 2009 was approximately $138.0 million compared to the lace value of $150.0 million The fair

value of our Credit Agreement at November 2008 was approximately $252.0 million compared to the lace

value of $293.2 million

We may from time to time utilize interest rate swaps to manage overall borrowing costs and reduce

exposure
to adverse fluctuations in interest rates We do not purchase or hold any derivative financial

instruments br trading purposes As disclosed in Note to the Consolidated Financial Statements we

inIij ally coil vcrted 60 ii ion of our $293 iii iii ion term loan outstanding on our $400 million term loan

under the Credit Agreement to fixed rate debt by entering into an interest rate swap agreement Swap

Agreement At November 2009 and November 2008 the notional amount of the Swap Agreement was

$65 iuillion and $105 million respectively However in connection with our refinancing we concluded the

Swap Agreement was no longer an effective hedge based on the modihed terms of the Amended Credit

Agreement which includes 2% LIBOR floor We do not believe the LIBOR rates over the remaining term of

the Swap Agreement will exceed the LIBOR floor stated in the Amended Credit Agreement which in effect

results in fixed rate debt

See Note to the Consolidated hnancial Statements br more inbormation on the material terms of our

longterm debt

The table below presents scheduled debt maturities and related weightedaverage interest rates br each of

the fiscal
years relating to debt obligations as of November 2009 Weightedaverage variable rates are based

on LIBOR rates at November 2009 plus applicable margins

lair

Scheduled .1atti rity late Value

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 Thereafter Fatal 11/I f09

In iii illions except
iiilerest rate percentages

Total Debt

Fixed Rateb 0.2 0.2 0.2

Interest Rate 1%

Variable Rate $13.9 1.4 .3 1.3 132.1 $150.0 $1 38.0c

Average interest rate 8.0% 8.0% 8.0% 8.0% 8.0% 8.0%

Expected maturity date amounts are based on the face value of debt and 10 not reflect air market value of

the debt

Fixed rate debt excludes the Swap Agreenient

Based on iecent trading activities ol comparable market instruments

Foreigii Currency Exchange Rates

We aie exposed to the ebbect of exchange rate blucluations oIl the U.S dollar value of foreign ctirrecy

denominated operating revenue and expenses ftc lunciionab currency bor our Mexico operations is the

U.S dollar Adjustments resulting froni the remeasurement of the local currency linancial statements into the

U.S dollar functional currency which uses combination of current and historical exchange rates are
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included in net income in the current period Net foreign currency re-measurement losses for the fiscal year

ended November 2009 was immaterial and for the fiscal years ended November 2008 and October 28
2007 was $l.l million and $0.3 million respectively

The functional currency for our Canada operations is the Canadian dollar Translation adjustments

resulting from translating the functional
currency financial statements into U.S dollar equivalents are reported

separately in accumulated other comprehensive income in stockholders equity Net foreign currency

translation adjustment net of tax and included in other comprehensive income for the fiscal years ended

November 2009 and November 2008 was $0.2 million and $0.3 million respectively
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MANAGEMENTS REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

Management of NCI Building Systems Inc the Company or our is responsible br establishing and

maintaining adequate internal control over lnancial reporting tor the Company as deli ned in Rules 3a 51
and Sd- 15f under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 The Companys internal control system was

designed to provide reasonable assurance to the Companys management and board of directors regarding the

reliability of tinancial reporting and the preparation of hnancial statements br external purposes
in accordance

with U.S generally accepted accounting principles

Internal control over hnancial reporting includes the controls themselves monitoring including internal

auditing practices and actions taken to correct deticiencies as identified

Internal control over tinancial reporting has inherent limitations and may not prevent or detect misstate

ments The design of an internal control system is also based in part upon assumptions and .lclgu1e11ts made

by management about the likelihood of future events and there can he no assurance that an internal control

will be effective under all potential future conditions Therefore even those systems determined to he effective

can provide only reasonable not absolute assurance with respect to the financial statement preparation and

present1tion Further because of changes in conditions the effectiveness of internal control over financial

reporting may vary over time

Management assessed the effectiveness of the Companys internal control over financial reporting as of

November 2009 In making this assessment management used the criteria for internal control over financial

reporting described in Internal Control Integrated Frnnenoi by the Committee of Sponsoring rganiza

tions of the Treadway Commission COSt Managements assessment included an evaluation of the design

of the Companys internal control over financial reporting and testing ol the operating effectiveness of its

internal control over financial reporting Management reviewed the results of its assessment with the Audit

Committee of the Companys Board of Directors Based on this assessment management has concluded that

as of November 2009 the Companys internal control over financial reporting was effective

Ernst Young LLP the independent registered public accounting firm that has audited the Companys

consolidated financial statements has audited the effectiveness of the Companys internal control over

financial reporting as ol November 2009 Their report included elsewhere herein expresses an unqualitied

opinion on the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting as of November 2009
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Board of Directors and Shareholders of NCI Building Systems Inc

We have audited NCI Building Systems Inc.s the Company internal control over financial reporting

as of November 2009 based on criteria established in Internal Control-Integrated Framework issued by the

Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission the COSO criteria The Companys

management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for its

assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting included in the accompanying

Managements Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting Our responsibility is to express an

opinion on the companys internal control over financial reporting based on our audit

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight

Board United States Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable

assurance about whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material

respects Our audit included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting assessing

the risk that material weakness exists testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of

internal control based on the assessed risk and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary

in the circumstances We believe that our audit provides reasonable basis for our opinion

companys internal control over financial reporting is process designed to provide reasonable

assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external

purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles companys internal control over

financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that pertain to the maintenance of records that

in reasonable detail accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company
provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial

statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and that receipts and expenditures of

the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the

company and provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized

acquisition use or disposition of the companys assets that could have material effect on the financial

statements

Because of its inherent limitations internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect

misstatements Also projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that

controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions or that the degree of compliance with the

policies or procedures may deteriorate

In our opinion NCI Building Systems Inc maintained in all material respects effective internal control

over financial reporting as of November 2009 based on the COSO criteria

We also have audited in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight

Board United States the consolidated balance sheets of the Company as of November 2009 and

November 2008 and the related consolidated statements of operations stockholders equity cash flows and

comprehensive income loss for each of the three years in the period ended November 2009 of the

Company and our report dated December 22 2009 expressed an unqualified opinion thereon

Is Ernst Young LLP

Houston Texas

December 22 2009
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REPORT OF INDEIEN1ENT REGISTERFI PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Board of Directors and Shareholders of NCI Building Systems Inc

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of NCI Building Systems Inc the

Company as of November 2009 and November 2008 and the related consolidated statements of

operations stockholders equity cash flows and comprehensive income loss br each of the three years in the

period ended November 2009 These hnancial statements are the responsibility of the Companys

management Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight

Board United States Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtaii reasonable

assurance about whether the financial statements arc free of material misstatement An audit includes

examining on test basis evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements An

audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and signif cant estimates made by management as

well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation We believe that our audits provide reasonable

basis br our opinion

In our opinion the financial statements referred to above present fairly in all material respects the

consolidated financial position of the Company at November 2009 and November 2008 and the

consolidated results of their operations their cash flows and their comprehensive incolile loss or each of the

three years in the period ended November 2009 in conbormity with U.S generally accepted accounting

principles

As discussed in Notes and 23 to the consolidated financial statements effective October 28 2007 the

Company adopted the guidance originally issued in Staff Accounting Bulletin No 108 Considering the

effects of Prior Year Misstatements when Quantifying Misstatements in Current Year Financial Statements

and the guidance originally issued in Statement of Financial Accounting Standard SFAS No 158 Employ

ers Accounting for Defined Benefit Pension and Other Postretirement Plans an amendment of FASB

Statements No 87 88 106 and 132R codified in FASB ASC Topic 715 CompensationRetirement

Benefits Also discussed in Note to the consolidated financial statements effective October 29 2007 the

Company adopted the guidance originally issued in FASB Interpretation No 48 Accounting far Uncertainty

in Income Taxes an Interpretation of FASB Statement No 109 codified in FASB ASC Topic 740 Income

Taxes

We also have audited in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight

Board United States the Companys internal control over tinancial reporting as of November 2009 based

on criteria established in Internal Controlliitegrated Framework issued by tile Committee of Sponsoring

Organizations of the Treadway Commission and our report dated December 22 2009 expressed an unqualified

opinion thereon

1st Ernst Young LLP

Houston Texas

December 22 2009



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

NC BUILDING SYSTEMS INC

Fiscal Year Ended

November November October 28
2009 2008 2007

In thousands except per share data

Sales 967923 $1764159 $1625068

Cost of sales 752793 1321917 1221463

Lower of cost or market adjustment 39986 2739

Asset impairments 6291 157

Gross profit 168853 439346 403605

Selling general and administrative expenses 209567 283577 271871

Goodwill and other intangible asset impairments 622564

Restructuring charge 9052 1059

Change of control charges 11168

Income loss from operations 683498 154710 131734

Interest income 393 1085 725

Interest expense 20410 23535 28829
Debt extinguishment and refinancing costs 100260
Other expense income net 2287 1880 1195

Income loss before income taxes 801488 130380 104825

Provision benefit fir income taxes 54524 51499 41096

Net income loss $746964 78881 63729

Convertible preferred stock dividends and accretion 1187

Convertible preferred stock beneficial conversion feature 10526

Net income loss applicable to common shares $758677 78881 63729

Earnings loss per share

Basic 34.06 4.08 3.25

Diluted 34.06 4.05 3.06

Weighted average number of common shares outstanding

Basic 22013 19332 19582

Diluted 22013 19486 20793

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements

61



CONSOLIDATE BALANCE SHEETS

NC BUILDING SYSTEMS INC

November November

2009 2008

In thotisands

except share data

ASSETS

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents 90419 68.2W

Restricted cash current 5154

Accounts receivable net 82889 63.005

Inventories net 71537 92.0

Deferred income taxes 18787 21

Income tax receivable 27622

Investments in debt and equity securities at niarket 3359 2.639

Prepaid expenses and other 14494 15.735

Assets held for sale 4963

Total current assets 319224 465.850

Property plant and equipment net 231840 251 .163

Goodwill 5200 616.626

Intangible assets net 28370 41.678

Restricted cash net of current portion 7825

Other assets net 21389 5.384

Total assets 613848 $1380.701

LIABILITIES AND STCKHOLDERS EQUITY

Cu nent liabilities

Current portion of longterm debt 14164 921

Note payable 481

Accounts payable 73594 104.348

Accrued compensation and benetits 37215 67.429

Accrued interest 776 2422

Other accrued expenses 52455 60.013

Total current liabilities 178685 235.132

Long-term debt 136085 473.480

Deferred income taxes 18591 44.332

Other longterm liabilities 8007 3.928

Total longterm liahi lilies 162683 521 .740

Series cumulative convertible participating preferred stock 222815

Stockholders equity

Common stock $0 par value 100.000.000 shares authorized 90.411.147 and

22.403711 shares issued in 2009 and 200% respectively and 90.411.147 and

19.734.025 shares outstanding in 2009 and 2008 respectively 904 224

Additional paidin capital 263620 200.680

Retained earnings deficit 206000 540.964

Accumulated other comprehensive loss 8859 11.440

Treasury stock at cost 2.669.686 shares in 200%
______________

1165991

Total stockholders equity 49665 623.829

Total liabilities and stockholders equity 613848 $1 .3%t.70

See aeeomrInying notes to the consolidated linancial statements
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

NC BUILDING SYSTEMS INC

Fiscal Year Ended

November November October 28
2009 2008 2007

In thousands

Cash flows from operating activities

Net income loss $746964 78881 63729
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating

activities

Depreciation and amortization 32776 35588 35535
Share-based compensation expense 4835 9504 8610
Accelerated vesting of share-based compensation 9066
Debt extinguishment and refinancing costs 95418
Gain on sale of property plant and equipment 928 1264 814
Provision for inventory obsolescence 696

Lower of cost or market reserve 39986 2739
Provision for doubtful accounts 1221 3468 330

Interest rate swap ineffectiveness 3072
Provision benefit for deferred income taxes 24452 266 7090
Asset impairments 6291

Impairment of goodwill and intangible assets 622564

Changes in operating assets and liabilities net of effect of acquisitions

Accounts receivable 78895 5008 9753
Inventories 79362 57025 28020
Income tax receivable 32332
Prepaid expenses and other 1423 9724 957
Accounts payable 30754 23738 12978
Accrued expenses 41599 7445 10815
Other net 336 938 2350

Net cash provided by operating activities 95370 40194 137625
Cash flows from investing activities

Acquisitions net of cash acquired 20086
Capital expenditures 21657 24803 42041
Proceeds from sale of property plant and equipment 2589 4238 6696
Cash surrender value life insurance 2101

Other net 34 226 932
Net cash used in investing activities 19102 18690 56363

Cash flows from financing activities

Proceeds from stock options exercised 12 698 3923

Deposits of restricted cash 12979
Excess tax benefits from share-based compensation arrangements 215 1596

Borrowings on revolving lines of credit 90500

Payments on revolving lines of credit 90500
Payments on long-term debt 920 22637 947
Payments on note payable 1693 3892
Issuance of convertible preferred stock 250000

Payment of convertible notes 89971
Payment of on term loan 143290
Payment of refinancing costs 54659 914 75
Purchase of treasury stock 451 2226 36122

Net cash used in provided by financing activities 53951 28756 31625
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents 99 399 379

Net decrease increase in cash and cash equivalents 22218 6853 50016
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 68201 75054 25038

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period 90419 68201 75054

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements

63



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS EQUITY

NCI BUILDING SYSTEMS INC

$218 752 8-103125

.- 4.40

3.922

596

860

.80

516

9.504

36

5.073

702 69.725

2.585

31

3.90

78.88

549994

Stocidiolders

_____________

kqutty

498.409

4.419

36.122

3.923

.591

42

8.6

.800

2.019

63.729

1014.373 8539.696

2.226 2.2261

See accon13anying notes to the consolidated hnancial statements

2.590.404

79.28

Acciim ulated

Additirtal l4etajtied Other
Common Stock

laill la rnitlgs Corn trehensive
reasurv Stock

Shares Amount Capital leficit Loss Income Shares Amount

In thousands except share data

Balance October 29 2006 .793.94 .814 1.8 16.516 78.251

Ctintnhutive etfcct of adopting

SAB 08 let of taxes Note

Ireiisiiry
stock puichascs

773.888 36.122

oninion stock ssted or stock

option exercises 9.233

lbs benefit troiii employee stock

incentive plan

Issnance If restricted stock

Other conipreticnsive income 42

Shatchased cootpensatin

Shares ilsiled or acqllisitn 35.448

Adoption of ASC 71 520 net of

taxes Note 23 ---- 2.019

Net Income .72r

Balance October 28 2007 22.129236 $221 9t017 492.444 357

lieastiry stock ptirctiascs
.-

Contilioti stock issued or stock

option exercises 34.343 698

fix benefit from entployee stock

incentive plan

Issuance of restricted stock 24

thcr cotoprehensi ye loss .- .797

Sttitiebased cotttpctlsation

Adoption If ASC 74
Note 17

Net income

Italattce Nos-ember 2008 22.413.711 .440 2669.686

Freasury stock ptirctti sex -- 176.91

Retirement of treasnrv shares 2.846.604 2.846.604

.olttltton stock issued for stock

option
exercises 825

tax beneti trotit employee stock

incentive plait

Convertible Notes exattatige 711 77.085

.oitvertible Preferred Stock

di vi lends payable

-l ax benefit 1011 Convertible

lrelerreil Stock issnance costs.

Issuance of restricted stock 175.131

Othei cotiiprettettsixc loss 7.419

Sharebased compenmtton --

Net loss

Balance Novernher 2119 904047 91904 26362
_________

918859

1224

29

566

1.797

9.504

361

20.68

117.02

116.599

45
7.050

78.881

623.829

451

---- 5.073

70.427

.1811

2.585

7.419

13.90t

746964

49665

746964

91206.000
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME LOSS

NC BUILDING SYSTEMS INC

Fiscal Year Ended

November November October 28
2009 2008 2007

In thousands

Comprehensive income loss

Net income loss applicable to common shares $758677 $78881 $63729

Other comprehensive income loss net of tax

Foreign exchange translation gain loss net of income tax of $107

in 2009 $140 in 2008 and $135 in 2007 198 259 244

Unrecogiiized actuarial gain loss on pension obligation net of

income tax of $6010 in 2009 $1046 in 2008 and $290 in

2007 9641 1628 454

Loss in fair value of interest rate swap net of income tax of $345

in 2009 $272 in 2008 and $357 in 2007 554 428 556
Reclassification adjustment for losses on derivative instruments

net of income tax of $1854 in 2009 2974

Other comprehensive income loss 7419 1797 142

Comprehensive income loss $766096 $77084 $63871

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements
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NOTES To CONSOLIDATED NANCI AL STATEMENTS

NCI BUILDING SYSTEMS INC

NATURE OF BUSINESS AND PRINCIPLES OF CONSOLIDATION

NC Building Systems Inc together with its subsidiaries unless otherwise indicated the Company
we us 01 our is North Americas largest integrated manufacturer and marketer of metal products br

the nonresidential construction industry We provide metal coil coating services and design engineer

manufacture and market metal components and engineered building systems priiiarily br nonresidential

construction use We manufacture and distribute extensive lines of metal products or the nonresidential

construction market under multiple brand names through nationwide network of plaits and distribution

centers We sell our products br both new construction and repair and retroht applications

On October 20 2009 the Company issued and sold to Clayton Dubilier Rice Fund VIII L.P and ClR
Friends Family Fund VIII L.P together the CDR Funds an aggregate

of 250000 shares of newly created

class of convertible prefarred stock value $1 .X per share of the Company designated the Series 13 Cumulative

Convertible Participating Pretbrred Stock the Convertible Preferred Stock and shares thereof the Preferred

Shares representing approximately 68.4 of the voting power and common stock of the Company on an as

converted basis such purchase and sale the Equity investment

In connection with the closing of the Equity Investment the Company among other things look the

lollowing actions together with the Equity Investment the Recapitalization Plan

consummated its exchange otter the Exchange Offer to acquire all of the Companys existing

125% convertible notes due 2024 in exchange for combination of $90 mill ion in cash and

7C.2 million shares of our common stock

rehnanced the Companys existing credit agreement which included the partial prepayment of

approximately $143 million in principal amount of the existing $293 million in principal amount of

outstanding term loans thereunder and modihcation of the terms and an amendment and extension of

the maturity of the remaining ISO million outstanding balance of the term loans the Amended Credit

Agreement and

entered into an assetbased revolving credit facility with maximum available amount of
tip

to

$125 million the ABL Facility Borrowing availability on the assetbased revolving credit foci lily is

determined by monthly borrowing base collateral calculation that is based on specihed percentages
of

the value of qualified cash eligible inventory and eligible accounts receivable less certain reserves and

subject to certain other adjustments At November 2009 our excess availability under the assetbased

revolving credit facility was $70.4 million

As of November 2009 the Preferred Shares were convertible into 196.1 million shares of common

stock at conversion price ol .2748 However as of that date only approximately 8.2 million shares of

common stock were authorized and unissued and therefore the CDR Funds could not fully convert the

Preferred Shares To the extent that the CDR Funds opt to convert their Preferred Shares as of November

2009 their conversion right was limited to conversion of their Preferred Shares into the approximately

8.2 million shares of common stock that were authorized and unissued

Dividends on the Convertible Preferred Stock are payable on cumulative daily basis as if and when

declared by our board of directors at rate per annum of 12% of the liquidation pref rence of $1000 per

Ireferred Share subject to certain adjustments if paid inkind or at rate per annum of 8% of the liquidation

preberence of $1000 per
Preferred Share subject to certain adjustments if paid in cash We have the right to

choose whether dividends are paid in cash or inkind subject to the conditions of the Amended Credit

Agreement and ABL Facility including being contractual by limited in our ability to pay cash dividends until

the first quarter of fiscal 2011 under the Amimended Credit Agreement and until October 20 2010 under the

ABL Facility except for certain specibiecl purposes
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We use 52/53 week
year with our fiscal year end on the Sunday closest to October 31 The year end for fiscal

2009 is November 2009 Our fourth quarter of fiscal 2008 includes an additional week of operating activity

We have evaluated our subsequent events through December 22 2009

We aggregate our operations into three reportable business segments metal coil coating metal compo
nents and engineered building systems We base this aggregation on similarities in product lines manufactur

ing processes marketing and how we manage our business We market the products in each of our business

segments nationwide through direct sales force and in the case of our engineered building systems segment

through authorized builder networks

Our Consolidated Financial Statements include the accounts of the Company and all majority-owned

subsidiaries All intercompany accounts transactions and profits arising from consolidated entities have been

eliminated in consolidation

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Use of Estimates The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles

generally accepted in the U.S requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported

amounts of assets and liabilities disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial

statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period Examples include

provisions for had debts and inventory reserves and accruals for employee benefits general liability insurance

warranties and certain contingencies Actual results could differ from those estimates

Cash and Cash Equivalents Cash equivalents are stated at cost plus accrued interest which

approximates fair value Cash equivalents are highly liquid debt instruments with an original maturity of three

months or less and may consist of time deposits with number of commercial banks with high credit ratings

Eurodollar time deposits money market instruments certificates of deposit and commercial paper Our policy

allows us to also invest excess funds in no-load open-end management investment trusts mutual funds
The mutual funds invest exclusively in high quality money market instruments As of November 2009 our

cash equivalents were all invested in money market instruments

Accounts Receivable and Related Allowance We report accounts receivable net of the allowance for

doubtful accounts Trade accounts receivable are the result of sales of building systems components and

coating services to customers throughout the United States and affiliated territories including international

builders who resell to end users Substantially all sales are denominated in U.S dollars with the exception of

sales at our Canadian operations which are denominated in Canadian dollars Credit sales do not normally

require pledge of collateral however various types of liens may be liled to enhance the collection process

We establish reserves for doubtful accounts on customer by customer basis when we believe the

required payment of specific amounts owed is unlikely to occur In establishing these reserves we consider

changes in the financial position of customer availability of security lien rights and bond rights as well as

disputes if any with our customers Our allowance for doubtful accounts reflects reserves for customer

receivables to reduce receivables to amounts expected to he collected We determine past due status as of the

contractual payment date Interest on delinquent accounts receivable is included in the trade accounts

receivable balance and recognized as interest income when chargeable and collectibility is reasonably assured

Uncollectible accounts are written off when settlement is reached for an amount that is less than the

outstanding historical balance or we have exhausted all collection efforts The following table
represents the
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roll lorward of our uncollcctible accounts activity or the tiscal years ended November 2009 November

2008 and October 28 2007 in thousands

November November October 28
2009 2008 2007

Beginning balance $10330 8.975 $15225

Provision br had debts 1221 3.468 330

Amounts charged against all ovance br bail dehO. net of

reCOVerIes 2512 2.113 6.580

Eiiding balance 9039 $l033 8.975

Inrentories inventories are stated at the lower ol cost or market value less allowance for inventory

obsolescence using specitic identification or the weightedaverage method for steel coils and other raw

materials During fiscal 2009 we incurred lower of cost or market adjustments of $8 million in the metal

coil coating segment $17.2 million in the metal components segment and $14.7 million in the engineered

building systems segment for total of $40.0 million During fiscal 2008 we incurred lower of cost or market

adjustment $2.7 million in the metal coil coating segment Lower of cost or market adjustments were recorded

because this inventory exceeded our current estimates of net realizable value less normal protit margins At

November 2009 all inventory with lower of cost or market adjustment was fully utilized The balance of

the lower of cost or market adjustment was $2.7 million at November 2008

The components of inventory are as follows in thousands

November Noveniber

2009 2008

Raw materials $48081 $1 42.614

Work in
piocess

and finished goods 23456 49397

$71537 $192011

The following table represents the roll forward of reserve br obsolete materials and supplies activity br

the fiscal years ended November 2009 November 2008 and October 28 2007 in thousands

November November October 28
2009 2008 2107

Beginning balance 1807 4433 3737

Provisions 1409 252 1710

Dispositions 1624 2878 1014

Ending balance 1592 $1807 4433

During fiscal 2009 we purchased approximately 30% of our steel requirements from one vendor No

other vendor accounted for over 10% of our steel requirements during fiscal 2009

Property P/nut and Equuinoent Properly plant and equipment are stated at cost and depreciated

using the straightline method over their estimated useful lives l.easeliold improvements are capitalized and

amortized using the straightline method over the shorter of their estimated useful lives or the term of the

underlying lease Computer sobtware developed or purclmsed for inlernal use is depreciated using the straight

line method over its estimated useful life

Depreciation expense br fiscal 2009 2008 and 2007 was $29.9 million $32.5 million and $29.3 mil lion

respectively Of this depreciation expense $7 million $4.5 million and $4.3 million was related to sobtware

depreciation for fiscal 2009 2008 and 2007 respectively



Property plant and equipment consists of the following in thousands

November November
2009 2008

Land 22141 24281

Buildings and improvements 165846 165495

Machinery equipment and furniture 225367 229591

Transportation equipment 3326 3470

Computer software and equipment 77407 69592

494087 492429

Less accumulated depreciation 262247 241266

231840 251163

Estimated useful lives for depreciation are

Buildings and improvements 10 39 years

Machinery equipment and furniture 10 years

Transportation equipment 10 years

Computer software and equipment years

We capitalize interest on capital invested in projects in accordance with Financial Accounting Standards

Board FASB guidance codified under ASC Topic 835 Interest For fiscal 2009 2008 and 2007 the total

amount of interest capitalized was $0.4 million $0.9 million and $0.7 million respectively Upon commence
ment of operations capitalized interest as component of the total cost of the asset is amortized over the

estimated useful life of the asset

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets We review the carrying values of goodwill and identifiable

intangibles whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that such carrying values may not be

recoverable and annually for goodwill and indefinite lived intangible assets as required by guidance codified

under ASC Topic 350 Intangibles Goodwill and Other Unforeseen events changes in circumstances

market conditions and material differences in the value of intangible assets due to changes in estimates of

future cash flows could negatively affect the fair value of our assets and result in non-cash impairment

charge Some factors considered important that could trigger an impairment review include the following

significant underperformance relative to expected historical or projected future operating results significant

changes in the manner of our use of acquired assets or the strategy for our overall business and significant

negative industry or economic trends In fiscal 2009 our one remaining reporting units fair value would have

had to have been lower by more than 50% compared to the fair value estimated in our impairment analysis

before its carrying value would exceed the fair value of the reporting unit indicating that goodwill was

potentially impaired See Note 16

Revenue Recognition We recognize revenues when the following conditions are met persuasive

evidence of an arrangement exists delivery has occurred or services have been rendered the price is lixed or

determinable and collectahility is reasonably assured Generally these criteria are met at the time product is

shipped or services are complete Provisions are made upon sale for estimated product returns

Equity Raising and Deferred Financing Costs Equity raising costs are recorded as reduction to

additional paid in capital upon the execution of an equity transaction In connection with the Exchange Offer

on the Convertible Notes we incurred $5.7 million in equity raising costs Deferred financing costs are

capitalized as incurred and amortized using the effective interest method over the expected life of the debt In

modification of debt costs paid to the creditor are capitalized and costs paid to non-creditors are expensed

as incurred

Cost of sales Cost of sales includes the cost of inventory sold during the period including costs for

manufacturing inbound freight receiving inspection warehousing and internal transfers less vendor rebates
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Costs associated with shipping and handling Our pfldUCts are included in cost of sales Purchasing costs aiid

engineeriiig and drafting costs are included in selling general and administrative expense Purchasing costs

were $3.2 million $3.7 million and $3.7 million and engineering and drafting costs were $35.2 million

$53.9 million and $50.0 million in each of Fiscal 2009 2005 and 2007 rcspectively Approximately

$2.2 million and $3.9 mill ion ihese selling general and administrative costs were capitalized and remained

in inventory at the end of fiscal 2009 and 2005 respectively

Warranty We sell weathertightness warranties to our customers for protection ftoii leaks in our

roofing systems related to weather These warranties range from two years to 20 years
We sell two types of

warranties standard and Single Source and three grades of coverage for each The type
and grade of

coverage determines the price to ihe custoliler For standard warranties our responsibiliy for leaks in rooling

sysleni begins after 24 consecutive leakFree months For Single SourceTM warranties the rooling system must

piss our inspection before warranty coverage will he issued Inspections are typically pertormed at ihrce stages

of the roofing project at the project startup ii at the project midpoint and iii at the project

completion These inspections are included in the cost of the warranty If the project requires or the customer

requests additional inspections those inspections are hilled to the customer Upon the sale of warranty we

record the resulting revenue as deferred revenue which is included in other accrued expenses in our

Consolidated Balance Sheets We recognize deferred warranty revenue over the warranty coverage period in

manner that matches our estimated expenses relating to the warranty Additionally we assumed warranty

obligation relating to our acquisition of RobertsonCeco II Corporation RCC of $7.6 million which

represents the fair value of the future warranty obligations at the time of purchase RCCs accrued warranty

programs have similar terms and characteristics to our other warranty programs See Note

Insurance Group medical insurance is purchised through Blue Cross Blue Shield BCBS The

plans include Preferred Provider Organization or PPO plan and an Exclusive Provider Organization or

EIO plan These plans are managedcare plans utilizing networks to achieve discounts through negotiated

rates with the providers within these networks The claims incurred under these plans are sellfunded or the

first $250000 of each claim We purchase specific stop loss reinsurance to limit our claims liability to

$250000 per claim BCBS administers all claims including claims processing utilization review and network

access charges

Insurance is purchased for workers compensation and employer liability general liability property and

auto liability/auto physical damage We utilize either deductibles or selfinsurance retentions SIR to limit

the exposure to catastrophic loss The workers compensation insurance has $500000 per occurrence

deductible The property and auto liability insurances have peroccrtrrence deductibles of $250000 The

general liability insurance has $250000 SIR Umbrella insurance coverage is purchased to protect us against

claims that exceed our peroccnlrrelce or aggregate limits set forth in our respective policies All claims are

adjusted utilizing thirdparty claims administrator

Each reporting period we record the costs of our health insurance plan including paid claims an

estimate of the change in incurred but not reported BNR claims taxes and administrative fees col lecti ely

the Plan Costs as general and administrative expenses in our Consolidated Statements of perations The

estimated IBNR claims are based upon recent average level of paid claims under the plan ii an

estimated lag factor and iii an estimated growth factor to provide for those claims that have been incurred

hut not yet paid We use an independent actuary to determine the claims lag and estimated liability for BNR

claims

For workers compensation costs we monitor the number of accidents and the severity of such accidents

to develop appropriate estimates For expected costs to provide both medical care and benefits during the period

of time an employee is unable to work These accruals are developed using independent actuarial estimates of

the expected cost and length of time an employee will he unable to work based on industry statistics for the

cost of similar disabilities For general liability and autoniohile claims accruals are developed based on

independent actuarial estimates of the expected cost to resolve each claim based on industry statistics and the

nature and severity of the claim This statistical inforniation is trended to provide estimates of future expected

costs based on factors developed from our owil experience of actual claims cost compared to original
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estimates Each reporting period we record the costs of our workers compensation general liability and

automobile claims including paid claims an estimate of the change in incurred but not reported IBNR
claims taxes and administrative fees as general and administrative

expenses in our Consolidated Statements of

Operations

Advertising Costs Advertising costs are expensed as incurred Advertising expense was $5.4 million

$6.9 million and $7.4 million in fiscal 2009 2008 and 2007 respectively

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets We assess impairment of property plant and equipment in

accordance with the provisions of SFAS 144 Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets

We assess the recoverability of the carrying amount of property plant and equipment if certain events or

changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value of such assets may not be recoverable such as

significant decrease in market value of the assets or significant change in our business conditions If we
determine that the carrying value of an asset is not recoverable based on expected undiscounted future cash

flows excluding interest charges we record an impairment loss equal to the excess of the carrying amount of

the asset over its fair value The fair value of assets is determined based on prices of similar assets adjusted

for their remaining useful life During fiscal 2009 we adjusted our property plant and equipment because we
determined that the carrying value of certain assets were not recoverable based on expected undiscounted

future cash Ilows We recorded asset impairments of $6.3 million in fiscal 2009 See Note for asset

impairments in fiscal 2009 We had no impairments in fiscal 2008 or 2007

Share-Based Compensation Compensation expense recorded for restricted stock awards under the

intrinsic value method is consistent with the expense that is recorded under the fair value-based method We
recorded the recurring pretax compensation expense relating to restricted stock awards of $4.3 million

$7.8 million and $5.9 million for fiscal 2009 2008 and 2007 respectively The acceleration of the unamortized

compensation expense upon the change in control was $9.0 million and was included in change of control

charges on the Consolidated Statement of Operations

Reclassfications Certain reclassifications have been made to prior period amounts to conform to

the current presentation

Foreign Currency Re-measurement and Translation In accordance with guidance codified under

ASC Topic 830 Foreign Currency Matters the functional currency for our Mexico operations is the U.S dollar

Adjustments resulting from the re-measurement of the local currency financial statements into the U.S dollar

functional currency which uses combination of current and historical exchange rates are included in net

income in the current period Net foreign currency re-measurement losses are reflected in income for the

period For the fiscal year ended November 2009 foreign currency re-measurement losses were immaterial

and for the fiscal years ended November 2008 and October 28 2007 were $1.I million and $0.3 million

respectively

The functional currency for our Canada operations is the Canadian dollar Translation gains losses

resulting from translating the functional
currency

financial statements into U.S dollar equivalents are reported

separately in accumulated other comprehensive income in stockholders equity Net foreign currency

translation gain loss net of tax and included in other comprehensive income for the fiscal
years

ended

November 2009 and November 2008 was $0.2 million and $0.3 million respectively

Recent Accounting Pronouncements In December 2008 the FASB issued guidance that has been

codified under ASC Topic 715-20 Defined Benefit Plans General ASC 715-20 ASC 715-20 provides

guidance on an employers disclosures about plan assets of defined benefit pension or other postretirement

plan The disclosures about plan assets required by ASC 715-20 are effective for our fiscal year ended 2010

and are not required for earlier periods presented for comparative purposes We will adopt the disclosure

provisions required by ASC 715-20 in fiscal 2010

In June 2008 the FASB issued guidance that has been codified under ASC Topic 260-10 Earnings Per

Share ASC 260-10 This pronouncement provides that unvested share-based payment awards that contain

non-forfeitable rights to dividends or dividend equivalents are participating securities and therefore should

he included in computing earnings per share using the two class method We will implement this statement in
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our fiscal year that begins November 2009 and apply it as applicable All prior period earnings per share

data would he adjusted retrospectively to con form with the provisions of this pronouncement We are currently

evaluating the impact of this pronouncement

In May 200K the FASB issued guidance that has been codihed under ASC Topic 470-20 Debt with

Conversion and Other Options ASC 47020 ASC 47020 will change the accounting br certain convertible

debt insirunients including our Convertible Notes Under the new rules for convertible debt instruments that

may he settled entirely or partially in cash upon conversion an entity shall separately account for the ability

and equity components of the instrument in manner that reflects the issuers economic interest cost The

effect of ASC 47020 br our Convertible Notes is that the equity component will be included in the

paidincapital section of stockholders equity on our consolidated balance sheet and the valUe of the equity

component will be treated as an original issue discount for
purposes

of accounting for the debt component of

the Convertible Notes Higher interest expense will result by recognizing the accretion of the discounted

carrying value of the Convertible Notes to their face amount as interest expense over the term of the

Convertible Notes using an effective interest rate method ASC 47020 is effective for our fiscal year ended

2010 does not permit early application and will be applied retrospectively to all periods presented While this

accounting pronouncement does not change the economic substance or cash flow requirements for the

Convertible Notes the amount reported as interest expense
in our consolidated statement of operations will

increase due to the accretion of the discounted carrying value of the Convertible Notes to their lace amount

The Convertible Notes will also reflect higher than previously reported interest expense clue to retrospective

application We are currently evaluating the impact
of adopting ASC 47020 hut anticipate the reported interest

expense on our Convertible Notes will increase from 2.125% to 7.5% The retroactive application of this

pronouncement to fiscal years 2005 to 2009 will result in an increase to annual interest expense of

approximately $7.5 million in fiscal 2005 gradually increasing to approximately $o million in fiscal 2009

In October 2009 we conipleted the Exchange Offer to acquire $180 niillion aggregate PriliciPal amount of the

Convertible Notes Therefore we will not have additional prospective interest expense upon adoption

In February 2008 the FASB issued additional guidance codified under ASC 820ID Fair Value

Measurements and Disclosures ASC 82010 This Statement defines fair value establishes framework For

measuring fair value and expands
disclosures about fair value measurements ASC 820ID partially delays the

elTective date for nonfinancial assets and nonfinancial liabilities except for items that are recognized or

disclosed at fair value in the Financial statements on recurring basis at least annually We will adopt ASC

820It in our fiscal year that begins November 2009 for nonrecurring nonhnancial assets and liabilities

that are recognized or disclosed at fair value However we 10 not believe the adoption of this accounting

pronouncement for nonrecurring nonlinancial assets and liabilities will have material impact on our

consolidated financial statements

En December 2007 the FASB issued guidance that has been codilied under ASC Topic 810 Consolida

tions ASC 810 This Statement amends previous guidance to establish accounting and reporting standards

for the noncontrol Ii ng interest in subsidiary and for the deconsol idat ion of subsidiary It cI an lies that

noncontrolling interest in subsidiary is an ownership interest in the consolidated entity that should he

reported as equity in the consolidated financial statements It requires consolidated net income to he reported

at amounts that include the amounts attributable to both the parent and the noncontrolling interest It also

requires disclosure on the lace of the consolidated statement of income of the amounts of consolidated net

income attributable to the parent and to the noncontrolling interest ASC 10 established single method of

accounting for changes in parents ownership interest in subsidiary that 10 not result in deconsohidation

and requires that parent recognize gain or loss in net income when subsidiary is deconsolidaled In

addition ASC 810 requires expanded disclosures in the consolidated financial statements that clearly identify

and distinguish between the interests of the parents owners and the interests of the noncontrolling owners of

subsidiary We will implement this statement in our Fiscal year
that begins November 2009 and apply it as

applicable We currently do not have any osvnership interest which would he impacted by ASC 810

In December 2007 the FASI3 issued guidance that has been codihed under ASC Topic 805 13u.riness

Conilimumtions ASC 805 This prollouliceinent replaces previous guidance but retains the fundamental

requirements of the previous guidance ASC 805 establishes principles and requirements or how the acquirer
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recognizes and measures in its financial statements the identifiable assets acquired the liabilities assumed and

any noncontrolling interest in the acquiree In addition ASC 805 recognizes and measures the goodwill

acquired in the business combination or gain from bargain purchase and determines disclosures to enable

users of the financial statement to evaluate the nature and financial effects of the business combination We
will implement this statement for all future acquisitions following the date of adoption in our fiscal year that

begins November 2009 The impact of adoption of ASC 805 on our financial position or results of

operations is dependent upon the nature and terms of business combinations if any that we may consummate

in fiscal 2010 and thereafter

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING

FASB Codification Adoption

In June 2009 the FASB issued guidance that has been codified under ASC Topic 105 Generally

Accepted Accounting Principles ASC 105 This Statement establishes the FASB Accounting Standards

Codification Codification which officially launched July 2009 to become the source of authoritative

U.S generally accepted accounting principles GAAP recognized by the FASB to he applied by nongovern
mental entities Rules and interpretive releases of the Securities and Exchange Commission SEC under

authority of federal securities laws are also sources of authoritative U.S GAAP for SEC registrants The

subsequent issuances of new standards will be in the form of Accounting Standards Updates that will be

included in the Codification Generally the Codification is not expected to change U.S GAAP All other

accounting literature excluded from the Codification will he considered nonauthoritative This pronouncement
is effective for financial statements issued for interim and annual periods ending after September 15 2009 We
adopted this pronouncement in the fourth quarter of our fiscal year ending November 2009 and have revised

all references to authoritative accounting literature in accordance with the Codification

ASC 825-10 Adoption

In April 2009 the FASB issued guidance that has been codified under ASC Topic 825-10 Financial

Instruments ASC 825-10 ASC 825-10 amends previous guidance to increase the frequency of fair value

disclosures to quarterly basis instead of an annual basis The guidance relates to fair value disclosures for

any
financial instruments that are not currently reflected on the balance sheet at fair value This guidance also

amends previous guidance to require those disclosures in all interim financial statements We adopted ASC
825-10 on May 2009 See Note II Fair Value of Financial Instruments

ASC 815-1 Adoption

In March 2008 the FASB issued guidance that has been codified under ASC Topic 815-10 Derivatives

and Hedging ASC 815-10 This Statement requires enhanced disclosures about an entitys derivative and

hedging activities and thereby improves the transparency of financial reporting Disclosing the fair values of

derivative instruments and their gains and losses in tabular format provides more complete picture of the

location in an entitys financial statements of both the derivative positions existing at period end and the effect

of using derivatives during the reporting period Entities are required to provide enhanced disclosures about

how and why an entity uses derivative instruments how derivative instruments and related hedged
items are accounted for under Statement 133 and its related interpretations and how derivative instruments

and related hedged items affect an entitys financial position financial performance and cash flows We
adopted ASC 815-10 on February 2009 See Note 12 Derivative Instruments and Hedging Strategy

ASC 820-1 Adoption

In September 2006 the FASB issued guidance that has been codified under ASC Topic 820-10 Fair

Value Measurements and Disclosures ASC 820-10 This Statement defines fair value establishes

framework for measuring fair value and expands disclosures about fair value measurements We adopted ASC
820-10 on November 2008 for financial assets and financial liabilities carried at fair value and non-financial

assets and liabilities that are recognized or disclosed at fair value on recurring basis The adoption of ASC
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82010 did not have material impact on our consolidated Financial statements Sec Note Fair Value

Measu re inc its

ASC 740-10 Adoption

In June 2006 the FASB issued guidance that has been codified under ASC Topic 740-to Income Taves

ASC 74010 which clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in income taxes ASC 74010 prescribes

recognition and measurement of tax position taken or expected to be taken in tax return ASC 74010

requires that we recognize in the financial statements the impact of tax position only if that position is more

likely than not of being sustained upon examination based on the technical merits of the position ASC

74010 also provides guidance on derecognition classification interest and penalties accounting in interim

periods disclosure and transition We adopted ASC 74010 on October 29 2007 See discussion of lie impact

of adoption in Note 17 Income Taxes

SAB 108 Adopt ion

In September 2006 the SEC released SAB No 08 Considering the Effects of Prior Yeas Misstaiemnenls

When Qucmitifving Misstatements in Current Year SAB No 108 SAB 108 requires that public companies

utilize dual approach method to assess the quantitative efTeets of financial misstatements This dual

approach includes both an income statement focused assessment known as the rollover method and

balance sheet focused assessment known as the iron curtain method The guidance in SAB 108 was initially

required to lie applied for NC for the year ending October 28 2007 The transition provisions of SAB 108

permitted companies to record errors identified during the year of adoption if deemed to he immaterial using

companys previous method of evaluating errors as cumulative effect adjustment to retained earnings The

transition provisions also required prior quarterly financial statements within the fiscal year of adoption to lie

adjusted although the transition provisions did not require those quarterly reports previously filed with the

SEC to lie amended

We adopted the provisions of SAB 108 as of October 28 2007 In accordance with the transition

provisions of SAB 108 we recorded $4.4 million cumulative decrease net of tax of $2.8 million to retained

earnings as of October 30 2006 The cumulative adjustment to decrease opening retained earnings related to

an error identified in fiscal 2007 in our accrual for employee paid time off liabilities which had historically

been accrued one year
in arrears from when the actual obligation was earned by employees The impact oil

fiscal 2007 of $0.5 million net of tax of $0.3 nii llion was recorded as an increase in compensation expemise
in

the fourth quarter of Fiscal 2007

We believe the impact of this adjustment is immaterial to prior years Consolidated Financial Statements

under our previous method of assessing materiality and therefore elected as permitted under the transition

provisions of SAB 108 to reflect the effect of this adjustment in the opening balance of the accrual for

compensation and benefits as of October 30 2006 with the offsetting adjustment reflected as cumulative

effect adjustment to opening retained earnings as of October 30 2006

4SC 715-20 Adoption

In September 2006 the FASB issued guidance that has been codified under ASC Topic 71520

Compensation Retirement Bemie fits Defined Benefit Plans ASC 715-20 ASC 715-20 has two major

provisions
The recognition and disclosure provision requires an employer to recognize plans funded status

in its statement of financial position and recognize the changes in defined benefit postret emeni plans

funded status in comprehensive income in the year in which the changes occur The measurement date

provision requires an employer to measure plans assets and obligations as of the end of the employers

fiscal year We adopted this pronouncements recognition and disclosure requirements as of October 28 2007

We currently meet the ASC 71520 requirement that the measurement date for plan assets and liabilities must

coincide with the sponsors year end See discussion of the impact of adoption in Note 23 Employee

Benefit Plans
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PLANT RESTRUCTURING AND ASSET IMPAIRMENTS

Fiscal 2008 and 2009 Plans

As result of the current market downturn we began phased process to resize and realign our

manufacturing operations The purpose of these closures is to rationalize our least efficient facilities and to

retool certain of these facilities to allow us to better utilize our assets and expand into new markets or better

provide products to our customers such as insulated panel systems

In November 2008 we approved the Phase plan to close three of our engineered building systems

manufacturing plants in addition as part of the restructuring we implemented general employee reduction

program In continuing effort to rationalize our least efficient facilities in February 2009 we approved the

Phase II plan to close one of our facilities within the engineered building systems segment and in April 2009
we approved the Phase III plan to close or idle three of our manufacturing facilities within the engineered

building systems segment and two facilities within the metal components segment In addition manufacturing

at one of our metal components facilities was temporarily suspended and currently functions as distribution

and customer service site As part of the restructuring we also added to the general employee reduction

program As result of actions taken in Phase III certain facilities are being actively marketed for sale and

have been classified as held for sale in the Consolidated Balance Sheet We plan to sell these facilities by the

end of fiscal 2010
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The lollowing table sunhillari/es our restructuring plan costs and charges related to the General Phase

Phase II and Phase Ill restructuring plans during each oF the Oscal years presented in thousands

Cost Rema ning Iital

Juctirred Anticipated Anticipated

Fiscal 2009 Fiscal 2008 to Date Cost Cost

Severance 2.987 87 $3074 3074

Asset Relocation

Other Cash Costs 57 57 57

Asset Impairment
1.234 1.234 1.234

total Program 4.278 87 4.365 4.365

Repurposing and Phase

Severance 1.016 $106 1.122 1.122

Asset Relocation 303 303 181 484

Other Cash Costs 199 199 99

Asset Impairment .634 157 1.791
_________

1.791

Total Plant Closing Phase 3.152 263 3415 181 3.596

Plant Closing Phase II

Severance 399 39 34

Asset Relocation 22 22 22

Other Cash Costs 442 442 92 534

Asset Impairment 30 30
_________

30

Total Plant Closing Phase II 893 893 92 985

Plant Closing Phase HI

Severance 49 2.349 2.349

Asset Relocation 219 219 339 558

Other Cash Costs .06t 1.060 1.283 2.343

Asset Impairment
3.393 3.393

_______
3.393

Total Plant Closing Phase Ill 7.021 7.021 1622 8.643

Total All Programs 15344 $350 $15.694 $1895 $17589

Restructuring by Segment

Buildings
7.522 61 7.583 1645 9.228

Components
1.216 106 1.322 250 1.572

Coaters 103 103 103

Corporate
211 27 238

______
238

total 9052 $194 9.246 $1895 $1 1.141

Asset Impairments by Segmentl

Buildings 4.316 157 4.473 4.473

Components 766 766 766

Coaters

Corporate .209 .209 .209

Total 6.291 $157 6.448 6.448

The lair value oF assets was determined based on prices ol similar assets adjusted for their remaining use

ful life
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The following table summarizes our restructuring liability related to the Phase Phase II and Phase III

restructuring plans in thousands

Employee or

Severance

Costs Other Costs Total

Balance at November 2008 193 193

Costs incurred 6751 2303 9054

Cash payments 5622 2303 7925
Other adjustmentsl 65

______ 65

Balance at November 2009 $1387 1387

Relates to the foreign currency translation

Fiscal 2007 Plan

During the fourth quarter of fiscal 2007 we committed to plan to exit our residential overhead door

product line included in our metal components segment During the fiscal
year ended November 2008 we

incurred expenses of $0.9 million related to this exit plan In fiscal 2007 the residential door business

produced revenue of $12.4 million and pretax loss of $0.5 million This line of business is not considered

material and is therefore not presented as discontinued operations in the consolidated financial statements

ACQUISITIONS

On January 2007 we completed the purchase of substantially all of the assets of Garco Building

Systems Inc Garco which designs manufactures and distributes steel building systems primarily for

markets in the northwestern United States and western Canada Garco is now division of our Company and

the results of Garcos operations beginning January 31 2007 are included in our Consolidated Financial

Statements Garco is headquartered in Spokane Washington where it operates manufacturing facility for

steel building systems for industrial commercial institutional and agricultural applications The
aggregate

purchase price br this acquisition was $17.2 million comprised of $15.4 million in cash and $1.8 million in

restricted common stock 35448 shares At the date of purchase there was no excess of cost over fair value

of the acquired assets We obtained third-party valuations of certain tangible and intangible assets As result

of the valuation work we recorded $5.7 million in intangible assets which includes $2.5 million in customer

relationships The $1.8 million in restricted NCI common stock relates to 5-year non-compete agreements

with certain of the sellers of Garco We will expense the fair value of the restricted stock ratably over the

terms of the agreements In addition we recorded $6.5 million in property plant and equipment and

$5.0 million in working capital Garcos results of operations are included in the engineered building systems

segment This acquisition was not material to the financial statements as whole and accordingly pro forma

information has not been provided

RESTRICTED CASH

On May 21 2009 we entered into cash collateral agreement with our agent bank to obtain letters of

credit secured by cash collateral which in the aggregate may not exceed $13.5 million The restricted cash is

invested in secured cash bank account As of November 2009 we had restricted cash in the amount of

$13.0 million as collateral related to our $12.1 million of letters of credit Restricted cash is classified as

current and non-current as the underlying letters of credit expire by December 2010
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OTHER ACCRUED EXPENSES

Other accrued expenses ale comprised ot tile tollow ig in thousands

NoVem 111 Noveni her

2009 2008

Accrued income tax 4873

Customer deposits 3651 10116

Accrued warranty obligation and deterred warranty revenue 16116 16484

Accrued workers compensation and general liability insurance 9604 8751

Saics and use tax payable 2121 6648

Other accrued expenses 20963 13141

Total other accrued expenses $52455 $60013

WARRANTY

The tollowing table represents the roil lorward of our accrued warranty obligation and deterred warranty

revenue activity for the fiscal years ended November 2009 and November 2008 in thousands

November November

2009 2008

Beginning balance $16484 $14843

Warranties sold 2628 3405

Revenue recognized 1273 1323

Costs incurred 259 217

Adjustment 1313

Other 151 224

Ending balance $16116 $16484

This adjustment relates to certain of the RCC warranty claims liabilities that were updated based on

change in our claims processing procedures and revised analysis This change was recorded in cost ot sales

in our Consolidated Statement of Operations during the first quarter of fiscal 2009

SUPPLEMENTARY CASH FLOW INFORMATION

The ollowing table sets forth interest and taxes paid in each of the three fiscal years presented in

thousands

Fiscal ear EndcI

November November October 28
2009 2008 2007

Interest paid net ot amounts capitalized $18445 $26872 $26 166

Taxes paid 5645 57837 42.739

In October 2009 we completed an exchange otter to acquire our existing $1 80 million aggregate

princiiil amount 2.125% convertible senior subordinated notes due 2024 the Convertible Notes in

exchange for combination ot $500 in cash and 390 shares ot NCI conimoll stock or eacil $1 000 of

Convertible Notes tendered and not withdrawn with approximately 99.9% of the outstanding Convertible

Notes tendered and not withdrawn as of the expiration of the otter and by which we subsequently accepted

This resulted in noncash reclassi cation horn longterm debt to stockholders equity as we issued

approximately 70.2 million shares See further discussion of these Convertible Notes in Note 10 Loiigterm

Debt and Note Payable
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The dividends on the Convertible Preferred Stock accrue and accumulate on daily basis and are

included in the liquidation preference Accrued dividends are recorded into Convertible Preferred Stock on the

accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheet Dividends are accrued at the 12% paid in-kind rate and increased

the Convertible Preferred Stock by $1.1 million during fiscal 2009

10 LONG-TERM DEBT AND NOTE PAYABLE

Debt is comprised of the following in thousands

November November

2009 2008

Amended and Restated Term Loan Credit Agreement due April 2014
interest at 8.0% and 4.7% 6.3% respectively $150000 $293290

2.125% Convertible Senior Subordinated Notes 59 180000

Industrial Revenue Bond 190 1110

150249 474400

Current portion of long-term debt 14164 920

Total long-term debt less current portion $136085 $473480

The scheduled maturity of our debt is as follows in thousands

2010 14164

2011 1356

2012 1342

2011 1329

2014 and thereafter 132058

$150249

Amended Credit Agreement

Concurrently with the closing of the Equity Investment on the Closing Date we entered into the

Amended Credit Agreement an amendment to our Credit Agreement as in effect prior to such date with

Wachovia Bank National Associations as administrative agent pursuant to which we repaid approximately

$143.3 million of the $293.3 million in principal amount of term loans outstanding under such credit

agreement and modified the terms and maturity of the remaining $150.0 million balance The modified terms

of the term loan require quarterly principal payments 0.25% of the principal amount of the term loan then

outstanding as of the last day of each quarter and final payment of approximately $131 .1 million at maturity

on April 20 2014

The obligations under the Amended Credit Agreement are secured by first priority lien on property

plant and equipment and related assets such as our software chattel paper instruments and contract rights

excluding foreign operations and 100% of the capital stock and other equity interests in each of our direct

and indirect operating domestic subsidiaries and 65% of the capital stock in each of our foreign subsidiaries

and second lien on our accounts receivable and inventory

The Amended Credit Agreement contains number of covenants that among other things limit or restrict

the ability of the Company and its subsidiaries to dispose of assets incur additional indebtedness incur

guarantee obligations prepay other indebtedness make dividends and other restricted payments create liens

make investments make acquisitions engage in mergers change the nature of their business and engage in

certain transactions with affiliates

The Amended Credit Agreement has no financial covenant test until October 30 2011 which is the

conclusion of our fourth quarter of fiscal 2011 at which time the maximum ratio of total debt to Consolidated

EBITDA is to This ratio steps down by 0.25 each quarter until October 28 2012 at which time the
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maximum ratio is to The ratio continues to step down by 125 each quarter until November 2013 to

ratio of 3.5 to which reniains the maximum ratio br each Oscal quarter thereatler We will however 1101 he

subject to this tinancial covenant with respect to speci lied penod if certain prepyn1ents or repurchases of

the term loans under the Amended Credit Agreemeni are made in the specified period At November 2009

we had no financial compliance covenants in our Amended Credit Agreement

Borrowings under the Amended Credit Agreement may be repaid at any time without premium or

penalty hut subject to customary LIBOR breakage costs We also have the ability to repurchase portion of

the term loans under the Amended Credit Agreement subject to certain terms and conditions set forth in the

Amended Credit Agreement in addition subject to certain exceptions the Amended Credit Agreement

requires mandatory prepayment and reduction in an amount equal to

the net cash proceeds of certain asset sales certain debt otterings and certain insurance

recovery and condemnation events

50% of annual excess cash low as detined in the Amended Credit Agreement for any fiscal year

ending on or after October 2010 unless speci lied leverage ratio target is met and

the greater of $10.0 million and 50% of certain 2009 tax refunds as defined in the Amended Credit

Agreement received by the Company

We expect IC make mandatory prepayment on the Amended Credit Agreement in May 2010 in

connection with our 2009 tax retund Therefore an additional $1 2.9 million of principal under the Amended

Credit Agreement has been classified as current portion of longterm debt in our Consolidated Balance Sheet

at November 2009

The Amended Credit Agreement limits our ability to pay cash dividends except iii certain specitied

circumstances on or prior to October 31 2010 after which time we may pay any dividend in an amount not to

exceed the available amount which is defined as the suni of 50% of the consolidated net income from

August 2009 to the end of the most recent fiscal quarter less 100% of any negative consolidated net incolile

amount plus net proceeds of property or assets received as capital contributions less the sum of all dividends

payments or other distributions of such available amounts

Term loans under the Amended Credit Agreement hear interest at our option as tollows

Base Rate loans at tile Base Rate plus margin which for term loans is 5% until October 30

2011 fter that date tile margin fluctuates based on our leverage ratio and shall he either 5% or 3.5%

As of the first fiscal quarter commencing .January 30 2012 the margin
in each case increases by 0.25%

er annum on the Iirst day of each fiscal quarter unless the aggregate principal amount of loans

outstanding under the Amended Credit Agreement in the immediately preceding fiscal quarter of the

Company has been reduced by $3750000 excluding scheduled principal amortization payments less

any pnor reductions not previously applied to prevent an increase in the applicable margin and

iBOR loans at LIBOR having ininimuni rate of 2% plus margin which for term loans is

1% until October 30 2011 Atler that date the LIBORlinked margin fluctuates based on our leverage

ratio and shall he either 6% or 4.5% As of the first fiscal quarter commencing January 30 2012 the

margin in each case increases by 0.25% per annum on the first day of each fiscal quarter unless the

aggregate principal amount of term loans outstanding under tile Amended Credit Agreement in the

immediately preceding fiscal quarter of the Company has been reduced by $3750000 excluding

scheduled principal amortization payments less any prior reductions lot previously applied to ple\etlt an

increase in tile applicable margin

Overdue amounts will hear interest at rate that is 2% higher than the rate otherwise applicable Base

rate is delined as the highest of tile Wachovia Bank National Association prime rate or the overnight Federal

Funds rate plus 0.5% and 3.0% and LI BOR is debined as the applicable London interhank oltered rate

adjusted br reserves The applicable margin until October 30 2011 will he 5.10% on base rate loans and

6.004 on LIBOR loans under the Amended Credit Agreement



In accordance with guidance that has been codified under ASC Topic 470-50 Debt Modifications and

Extinguishinents we accounted for the amendment to our Amended Credit Agreement as modification and

we have expensed $6.4 million of legal and other professional fees paid to third-parties in connection with

amending the facility in fiscal 2009

During June 2006 we entered into an interest rate swap agreement relating to $160 million of the term

credit agreement then in effect prior to its amendment and restatement as the Amended Credit Agreement due

June 2010 At November 2009 and November 2008 the notional amount of the interest rate swap

agreement was $65 million and $105 million respectively See Note 12 for further information

ABL Facility

Concurrently with the closing of the Equity Investment on October 20 2009 the subsidiaries of the

Company NCI Group Inc and Robertson-Ceco II Corporation and the Company entered into the ABL
Facility loan and security agreement for $125.0 million asset-based loan facility The ABL Facility allows

us an aggregate maximum borrowing of up to $125.0 million Borrowing availability on the ABL Facility is

determined by monthly borrowing base collateral calculation that is based on specified percentages of the

value of qualified cash eligible inventory and eligible accounts receivable less certain reserves and subject to

certain other adjustments At November 2009 our excess availability under the ABL Facility was

$70.4 million The ABL Facility has maturity of April 20 2014 and includes borrowing capacity of up to

$25 million for letters of credit and up to $10 million for swingline borrowings

An unused commitment fee is paid monthly on the ABL Facility at an annual rate of 1% through May
2010 and thereafter at 1% or if the

average daily balance of the loans and letters of credit obligations for

given month is higher than 50% of the maximum credit then available 0.75% The calculation is determined

on the amount by which the maximum credit exceeds the average daily principal balance of outstanding loans

and letter of credit obligations Additional customary fees in connection with the ABL Facility also apply

The ABL Facility limits our ability to pay cash dividends except in certain specified circumstances prior

to October 20 2010 after which time we may pay dividends in the aggregate amount not to exceed the

available amount which is defined as the sum of 50% of the adjusted consolidated net income from August

2009 to the end of the most recent fiscal quarter and subject to there being no event default and the

satisfaction of either certain excess availability conditions or fixed charge coverage ratio

The obligations under the ABL Facility are secured by first priority lien on 100% of our accounts

receivable inventory certain deposit accounts and our associated intangibles subject to certain exceptions and

second priority lien on the assets securing the term loans under the Amended Credit Agreement on first-

lien basis

The ABL Facility contains number of covenants that among other things limit or restrict our ability to

dispose of assets incur additional indebtedness incur guarantee obligations engage in sale and leaseback

transactions prepay other indebtedness modify organizational documents and certain other agreements create

restrictions affecting subsidiaries make dividends and other restricted payments create liens make invest

ments make acquisitions engage in mergers change the nature of their business and engage in certain

transactions with affiliates

Under the ABL Facility Dominion Event occurs if either an event of default is continuing or excess

availability falls below certain levels during which period and for certain periods thereafter the administrative

agent may apply all amounts in the Companys concentration account to the repayment of the loans

outstanding under the ABL Facility subject to the Intercreditor Agreement described below In addition

during such Dominion Event we are required to make mandatory payments on our ABL Facility upon the

occurrence of certain events including the sale of assets and the issuance of debt in each case subject to

certain limitations and conditions set forth in the ABL Facility if excess availability under the ABL Facility

falls below certain levels our ABL Facility also requires us to satisfy set financial tests relating to our fixed

charge coverage ratio
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The ABL Facility includes minimum fixed charge coverage ratio ot one to one which will appiy if we

fail to maintain specified minimum level of horrowing Capacity The minimum level of borrowing capacity

as of November 2009 was $15.0 iii Ilion

Loans under the ABL Facility bear interest at our option as follows

Base Rate loans at lie Base Rate plus margin which shall he 3.50% through April 30 2010

and shall therealler range from 3.25Y to 3.75% depending on the quarterly average excess availability

under such facility and

LIBOR loans at LIBOR plus margin which shall he 4.50% through April 30 2010 and shall

thereafter range
from 4.25% to 4.75% depending on the quarterly average excess availability under such

facility

luring an event of default loans under the ABL Facility will hear interest at rate that is 2% higher

than the rate otherwise applicable Base rate is defined as the highest of the Wells Fargo Bank N.A prime

rate or the overnight Federal Funds rate plus 0.5% and LIBOR is defined as the applicable London interhank

offered rate adlusted br reserves

Intercreditor Agreement

The liens securing the obligations under the Amended Credit Agreement the permitted hedging

agreements and the guarantees thereof are First in priority as between the Amended Credit Agreement and the

ABL Facility with respect to stock material real property
and assets other than accounts receivable inventory

certain deposit accounts associated intangibles and certain other property of the Company and the guarantors

subject to certain exceptions Such liens are second in priority as between the Amended Credit Agreement

and the ABL Facility with respect to accounts receivable inventory certain deposit accounts associated

intangibles and certain other property of the Company and the guarantors subject to certain exceptions The

details of the respeclive collateral rights between lenders under the Amended Credit Agreement and lenders

under the ABL Facility are governed by an interereditor agreement dated as of the Closing Date among the

borrowers the term loan administrative agent the ARL Facility administrative agent and he other parties

thereto

Convertible Notes

In October 2009 we completed the Exchange Offer to acquire $1 SO million aggregate principal amount

of the Convertible Notes Approximately 99.9% of the outstanding Convertible Notes were tendered in the

Exchange Offer and holders of Convertible Notes received $500 in cash and 390 shares of our common stock

for each $1000 of Convertible Notes tendered The proceeds of the Equity Investment were used to pay lie

cash portion of the Exchange Offer in an amount of approximately $90.0 million At November 2009 we

had retired all but $0.06 mill ion of the Convertible Notes

On December 2009 we provided to holders of Convertible Notes irrevocable notice of our intent to

redeem the $0.06 million of remaining Convertible Notes on December 29 2009 As ol December 2009

until Deceniher 28 2009 at the option of any holder of Convertible Notes we are required to cunvert the

principal amount of such holders Convertible Notes or any portion of such principal amount that is multiple

of $1 000 into cash and fully paid shares of common stock of the Company in accordance with the terms

procedures and conditions outlined in the indenture pursuant to which the Convertible Notes were issued As

of November 2009 the conversion rate for the Convertible Notes was 24.9121 shares of common stock per

$1000 in principal amount of the Convertible Notes The terms of our Amended Credit Agreement and our

ABL Facility require us to redeem the Convertible Notes by January IS 2010 We expect to redeem lie

Convertible Notes by January IS 2010 hut if for any reason we do not redeem the Convertible Notes by

January 15 2010 this would constitute an event of default under both our Amended Credit Agreement and

our ABL Facility



Interest on the Convertible Notes is not deductible for income tax purposes which creates permanent

tax difference that is reflected in our effective tax rate as discussed further in Note 17 The Convertible

Notes are general unsecured obligations and are subordinated to our present and future senior indebtedness

In accordance with guidance that has been codified under ASC Topic 470-50 Debt Modifications and

Extinguishments we have expensed $3.5 million of unamortized deferred financing costs related to the

Convertible Notes In addition we have recorded $84.5 million of debt extinguishment costs and $5.7 million

of capitalized equity raising costs

The debt extinguishment costs are determined based on the net of the inducement loss and the settlement

gain In accordance with guidance that has been codified under ASC Topic 470-20 Debt Debt with

Conversion and Other Options ASC 470-20 we are required to recognize an expense equal to the fair

value of all securities issuable pursuant to the original conversion terms In accordance with the original

conversion terms of the Convertible Notes the expected fair value of common stock issuable upon conversion

is approximately $266.1 million based on $2.51 closing stock price for common stock as of October 19

2009 as compared to the expected fair value of common stock issuable pursuant to the exchange offer of

approximately $11.3 million This resulted in an induced conversion charge of $254.8 million ASC 470-20

requires us to account for the settlement of the Convertible Notes as debt extinguishment When

extinguishment debt is required the reacquisition price of the debt would include the cash payment ftr the

accretcd value of the debt and the fair value of the equity instruments issued to settle the conversion spread

The original conversion rate is 24.9 121 shares per $1000 of principal and the exchange of the Convertible

Notes results in 390 shares per $1000 of principal The change in conversion rate based on $2.51 closing

stock price for common stock as of October 19 2009 resulted in gain on settlement of $170.3 million

Potential Prepackaged bankruptcy costs

Costs related to potential pre-packaged bankruptcy are expensed as incurred During fiscal 2009 we

expensed $4.8 million of pre-packaged bankruptcy costs which are included in debt extinguishment and

refinancing costs in our Consolidated Statement of Operations All potential pre-packaged bankruptcy costs

were incurred in connection with the Recapitalization Plan and were expensed in fiscal 2009

Deferred Financing Costs

At November 2009 and November 2008 the unamortized balance in deferred financing costs was

$20.6 million and $4.6 million respectively During fiscal 2008 we deferred financing costs of $0.9 million

related to the Recapitalization Plan which was included in prepaid expenses and other assets in the

Consolidated Balance Sheet

Insurance Note Payable

The note payable is related to financed insurance premiums and as of November 2009 we had

outstanding note payable in the amount of $0.5 million Insurance premium financings are generally secured

by the unearned premiums under such policies

11 FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents trade accounts receivable and accounts payable

approximate fair value as of November 2009 and November 2008 because of the relatively short maturity
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of these instruments The lair values of the remaining nancial instruments recogni ed on our Consolidated

Balance Sheets at the respective fiscal year ends were

November 2009 November 2008

Carrying Carrying

Amount Fair Value Amount Fair Value

In housancls iii tluusands

2.125% Convertible Senior Subordinated Notes 59 97 SI 80000 $l 49456

$150 Million Amended Credit Agreement $150000 $13S000

$400 Million Credit Agreement $293200 $25 1980

The fair value of the Convertible Notes was determined Irom the market rates as of the last trading day

prior to our fiscal year end The fair value of each of the Amended Credit Agreement and the Credit

Agreement was based on receilt trading activities of comparable market instruments

12 DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENT AND HEDGING STRATE

Interest Rate Risk

We are exposed to interest rate risk associated with fluctuations in the interest rates on our variable

interest rate debt in order ic manage this risk on June 15 2006 we entered lorvard interest rate swap

agreement Swap Agreement hedging portion of our $400 million Credit Agreement with notional

amount of $1 million beginning October II 2006 The notional amount decreased to $145 million on

October II 2007 decreased to $105 million on October 14 2008 and decreased again to $65 million on

October 13 2009 The term of the Swap Agreement expires on June 17 2010 Under the Swap Agreement

we will pay lixed rate of 5.55% on quarterly basis in exchange for receiving floating rate payments based

on the threemonth LIBOR rate We designated the Swap Agreement as cash flow hedge The lair value of

the Swap Agreement as of November 2009 and November 2008 was liability of approximately

$2.2 million and $3.9 million respectively and is included in other accrued expenses in the Consolidated

Balance Sheet The lair value of the Swap Agreement excludes accrued interest and takes into consideration

current interest rates and current creditworthiness of us or the counterparly as applicable

During the fourth quarter of fiscal 2009 in connection with our relinancing and Amended Credit

Agreement we modilied the terms of the Credit Agreement to include 2% LIBOR minimum market interest

rate Based on the current expected LIBOR rates over the remaining term of the Swap Agreement the

forecasted market rate interest paynlents have been effectively converted to fixed rate interest payments

making the Swap Agreement both ineffective and the underlying hedged cash flow no longer probable

Therefore during fiscal 2009 we reclassified to interest expense the remaining $3.1 million of deferred losses

recorded to accumulated other comprehensive income loss ior fiscal 2009 we have reduced interest expense

by $2.5 million as result of the changes in fair value of the hedge and we reclassified $4.8 million into

earnings as result of the discontinuance of the hedge designation of the Swap Agreement

Embedded Derivative Biircatcd From Convertible Preftrred Stock See Note 14

The terms of the Convertible Preferred Stock include default dividend rate of 3% per annum if with

certain exceptions we fail to piy holders of Convertible Prelerred Stock on an ascoil verted basis in cash

dividends paid on shares of our common stock following the date that there are no Convertible Notes

outstanding pay in cash or kind any dividend other than dividends payable pursuant to the preceding clause

payable to holders of ireferred Shares pursuant to the Certificate of Designations Preferences and Rights

of the Series Cumulative Convertible Participating Preferred Stock tile Certificate of Designations on the

applicable quarterly dividend payment late after .lune 30 210 reserve and keep available for issuance

the number of shares of our comm on stock equal to 0% ot the nun ber of shares of common stock issuable

upon conversion of all outstanding shares of Convertible lreferred Stock maintain the listing of our

common stock on the New York Stock 1xcliange or another U.S national securities exchange comply

with our obligations to convert the Convertible Preferred Stock ill accordance with our obligations under the

Certificate of Designations redeem Convertible Preferred Stock in compliance with the Certificate of



Designations or comply with any dividend payment restrictions with respect to junior securities dividends

If at time when 3% per annum default dividend rate is in effect after June 30 2011 we fail to reserve and

keep available authorized common shares pursuant to the terms of the Certificate of Designations the default

dividend rate shall increase to 6% until such default is no longer continuing The default dividend represents

an embedded derivative which is bifurcated from the Equity Investment host contract See Note 14 for further

discussion of the Convertible Preferred Stock Investment Agreement

To determine the level fair value of the embedded derivative we used probability-weighted discounted

cash flow model and assigned probabilities for each qualified default event At November 2009 we
recorded the fair value of the embedded derivative of $1.0 million in other accrued liabilities on the

Consolidated Balance Sheet The majority of the value of the derivative was derived from the default dividend

rate As discussed further in Note 14 our majority equity holder has stated its intent to vote for the proposed

reverse stock split As this event is expected to occur in the second quarter of fiscal 2010 the value of this

derivative is expected to decrease substantially in fiscal 2010 The change in fair value in other income and

expense was inconsequential in fiscal 2009

At November 2009 and November 2008 the fair value carrying amount of our derivative instruments

were recorded as follows in thousands

Liability Derivatives

November 2009 November 2008

Balance Sheet Location Fair Value Fair Value

Derivative designated as hedging

instrument under ASC 815

Interest rate contract Other long-term liabilities $3928

Derivatives not designated as

hedging instruments under

ASC 815

Interest rate contract Other accrued
expenses $2208

Embedded derivative Other accrued expenses 1041

Total derivatives not designated as

hedging instrument under ASC
815 $3249 $3928

Total derivatives $3249 $3928

The effect of derivative instruments on the Consolidated Statement of Income for the fiscal years ended

November 2009 and November 2008 was as follows in thousands

Amount of Loss Reclassified

from Accumulated

1erivative ASC Amount of Loss Recognized Location of Loss Reclassified
OCI into Income

815 Cash Flow in OCI on Derivative
from Accumulated OCI Effective Portion

Hedging Effective Portion into Income Loss Novensber November
Relationship November 2009 November 2008 Effective Portion 2009 2008

Interest rate

contract $739 $428 Interest expense $l756

Amount of Loss Recognized

Derivatives Not Designated as Hedging
in Income Loss on Derivative

Location of Loss Recognized in Income
Instruments Under ASC 815 November 2009 November 2008 Loss on Derivative

Interest rate contract $3072 Interest expense

At November 2008 accumulated other comprehensive loss associated with the Swap Agreement

previously qualifying for hedge accounting treatment was $2.4 million net of income tax effects
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13 FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

Effective November 2008 we adopted the guidance that has been codihed under ASC 82010 related

to assets and liabilities recognized or disclosed in the financial statements at fair value on recurring basis

ASC 82010 defines fair value estahlishesaframcwork br measuring fair value and expands disclosures

about fair value measurements ASC 82010 applies to other accounting pronouncements that require or permit

lair value measurements but does not require any new fair value measurements The adoption ot these

provisions did not have material effect on our consolidated financial statements

ASC 82010 claribes that fair value is an cxii price representing the price that would be received to sell

an asset or paid to ransler liability in an orderly transaction between market participants based on the

highest and best use of the asset or liability As such fair value is marketbased measurement that should be

determined based on assumptions that market participants would use in pricing an asset or liability ASC

82010 requires us to use valuation techniques to measure lair value that maximize the use of observable

inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs These inputs are prioritized as bollows

Level Observable inputs such as quoted prices br identical assets or liabilities in active markets

Level ther inputs that are observable directly or indirectly such as quoted prices br similar

assets or liabilities or marketcorroborated inputs

Level Unobservable inputs for which there is little or no market data and which require us to

develop our own assumptions about how market participants would price the assets or liabilities

The following table summarizes information regarding our financial assets and liabilities that are

measured at fair value as of November 2009 in thousands

Level Level Level ThIal

Assets

Shortterm investments in deferred compensation plan 3359 3359

Liabilities

Deferred compensation plan liability $3480 3480

Interest rate contract 2208 2208

Embedded derivative
__________

1041 1041

Total liabilities $3480 2208 1041 6729

Unrealized holding gains losses for the fiscal years ended November 2009 and November 2008 was

$0.9 million and million respectively These unrealized holding gains losses are primarily oltset

by changes in the deterred compensation plan liability

The following table summarizes the activity in Level financial instruments during fiscal 2009

November

2009

Beginning balance

Addition 1041

Ending balance 1041

14 SERIES CUMULATIVE CONVERTIBLE PARTICIPATING IREFERRED STOCK

Execution of Investment Agreement

On August 14 2009 the Company entered ito an Investment Agreement as amended the Investment

Agreement by and between the Company and Clayton Dubilier Rice Fund VIII L.P CDR
Fund VIII pursuant to which the Company agreed to issue and sell to CDR Fund VIII and CDR
Fund VIII agreed to purchase Irom the Company for an aggregate purchase price of $250 million less
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reimbursement to CDR Fund VIII or direct payment to its service providers of up to $14.5 million in the

aggregate of transaction expenses and deal fee paid to Clayton Dubilier Rice Inc CDR Inc the

manager of CDR Fund VIII of $8.25 million 250000 Preferred Shares Pursuant to the Investment

Agreement on October 20 2009 the Closing Date the Company issued and sold to the CDR Funds and

the CDR Funds purchased from the Company an aggregate of 250000 Preferred Shares representing

approximately 196.1 million common shares or 68.4% of the voting power and common stock of the Company
on an as-converted basis

Certain Terms of the Convertible Preferred Stock

In connection with the consummation of the Equity Investment on October 19 2009 we filed the

Certificate of Designatioiis setting forth the terms rights obligations and preferences of the Convertible

Preferred Stock

Liquidation Value Each Convertible Preferred Share has an initial liquidation preference of $1000

Rank The Convertible Preferred Stock ranks senior as to dividend rights and liquidation to the common
stock of the company and all other classes of capital or series of our Companys preferred stock and junior to

each class or series of equity securities of the Company whether currently issued or issued in the future that

by its terms ranks senior to the Convertible Preferred Stock

Dividends Dividends on the Convertible Preferred Stock are payable on cumulative daily basis as

and if declared by the our board of directors at rate per annum of 12% of the liquidation preference of

$1000 per Preferred Share if paid in-kind or at rate per annum of 8% of the liquidation preference of

$1000 per Preferred Share if paid in cash Members of our board of directors who are independent of

directors affiliated with the CDR Funds have the right to choose whether dividends are paid in cash or in-

kind subject to the conditions of the Amended Credit Agreement and ABL Facility including being limited in

our ability to pay
cash dividends until the first quarter of fiscal 2011 under the Amended Credit Agreement

and until October 20 2010 under the ABL Facility except for certain specified purposes

The dividend rate will increase by 3% per annum above the rates described in the preceding paragraph

upon and during certain specified defaults and after June 30 2011 will increase by up to 6% per annum

above the rates described in the preceding paragraph upon and during any such specified default if due to the

failure to have sufficient authorized and unissued shares of common stock of the Company to convert all

outstanding Preferred Shares

In addition to any dividends declared and paid as described in the preceding paragraphs holders of the

outstanding Preferred Shares also have the right to participate equally and ratably on an as-converted basis

with the holders of shares of common stock of the Company in all cash dividends and distributions paid on

the common stock

If at any time after the 30-month anniversary of the Closing Date the trading price of the common stock

of the Company exceeds 200% of the initial conversion price as defined in the Certificate of Designations

for each of 20 consecutive trading days the dividend rate excluding any applicable adjustments as result of

default will become 0.00% However this does not preclude the payment of default dividends after the

30-month anniversary of the Closing Date We expect the dividend for each quarter of fiscal 2010 to be paid

in-kind as result of certain restrictions on our Amended Credit Agreement and ABL Facility and have

therefore accrued pro rata 12% rate per annum See Note 10 for more information on our Amended Credit

Agreement and ABL Facility

Convertibility and Antidilution Adjustments To the extent that we have authorized but unissued shares

of common stock holders of Preferred Shares will have the right at any time and from time to time at their

option to convert any or all of their Preferred Shares in whole or in part into fully paid and non-assessable

shares of our common stock at the conversion price initially equal to $1 .2748 and subject to adjustment as set

forth in the Certificate of Designations The number of shares of common stock of the Company into which

Preferred Share can he convertible is determined by dividing the liquidation preference in effect at the time of

conversion by the conversion price in effect at the time of conversion
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The conversion price is subject to customary antidilution adjustments including stock dividends and

issuance ol our common stock at price below the thencurrent market price and within the lrsl three years

after the Closing Date issuances ol our common stock below the conversion price

Vote Holders of Preferred Shares generally are enti led to vote with the holders ol the shares ol our

common stock on all matters submitted or vote of holders of shares of our common stock voting together

with the holders of shares of our common stock as one class and are entitled to number of votes equal to

the number of voles to which shares of common stock issuable upon conversion of such available Preferred

Shares would have been entitled without any limitations based on our authorized hut unissued shares of our

common stock if such shares of our common stock had been outstanding at the lime of the applicable vote

and related record date

Additionally certain matters require the approval of the holders of majority of the outstanding available

Preferred Shares voting as separate class including amendments or modiOcations to the Companys

Certificate of Incorporation byJaws or the Certificate of lesignation authorization creation increase in

the authorized amount of or issuance of any class or series of senior securities or any security convertible

into or exchangeable or exercisable for shares of senior securities and any
increase or decrease in the

authorized number of Preferred Shares or the issuance of additional Preferred Shares subject to certain

exceptions

Milestone Redemption Rig/il The Company has the right at any time on or after the tenth anniversary

of the Closing Date to redeem in whole but not in part all thenissued and ouistandmg shares of Convertible

Preferred Stock in accordance with the procedures set forth in the Certi ticate of Designations Any holder of

Convertible PrelŁrred Stock has the right at any lime on or after the tenth anniversary of the Closing Date to

require that the Company redeem all hut not less than all of its shares of Convertible Preferred Stock iii

accordance with the procedures set forth in the Certificate of Designations

C/iange of Control Redemption Rig/it Upon Change of Control as delined in the Certificate of

Designations so long as the CDR Funds do not own 45% or more of the voting power of the Company or

are otherwise able to designate majority of the directors on the hoard of directors holders of Preferred

Shares are able to require redemption by the Company in whole but not in part of the Convertible Preferred

Stock if redeemed after the fourth anniversary of the Closing Date at the liquidation value of such

Preferred Shares or if redeemed prior to the fourth anniversary of the Closing Date at the liquidation value

of stich Preferred Shares plus makewhole premium equal to the net present value of the sum of all

dividends that would othenvise he payable on and aller the redemption date to and including such fourth

anniversary date assuming that such dividends are paid in cash

In the event of merger or oilier business combination in which the holders of shares of our common

stock receive cash or securities of an unaffiliated entity as consideration for such shares if the holder of

Preferred Shares does not exercise the change of control redemption right as described above such holder will

he entitled to receive pursuant to such merger or business conihination the consideration such holder would

have received br its Preferred Shares had it converted such shares immediately prior to the merger or business

conihi nation transaction

Restriction on Dnu/emdr on Junior Securities Except for ordinary cash dividends and dividends payable

solely in shares of our common stock or other junior securities the Company is prohibited from paying any

dividend with respect to the our common stock or other junior securities or repurchasing or redeeming any

shares of our common stock or other junior securities unless in each case we have suf access to lawful

funds immediately following such action such that we would be legally permitted to redeem in lull all

Preferred Shares then outstanding

Accoii for Convertible Preferred Stock

In accordance with guidance that has been codilied under ASC Topic 815 Deriiatimes amid Hedging and

ASC Topic 480 Distinguishing Liabilitie.r from Equity we classified the Convertible Preferred Stock as

mezzanine equity because the Convertible Preferred Stock can he settled in cash or common shares



contains change of control rights allowing for early redemption and contains Milestone Redemp
tion Rights which allow the convertible preferred stock to remain outstanding without stated maturity date

In addition the Convertible Preferred Stock includes features that are required to be bifurcated and

recorded at fair value We classified the Convertible Preferred Stock as an equity host contract because of

the voting rights the participating dividends on common stock and mandatory cumulative preferred

stock dividends and the Milestone Redemption Right which allows the convertible preferred stock to

remain outstanding without stated maturity date We then determined that the conditions resulting in the

application of the default dividend rate are not clearly and closely related to this equity host contract and we
bifurcated and separately recorded these features at fair value See Note 12 Derivative Instruments and

Hedging Strategy

The Convertible Preferred Stock at execution was recorded with hook value of $221.6 million which is

the $250.0 million initial liquidation preference less $27.7 million of direct transaction costs and $0.6 million

for the fair value net of income tax of the bifurcated embedded derivative liability related to the dividend

default rate The $28.4 million difference between the hook value and the initial liquidation preference is

accreted using the effective interest rate method from the execution of the contract to the Milestone

Redemption Right date or 10 years The accretion recorded for fiscal 2009 is $0.1 million

Because the dividends accrue and accumulate on daily basis and are included in the liquidation

preference accrued dividends are recorded into Convertible Preferred Stock Dividends are accrued at the 12%

paid in-kind rate and increased the Convertible Preferred Stock by $1 million during fiscal 2009 As such as

of November 2009 the book value of our Convertible Preferred Stock is $222.8 million

In accordance with guidance that has been codified under ASC Topic 470-20 Debt with Conversion and

Other Options the Convertible Preferred Stock contains beneficial conversion feature because it was issued

with conversion price of $1 .2748
per common share equivalent and the closing stock price per common

share just prior to the execution of the Equity Investment was $2.51 The intrinsic value of the beneficial

conversion feature cannot exceed the issuance proceeds of the Convertible Preferred Stock less the cash paid

to the CDR Funds and thus is $241.4 million At November 2009 8.2 million of the potentially

196.1 million common shares if converted are authorized and unissued Therefore $10.5 million of the

beneficial conversion feature was recognized in fiscal 2009 The remaining $230.9 million of the beneficial

conversion feature will he recognized when the contingency related to the availability of authorized shares is

resolved

As of November 2009 the Preferred Shares are convertible into 196.1 million shares of common stock

at conversion price of $1 .2748 However as of that date only approximately 8.2 million shares of common
stock were authorized and unissued and therefore the CDR Funds may not fully convert the Preferred

Shares To the extent that the CDR Funds opt to convert their Preferred Shares as of November 2009
their conversion right was limited to conversion of their Preferred Shares into the approximately 8.2 million

shares of common stock that are currently authorized and unissued We intend to submit to shareholder vote

at our annual meeting of shareholders proposal to amend the Companys certificate of incorporation to

effect reverse stock split of the common stock of the Company We expect the shareholders to vote in favor

of the reverse stock split at the annual meeting and we expect that following the completion of the reverse

stock split the CDR Funds will he able to convert 100% of their Preferred Shares into shares of common
stock

15 RELATED PARTIES

Pursuant to the Investment Agreement and Stockholders Agreement the Stockholders Agreement
dated as of the Closing Date between the Company and the CDR Funds the CDR Funds have the right to

designate number of directors to our board of directors that is equivalent to the CDR Funds percentage

interest in the Company Among other directors appointed by the CDR Funds our board of directors

appointed to the hoard of directors James Berges Nathan Sleeper and Jonathan Zrehiec

Messrs Berges and Sleeper are partners and Mr Zrebiec is principal of Clayton Duhilier Rice LLC
CDR LLC an affiliate of the CDR Funds
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As result of their respective positions with CDR LLC and its affiliates one or more of Messrs Berges

Sleeper and Zrebiec may he deemed to have an indirect material interest in certain agreements executed in

connection with the Equity investment Messrs Berges Sleeper and Zrebiec may be deemed to have an

indirect material interest in the lol lowing agreements

the Investment Agreement pursuant to which the CDR Funds acquired 68.4% interest in the

Company CDR Fund Viiis transaction expenses were reimbursed and deal lee of $8.25 million

was paid to CDR Inc which indirectly controls CDR LLC on the Closing Date

the Stockholders Agreement which sets twth certain terms and conditions regarding the Equity

Investment and the CDR Funds ownership of the Preferred Shares including certain restrictions on

the transfer of the Preferred Shares and the shares ot our common stock issuable upon conversion

thereof and on certain actions ot the CDR Funds and their controlled atliliates with respect to the

Company and to provide br among oilier things subscription rights corporate governance rights and

consent rights as well as other obligations and rights

Registration Rights Agreement dated as of the Closing Date the Registration Rights i-\greement

between the Company and the CDR Funds pulsuant to which the Company granted to the CDR
Funds together with any other stockholder of the Company that may become party to the Registration
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shares ot our common stock issuable upon conversion of the Preferred Shares and

an Indemnitication Agreement dated as of the Closing Date between the Company NC Iroup Inc.

wholly owned subsidiary of the Company RobertsonCeco II Corporation wholly owned subsidiary

of the Company the CDR Funds and Clayton Dubilier Rice Inc Iursuant to which the Company

NC Group Inc and RobertsonCeco Corporation agreed to indemni ty CDR Inc the CDR
Funds and their general partners the special limited partner of CDR Fund VIII and any other

investnlent vehicle that is stockholder of the Company and is managed by CDR Inc or any ot its

affiliates their respective aftiliates and successors and assigns and the respective directors offIcers

partners members employees agents representatives and controlling persons of each of theni or ol

their respective partners members and controlling rsons against certain liabilities arising out ot the

Equity investment and transactions in connection with the Equity investment includi tig but not limited

to the Amended Credit Agreement the ABL Facility the Exchange Offer and certain other liabilities

and claims

16 GOODWILL AND OThER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

In accordance with guidance that has been codified under ASC Topic 350 Iitangthles Goodwill 1111

Oilier goodwill is tested br impairment at least annually at the reporting unit level which is defined as an

operating segment or component ot an operating segment that constitutes business br which financial

intormation is available and is regularly reviewed by management Management has determined that we have

six reporting units br the purpose
of allocating goodwill and the subsequent testing of goodwill tor

impairlnent Our metal components and engineered building systems segments are each split into two reporting

units and the metal coil coating segment is its own reporting unit for goodwill impairment testing purposes

Subsequent to our fiscal 2008 annual assessment ot the recoverability of goodwill and indefinite lived

intangibles and beginning largely ill late September our stock price and market capitalization decreased from

$36.51 and $720.3 million respectively at July 27 2008 to $18.61 and $367.3 million respectively at

November 2008 We evaluated whether the recent decline in our stock price and market capitalization

represents significant decline in the underlying lair value ot the Company Based upon our analysis we

concluded that the decline in our stock price and the iesulting decline ill our market capitalization did not

require us to perform an additional goodwill and indefinite lived intangibles impairment test because we lid

not believe the decline was caused by significant underperforniance of the Company relative to historical or

projected future operating results significant change in the manner of our tise of the acquired assets or the

strategy for our overall business or significant sustained negative industry or economic trend



However based on lower than projected sales volumes in our first quarter of fiscal 2009 and based on

revised lower outlook for non-residential construction activity in 2009 management reduced the Companys
cash flow projections We concluded that this reduction was an impairment indicator requiring us to perform

an interim goodwill impairment test for each of our six reporting units as of February 2009 As result of

this impairment indicator we updated the first step of our goodwill impairment test in the first quarter of fiscal

2009 The first step of our goodwill impairment test determines fair value of the reporting unit based on

blend of estimated discounted cash flows publicly traded company multiples and acquisition multiples

reconciled to our recent publicly traded stock price including reasonable control premium The result from

this model was then weighted and combined into single estimate of fair value We determined that our

carrying value exceeded our fair value at most of our reporting units in each of our operating segments

indicating that goodwill was potentially impaired As result we initiated the second step of the goodwill

impairment test which involved calculating the implied fair value of our goodwill by allocating the fair value

of the reporting unit to all assets and liabilities other than goodwill and comparing it to the carrying amount of

goodwill The fair value of each of the reporting units assets and liabilities were determined based on

combination of prices of comparable businesses and present value techniques

As of February 2009 we estimated the market implied fair value of our goodwill was less than its

carrying value by approximately $508.9 million which was recorded as goodwill impairment charge in the

first quarter of fiscal 2009 This charge was an estimate based on the result of the preliminary allocation of

fair value in the second step of the goodwill impairment test However due to the timing and complexity of

the valuation calculations required under the second step of the test we were not able to finalize our allocation

of the fair value until the second quarter of fiscal 2009 with regard to property plant and equipment and

intangible assets in which their respective values are dependent on property plant and equipment The

finalization was included in our goodwill impairment charge in the second quarter of fiscal 2009

Further declines in cash flow projections and the corresponding implementation of the Phase III

restructuring plan caused management to determine that there was an indicator requiring us to perform another

interim goodwill impairment test for each of our reporting units with goodwill remaining as of May 2009

As result of this impairment indicator we again performed the first step of our goodwill impairment test in

the second quarter of fiscal 2009 the results of which indicated that our carrying value exceeded our fair value

at most of our reporting units with goodwill remaining indicating that goodwill was potentially impaired As

result we initiated the second step of the goodwill impairment test As of May 2009 we determined the

market implied fair value of our goodwill was less than the carrying value for certain reporting units by

approximately $102.5 million which has been recorded as goodwill impairment charge in the second quarter

of fiscal 2009

At the beginning of the fourth quarter of each fiscal year we perform an annual assessment of the

recoverability of goodwill and indefinite lived intangibles Additionally we assess goodwill and indefinite

lived intangibles for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that such carrying

values may not he recoverable We completed our annual assessment of the recoverability of goodwill and

indefinite lived intangibles in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2009 and determined that no further impairments of

our goodwill or long-lived intangibles were required

Our goodwill balance and changes in the carrying amount of goodwill by operating segment are as

follows in thousands

Metal Engineered
Coil Metal Building

Coating Components Systems Total

Balance as of October 28 2007 98959 149180 368261 616400

Transferl 1940 1940

Other 226 226

Balance as of November 2008 98959 $147240 370427 616626

Impairments 98959 147240 365227 611426

Balance as of November 2009 5200 5200
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During the urth quarter of fiscal 2008 we changed the reporting structure and nlanagcnlcnl team respon

sibilities to better align certain of our products in order to respond effectively to current market Opportuni

ties As result of this change certain amounts of goodwill have been transferred accordingly Fiscal 2007

segment presentation has been reclassi lied to conform to fiscal 208 presentatiofl

The Rllowing table represents all our intangible assets activity for the fiscal years ended November

2009 and November 2008 in thousands

Range of November November

life Years 2009 2018

Amortized intangible assets

Cost

Trade names 15 5588 5588

Backlog 3019 3019

Customer lists and relationships IS 8710 8710

Noncompetition agreements 510 8132 8132

Property rights
990 990

26439 $26439

Accumulated Amortization

Trade names 1719 $l345

Backlog 3019 3019

Customer lists and relationships 1937 1356

Non-competition agreements 4236 3.273

Property rights 613 472

$1i524 $9465

Net hook value 14915 $16974

Indefinitelived intangible assets

Trade names beginning ol year 24704 $24704

Impairments 11249
___________

Trade names end of year 13455 24704

Total intangible assets at net book value 28370 $41678

RCCs Star and Ceco trade name assets have an indefinite life and are not amortized hut are reviewed

annually and tested for impairment The RCC trade names were determined to have indefinite lives due to the

length ot time the trade names have been in place with some having been in place for decades Our past

practice with other significant acquisitions and current intentions are to maintain the trade names indefinitely

As result of the aforementioned goodwill impairment indicators and in accordance with SFAS 142 we

pert ormed an impairment analysis on our indeh nite lived intangible asset related to RCCs trade names in our

engineered building systems segment to detcrniine the fair value Based on changes to our projected cash

flows in the first quarter of hscal 2009 and based on the lower projected cash flows and related Phase Ill

restructunng plan in the second quarter of fiscal 2009 we determined the carrying cost exceeded the future

fair value attributable to the intangible asset and recorded impairment charges of $8.7 million in the first

quarter of fiscal 2009 and $2.4 million in the second quarter of fiscal 2009 related to the intangible asset

All other intangible assets arc amortized on straightI inc basis over their expected useful lives As of

November 2009 the weighted average amortization period for all our intangible assets was 3.3 years
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Amortization
expense

of intangibles was $2.1 million $2.2 million and $3.4 million for fiscal 2009 2008

and 2007 respectively We expect to recognize amortization expense over the next five fiscal years as follows

in thousands

2010 $2058

2011 2058

2012 1746

2013 1563

2014 1563

In accordance with SFAS 142 we evaluate the remaining useful life of these intangible assets on an

annual basis We also review for recoverability when events or changes in circumstances indicate the carrying

values may not be recoverable in accordance with guidance that has been codified under ASC Topic 360

Property Plant and Equipment

17 INCOME TAXES

Income tax expense is based on pretax financial accounting income Deferred income taxes are recognized

for the temporary differences between the recorded amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting

purposes and such amounts for income tax purposes The income tax provision benefit for the fiscal years

ended 2009 2008 and 2007 consisted of the ftllowing in thousands

Fiscal Year Ended

November November October 28
2009 2008 2007

Current

Federal $28706 $44330 $42369

State 1366 6903 5817

Total current 30072 51233 48186

Deferred

Federal 21368 179 6404
State 3084 87 686

Total deferred 24452 266 7090

Total provision benefit $54524 $51499 $41096

The reconciliation of income tax computed at the United States federal statutory tax rate to the effective

income tax rate is as follows

Fiscal Year Ended

November November October 28
2009 2008 2007

Statutory federal income tax rate 35.0% 35.0% 35.0%

State income taxes 3.3% 3.5% 3.4%

Non-deductible goodwill impairment 27.0%
Canadian valuation allowance 0.1% 1.3% 0.8%

Non-deductible interest expense 0.2% 1.2% 1.5%

Production activities deduction 2.0% l.l%
Premium on Convertible Notes exchange offer 4.1%
Other 0.1% 0.5% 0.4%

Effective tax rate 6.8% 39.5% 39.2%
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The decrease in our effective tax rate Rr the fiscal year ended November 2009 as compared to the

prior year period was primarily due to the lol lowing

The $611 .4 million goodwil impairment charges discussed in Note Goodwill and Other Iniangi

He Assels

The $84.5 million premium paid on the exchange otter to retire our Convertible Notes which is not

deductible

lcferred ilicoille taxes ret lect the net impact temporary dillerences between the amounts ol assets and

liabilities recognized br financial reporting purposes and such amounts recognized for income tax purposes

The tax etTects of the temporary dillerences br fiscal 2009 and 2008 are as follows in thousands

As of As of

November Noveiiibcr

2009 2008

Deferred tax assets

Inventory obsolescence 1008 1281

Bad debt reserve 2137 2115

Accrued and deferred compensation 11545 14212

Accrued insurance reserves 1878 2211

Defirred revenue 6266 67l2

Interest rate swap 847 508

Net operating loss carryover 6469 3943

Depreciation and aniortizat ion 454 867

Deferred financing costs 2390

Other reserves 725 21

Total deferred tax assets 33719 33067

Less valuation allowance 5018 4.972

Net deferred tax assets 28701 28095

Deterred tax liabilities

Depreciation and amortization 25163 47809

Pension 2566
Other 776 359

Total deferred tax liabilities 28505 48168

Net deferred tax asset liability 196 $20073

There were no amoulits of accrued income taxes payable included in other accrued expenses at

November 2009 Other accrued expenses include accrued income taxes payable of $4.9 million at

November 2008

We carry out our business operations through legal entities in the U.S Canada and Mexico These

operations require that we file corporate income tax returns that are subject to U.S state and foreign tax laws

We are subject to income tax audits in these multiple jurisdictions
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The entire U.S federal net operating loss will he fully utilized through carryback against taxable income

generated in fiscal 2008 and 2007 Our foreign operations have net operating loss carryforward of

approximately $15.6 million that will start to expire in fiscal 2025 if unused The utilization of these losses is

uncertain and we culTently have full valuation allowance against the deferred tax asset related to this loss

carryforward Of the $5.0 million valuation allowance $3.3 million was recorded as part of the purchase

accounting related to the acquisition of RCC The following table represents the rollforward of the valuation

allowance on deferred taxes activity for the fiscal years ended November 2009 November 2008 and

October 28 2007 in thousands

November November October 28
2009 2008 2007

Beginning balance $4972 $4603 $3171

Additions 46 369 1432

Ending balance $5018 $4972 $4603

ASC 740-10

Prior to fiscal 2008 in evaluating the exposures connected with the various tax filing positions the

company established an accrual when despite managements belief that the companys tax return positions are

supportable management believed that certain positions may be successfully challenged and loss was

probable When facts and circumstances changed these accruals were adjusted

We adopted guidance that has been codified under ASC Topic 740-10 Income Taxes Overall ASC
740-10 on October 29 2007 The cumulative effect of adopting ASC 740-10 was recorded as of October 29
2007 as decrease to retained earnings of $0.4 million The total amount of unrecognized tax benefit at

November 2009 was $0.7 million of which $0.7 million would impact the Companys effective tax rate if

recognized The total amount of unrecognized tax benefits at November 2008 was $1.3 million of which

$0.9 million would impact the Companys effective tax rate if recognized We do not anticipate any material

change in the total amount of unrecognized tax benefits to occur within the next twelve months

The following table summarizes the activity related to the Companys unrecognized tax benefits during

fiscal 2009 and 2008 in thousands

November November

2009 2008

Unrecognized tax benefits at beginning of year $1321 864

Additions for tax positions related to prior years 239 590

Reductions due to lapse of applicable statute of limitations 875 133

Unrecognized tax benefits at end of year 685 $1321

We recognize interest and penalties related to uncertain tax positions in income tax expense To the extent

accrued interest and penalties do not ultimately become payable amounts accrued will be reduced and

reflected as reduction of the overall income tax provision in the period that such determination is made We
did not have material amount of accrued interest and penalties related to uncertain tax positions as of

November 2009

We file income tax returns in the U.S federal jurisdiction and multiple state and foreign jurisdictions

Our tax years are closed with the IRS through the year ended October 30 2005 as the statute of limitations

related to these tax years has closed In addition open tax years related to state and foreign jurisdictions

remain subject to examination but are not considered material
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18 ACCUMULATED OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS INCOME

Accumulated oilier coiiiprehensive loss incoiflC Consists of the following in tliousands

Noveniber November

2009 2008

Foreign exchange translation adjustments 391 589

Defined benefit pension plan 9250 391

Unrealized losses on interest ate swap _________
2420

Accumulated other comprehensive loss income $8859 440

19 OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

We have operating lease commitments expiring at various dates principally br real estate olfice space

office equipment and transportation equipment Certain of these operating leases have purchase options that

entitle us to purchase the respective equipment at lur value at the end of the lease In addition many of our

leases contain renewal options at raes similar to the current arrangements As of November 2009 future

minimum rental payments related to noncancellable operating leases are as follows in thousands

2010 $7.162

2011 4603

2012 2142

2013 577

2014 465

Thereafter 474

Rental expense incurred from operating leases including leases with terms of less than one year for

fiscal 2009 2008 and 2007 was $11 .9 million $12.4 million and $12.2 million respectively

20 STOCK REPURCHASE PROGRAM

Our board of directors has authorized stock repurchase prograni Subject to applicable federal securities

law such purchases occur at times and in amounts that we dcciii appropriate Shares repurchased are used

primarily for later reissuance in connection with our equity incentive and 401k profit sharing plans

Although we did not repurchase any shares of our common stock during fiscal 2009 and 2008 we did

withhold shares of restricted stock to satisfy tax withholding obligations arising in connection with the vesting

of awards of restricted stock which are included in treasury stock purchases in the Consolidated Statements of

Stockholders Equity At November 2009 there were 0.6 million shares remaining authorized for repurchase

under the program While there is no time limit on the duration of the program our Amended Credit

Agreement and ABL Facility apply certain limitations on our repurchase of shares of or coninmon stock

During fiscal 2009 we retired all treasury shares outstanding

Changes in treasury conimuon stock at cost were as follows in thousands

Number of

Shares Amount

Balance October 28 2007 2590 114373

Purchases 80 2226

Balance November 2008 2670 116599

lurchases 177 451

Retirements 2847 117050

Balance November 2009
______



21 SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION

Our 2003 Long-Term Stock Incentive Plan the Incentive Plan is an equity-based compensation plan

that allows us to grant variety of types of awards including stock options restricted stock restricted stock

units stock appreciation rights performance share awards phantom stock awards and cash awards In fiscal

2009 our stockholders approved the amendment and restatement of the Incentive Plan to increase the number

of common stock reserved for issuance under the plan by approximately 1.1 million shares of common stock

and provide for the extension of the effective date of the Incentive Plan to 10 years after its approval As

amended the aggregate number of shares of common stock that may he issued under the plan may not exceed

3.66 million

In fiscal 2005 our stockholders approved the amendment and restatement of the Incentive Plan which

among other things increased the number of shares of common stock reserved for issuance under the plan by

approximately million shares of common stock and allowed us to grant performance awards including

performance-based cash awards under the plan As general rule awards terminate on the earlier of

10 years from the date of grant ii 30 days after termination of employment or service for reason other

than death disability or retirement iii one year after death or iv one year for incentive stock options or five

years for other awards after disability or retirement Awards are non-transferable except by disposition on

death or to certain family members trusts and other family entities as the Compensation Committee of our

Board of Directors the Committee may approve Awards may be paid in cash shares of our common stock

or combination in lump sum or installments and currently or by deferred payment all as determined by the

Committee As of November 2009 and for all periods presented our share-based awards under these plans

have consisted of restricted stock grants and stock option grants neither of which can be settled through cash

payments Both our stock options and restricted stock awards contain only service condition requirements and

typically vest over four years although from time to time certain individuals have received special one-time

restricted stock awards that vest at retirement upon change of control and on termination without cause or

for good reason as defined by the agreements governing such awards total of approximately 567000 and

495000 shares were available at November 2009 and November 2008 respectively under the Incentive

Plan for the further grants of awards

Since December 2006 the Committees policy has been to provide for grants of restricted stock once per

year with the size of the awards based on dollar amount set by the Committee For executive officers and

designated members of senior management portion of the award may he fixed and portion may be subject

to adjustment up or down depending on the
average rate of growth in NCIs earnings per share over the three

fiscal years ended prior to the award date The number of shares awarded on the grant date equals the dollar

value specified by the Committee after adjustment with regard to the variable portion divided by the closing

price of the stock on the grant date or if the grant date is not trading day the trading day prior to the grant

date The restricted stock vests ratably over four
years All restricted stock awards to all award recipients

including executive officers are subject to cap in value set by the Committee

Our option awards and restricted stock awards are typically subject to graded vesting over service

period which is typically four years We recognize compensation cost for these awards on straight-line basis

over the requisite service period for the entire award In addition certain of our awards provide for accelerated

vesting upon qualified retirement after change of control or upon termination without cause or for good

reason We recognize compensation cost for such awards over the period from grant date to the date the

employee first becomes eligible for retirement On October 20 2009 we completed financial restructuring

that resulted in change of control of the Company With the exception of certain executive officers who
received 2004 Long-Term Restricted Stock Awards that vest in full only on retirement the vesting of all

unvested restricted stock and stock options within our stock incentive plans accelerated upon the change of

control As result we recorded $9 million in share-based compensation expense upon the accelerated

vesting of our stock incentive plans In December 2008 the Committee determined to change its policy to

provide for semi-annual grants of restricted stock in December and June of each year

The fair value of each option award is estimated as of the date of grant using Black-Scholes-Merton

option pricing tormula Expected volatility is based on historical volatility of our stock over preceding period
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commensurate with the expected term of the option The riskfree rate for the expected term of the option is

based on the U.S Treasury yield curve in effect at the time of grant Expected dividend yield was not

considered in the option pricing formula since we historically have not paid dividends and have no current

plans to do so in the future There were no options granted during the fiscal years eiided November 2009

November 2008 and October 28 2007 We have estimated forfeiture rate of 0% for our nonofficers and

0% to 10% for our officers in our calculation of sharebased compensation expense for the fiscal years ended

November 2009 Novemher 2008 and Octoher 28 2007 These estimates are based on historical forfeiture

behavior exhibited by our employees

The Following is summary of stock option transactions luring fiscal 2009 2008 and 2007 in thousands

except weighted average exercise prices weighted average remaining 1if

Graii ted

Cancel led

Exercised
_______

Balance October 28 2007

Granted

Cancelled

Exercised
_______

Balance November 2008

Granted

Cancelled

________ __________

651
______ ________

651
______ _______

ThL tot II intl insic iluc of options cxciciscd diii lug hsc il 2009 lllslgm icant and diii lng fisc il 2008

and 2007 was $0.4 million and $3.9 million respectively Options exercisable at fiscal years ended 2009 2008

and 2007 were 0.7 million 0.6 million and 0.6 million respectively The weighted average exercise prices
for

options exercisable at fiscal years ended 2009 2008 and 2007 were $28.13 $27.22 and $25.71 respectively

The following summarizes additional information concerning outstanding options at November 2009

Options Outstanding and Exercisable

Weighted Average

Number of Options Remaining Life

2.4 years

Balance October 29 2006

Aggregate

intrinsic

Value

153

745

Weighted

Average

Number of Exercise

Shares Price

901 27.43

35.75

25.59

27.78

18 31.21

34 19.86

693 28.09

41 27.78

15.15

28.13

28.13

Weighted

Average

Remaining
Life

4.2 years

4.2 years

Exercised

Balance November 2009

Exercisable at November 2009

Range of Exercise

Irices

$15.13 19.38

20.64 30.18

31 .00 38.01

44.00 60.64

130.824

232863

245490

42093

Weighted Average
Exercise irice

4.2 years

4.8 years

6.1 years

4.2 years

$16.85

26.91

32.40

44.99

5127t $28.13



Restricted stock transactions during fiscal 2009 2008 and 2007 were as follows in thousands except

weighted average grant prices

Number of Weighted Average
Shares Grant Price

Balance October 29 2006 436272 $32.42

Granted 151456 53.82

Distributed 67482 37.26

Forfeited 5346 43.47

Balance October 28 2007 514900 $37.97

Granted 251295 26.01

Distributed 273685 34.64

Forfeited 10791 39.09

Balance November 2008 481719 $33.59

Granted 708789 8.65

Distributed 136018 36.08

Forfeited 33659 28.49

Balance November 2009 1020831 $16.11

The total recurring pre-tax share-based compensation cost that has been recognized in results of

operations was $4.8 million $9.5 million and $8.6 million for the fiscal years ended November 2009
November 2008 and October 28 2007 respectively Of these amounts $4.3 million $8.5 million and

$7.8 million were included in selling general and administrative expense for the fiscal
years

ended

November 2009 November 2008 and October 28 2007 respectively with the remaining costs in each

period in cost of goods sold On October 20 2009 upon the change of control we recorded $9.1 million of

accelerated unamortized compensation expense which was included in the change of control charges on the

Consolidated Statement of Operations As of November 2009 we do not have
any amounts capitalized for

share-based compensation cost in inventory or similar assets The total income tax benefit recognized in results

of operations for share-based compensation arrangements was $5.3 million $3.6 million and $3.3 million for

the fiscal years ended November 2009 November 2008 and October 28 2007 respectively As result

of the change of control all compensation cost related to share-based compensation arrangements have been

recognized as of November 2009

Cash received from option exercises was insignificant during fiscal 2009 and was $0.7 million and

$3.9 million during fiscal 2008 and 2007 respectively The actual tax benefit realized for the tax deductions

from option exercises totaled $0.2 million and $1.5 million for fiscal 2008 and 2007 respectively
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22 EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic earnings loss per common share is coniputcd by dividing net income loss by ihe weighted

average number of common shares outstanding Diluted earnings loss per common share considers the effect

ot common stock equivalents The reconciliation of the numerator and denominator used br the computation

of basic and diluted earnings loss per share is as follows in thousands except per share data

Fiscal Year Ended

Noveniber November October 28
2009 2008 2007

Numerator for Basic and Diluted Earnings Loss Per

Share

Net income loss applicable to common shares $758677 $78881 $63729

Ienominator for Diluted Earnings Loss Per Share

Weighted average shares outstanding for basic earnings

loss pel share 22013 19332 19.582

Common stock equivalents

Employee stock options
104

Unvested restricted stock avvards 78

Convertible Notes 922

Adjusted weighted average shares and assumed conversions

for diluted earnings loss per share 22013 19486 20793

Earnings loss per share

Basic 34.06 4.08 3.25

Diluted 34.06 4.05 3.06

The indenture under which the Convertible Notes were issued cntins inet share settlement provisioli

as described in guidance that has been coditied under ASC Topic 26010 Earnings Per Share Orerali

whereby conversions are settled br combination of cash and shares and shares are only issued to the

extent the conversion value exceeds the principal amount The incremental shares that we would have been

required to issue had the Convertible Notes been converted at the average trading price during the period

have been included in the diluted earnings per share calculation because our average stock trading price

had exceeded the $40 14 conversion threshold However during tiscal 2009 the Convertible Notes could

only he converted by the holders if our stock price traded above the initial conversion price
of our Con

vertible Notes see Note 10 for at least 20 trading days in each nt the 30 consecutive trading day period

of the preceding calendar quarter or upon other specitied events At November 2009 the Convertible

Notes were not convertible

The weighted average number of common shares outstanding increased by 2.5 million due to the

completion of the Exchange Offer in October 2009 In connection with the exchange oiler we issued

70.2 million common shares In addition to the Exchange Offer our 2009 retinancing transaction included the

issuance of $250 million shares of Convertible Preferred Stock which required the use of the twoclass

method in determining diluted earnings per share hut did not increase the weighted average number of

common shares outstanding The Convertible Preb.rred Stock will be convertible into 196.1 million common

shares and will only he included in the weighted average commomi shares outstanding under the itconverted

method which is required when it results in lower earnings per share than determined under the twoclass

niethod

Dividends on the Convertible Preferred Stock are payable on cumulative daily basis as if and when

declared by our board of director.at rate per annum if 2Y of the liquidation preference of $1000 per

Preferred Share sublect to certai ii adjustments ii paid in ki mid or at rate per annum ot 8% of the liquidation

preference of $1000 per Preterred Share if paid in cash We have the right to choose whether dividends are

100



paid in cash or in-kind subject to the conditions of the Amended Credit Agreement and ABL Facility

including being contractually limited in our ability to pay
cash dividends until the first quarter of fiscal 2011

under the Amended Credit Agreement and until October 20 2010 under the ABL Facility except for certain

specified purposes

For the fiscal
year ended November 2009 all options and unvested restricted shares were anti-dilutive

and therefore not included in the diluted loss per share calculation The number of weighted average options

that were not included in the diluted earnings per share calculation because the effect would have been anti-

dilutive was approximately 309000 and 2500 shares for the fiscal years ended November 2008 and

October 28 2007 respectively The anti-dilutive weighted average unvested restricted shares that were not

included in the diluted earnings per share calculation was approximately 142000 shares for the fiscal year

ended November 2008 For the fiscal year ended October 28 2007 there were no anti-dilutive weighted

average unvested restricted shares excluded from the diluted earnings per share calculation

23 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS

Defined Contribution Plan We have 401k profit sharing plan the Savings Plan that covers all

eligible employees The Savings Plan requires us to match employee contributions up to 6% of participants

salary On February 27 2009 the Savings Plan was amended effective January 2009 to make the matching

contributions fully discretionary and future contributions were temporarily suspended Additional amounts may
he contributed depending upon our annual return on assets Contributions

expense for the fiscal years ended

2009 2008 and 2007 was $0.8 million $8.6 million and $9.0 million respectively for contributions to the

Savings Plan In fiscal 2008 and 2007 Company matching contributions were paid in cash Our match ranges

from 67% to 100% of the participants contribution depending on the return on adjusted operating assets Our

match was 83.3% in fiscal years 2008 and 2007

As result of the economic downturn and restructuring we have determined our Savings Plan has

experienced partial plan termination which is defined by the IRS as 20% or more of the participating

employees being involuntarily terminated As result the affected employee participants of the Savings Plan

become fully vested upon termination As of November 2009 the impact of this partial plan termination

was immaterial excluding the impact of the employer contributions

Deferred Compensation Plan On October 23 2006 the board of directors approved an Amended and

Restated Deferred Compensation Plan for NCI as amended and restated the Deferred Compensation Plan
effective for compensation beginning in calendar 2007 The Deferred Compensation Plan allows our officers

and key employees to defer
up to 80% of their annual salary and up to 90% of their bonus until specified

date in the future including at or after retirement Additionally the Deferred Compensation Plan allows our

directors to defer
up to 100% of their annual fees and meeting attendance fees until specified date in the

future including at or after retirement The Deferred Compensation Plan also permits us to make contributions

on behalf of our key employees who are impacted by the federal tax compensation limits under the NCI

401k plan and to receive restoration matching amount which under the current NC1 401k terms will he

at 4% and
up to 6% of compensation in excess of those limits based on our Companys performance On

February 27 2009 restoration matching contributions were indefinitely suspended effective January 2009
In addition the Deferred Compensation Plan provides for us to make discretionary contributions to employees

who have elected to defer compensation under the plan Deferred Compensation Plan participants will vest in

our discretionary contributions ratably over three years from the date of each of our discretionary contribu

tions Any unvested matching contributions in participants Deferred Compensation Plan account became

vested upon consummation of the Equity Investment on October 20 2009 In addition the Deferred

Compensation Plan also permitted participants to have their account balances paid out upon change of

control which reduced the rabbi trust assets and corresponding liability by $2.6 million As of November

2009 and November 2008 the liability balance of the Deferred Compensation Plan is $3.5 million and

$2.6 million respectively and is included in accrued compensation and benefits in the Consolidated Balance

Sheet We have accrued restoration matching contributions in the amount of $0.3 million for 2008 We have

not made any discretionary contributions to the Deferred Compensation Plan
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With the Deferred Compensation Plan the Board also approved the establishment of rabbi trust to fund

the Deferred Compensation Plan and the formation of an administrative committee to manage the Deferred

Compensation Plan and its assets The investments in the rabbi trust are $3.4 million and $2.6 million at

November 2009 and November 2008 respectively The rabbi trust investments include debt and equity

securities along with cash equivalents and are accounted for as trading securities

DfinecI Benefit P1cm As result of the closing of the RCC acquisition on April 2006 we assumed

defined benefit plan the RCC Benefit Plan Benefits Under the RCC Benefit Plan are primarily based on

years of service and the employees compensation The RCC Benefit Plan is frozen and therefore employees

do not accrue additional service benefits Plan assets of the RCC Benefit Plan are invested in broadly

diversi lied portfolios of government obligations hedge funds mutual funds stocks bonds and fixed income

securities In accordance with guidance that has been codified under ASC 805 we quantified the projected

benefit obligation and fair value of the plan assets of the RCC Benefit Plan and recorded the difference

between these two amounts as an assuiued liability

As result of the economic downturn and restructuring we have determined our RCC Benefit Plan has

experienced partial plan termination which is defined by the IRS as 20% or more of the participating

employees being involuntarily terminated As result the affected employee participants become fully vested

unon termination However the RCC Benefit Plan is Irozeti therefore accrued benefits are already fully

vested As of November 2009 the impact of this partial plan termination was immaterial

Adoption qt ASC 71520 On October 28 2007 we adopted the recognition and disclosure provisions of

guidance that has been codified under ASC 71520 This Statement requires us to recognize the funded status

of the RCC Benefit Plan in our statenient of financial position and recognize the changes in the RCC Benefit

Plans funded status in comprehensive income in the year in which the changes occur The effects of the

adoption of the recognition and disclosure provisions of ASC 71520 on our Consolidated Balance Sheet as of

October 28 2007 are presented in the following table The adoption of ASC 71520 had no effect on our

Consolidated Statements of Operations for the liscal year ended October 28 2007 or for any priolr period

presented and it will not affect our Consolidated Statements of Operations in future periods

The impact of adopting ASC 520 on our Consolidated Balance Sheet at October 28 2007 is as lollows

in thousands

Asof October 28 2007

Fffect of Adopting As Reported nt

ASC 715.20 October 28 2007

Non-current pension asset 2292 2292

Noncurrent accrued pension liability 1016

Longterm IC ferred tax liability 1289 1289

Accumulated other comprehensive income net of tax 2019 2019

The following table reconciles the change in the benefit obligation for the RCC Benefit Plan from the

beginning of the fiscal year to the end of the fiscal year in thousands

November November

2009 2008

Accumulated benefit obligation $46091 $38127

Projected benefit obligation beginning of fiscal year $38127 $48805

Interest cost 3077 28 10

Benefit payments 4253 4580
Actuarial losses gains 9236 8908
Plan amendments 96

__________

Projected benefit obligation end of fiscal year $46091 $38 127
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Actuarial assumptions used to determine benefit obligations were as follows

November November

2009 2008

Assumed discount rate 5.75% 8.50%

The following table reconciles the change in plan assets of the RCC Benefit Plan from the beginning of

the fiscal year to the end of the fiscal year in thousands

November November

2009 2008

Fair value of assets beginning of fiscal year $38859 $5 1097

Actual return on plan assets 4868 7658
Benefit payments 4253 4580

Fair value of assets end of fiscal year $39474 $38859

The ftllowing table sets forth the funded status of the RCC Benefit Plan and the amounts recognized in

the Consolidated Balance Sheet in thousands

November November

2009 2008

Fair value of assets $39474 $38859

Benefit obligation 46091 38127

Funded status 6617 732

Unrecognized actuarial loss gain 6428 634
Unrecognized prior service cost 95

________

Prepaid benefit cost benefit 284 98

The amounts in accumulated other comprehensive income that have not yet been recognized as

components of net periodic benefit income in thousands

November November

2009 2008

Unrecognized actuarial loss gain 6428 634
Unrecognized prior service cost 95
Total $6333 $634

The following table sets forth the components of the net periodic benefit income in thousands

November November

2009 2008

Interest cost 3076 2810

Expected return on assets 2694 3924
Net periodic benefit cost income 382 $ll 14

At November 2009 there are no amounts included in accumulated other comprehensive income that

are expected to be recognized during the next fiscal year

Actuarial assumptions used to determine net periodic benefit income were as follows

Fiscal 2009 Fiscal 2008

Assumed discount rate 5.75% 8.5%

Expected rate of return on plan assets 7.1% 8.0%

The basis used to determine the overall expected long-term asset return assumption was ten year

forecast of expected return based on the target asset allocation for the plan The expected return for this

portfolio over the forecast period is 7.1 net of investment related expenses
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The weightedaverage asset allocations by asset category are as lollows

Novem her Novemher

Investment Type 2009 2008

Equity securities 27%
Debt securities 38 56

Hedge funds 13 12

Cash and cash equivalents

Real estate

Other

Total

The investment policy is to maximize the expected return for an acceptable level of risk Our expected

longterm rate ol return on plan assets is based on target allocation of assets which is based on our goal ol

earning the highest rate ol return while maintaining risk at acceptable levels The RCC Benefit Plan strives to

have assets sufficiently diversified so that adverse or unexpected results from one security class will not have

an unduly detrimental impact on the entire portlolio We regularly review our actual asset allocation and the

RCC Benelit Plans investments are periodically rebalanced to our target allocation when considered

appropriate We have set the target asset allocation br the plan as bollows cash 43% US bonds 3%
holo J/ cc nvtt iiiIc jO/ IIrIt

investment trusts 7% foreign equity 4% emerging markets and 6% commodity futures

We do not expect to contribute any amount to the RCC Benefit Plan in fiscal 2010

We expect the following heneOt payments to he made in thousands

lension

Fiscal Years Ended Beiieti Is

2010 4087

2011 3750

2012 3842

2013 3676

2014 3732

2015-2019 17061

24 CONTINGENCIES

From time to time we are involved in various legal proceedings and contingencies including environmental

matters considered to he in the ordinary course of business While we are not able to predict whether we will incur

any liability
in excess of insurance coverages or to accurately estimate the damages or the range of damages if any

we might incur in connection with these legal proceedings we believe these legal proceedings and claims will not

have material adverse effect on our business consolidated linancial position or results of operations

25 BUSINESS SEGMENTS

We have aggregated our operations into three reportable segments based upon similarities in product lines

manufucturing processes marketing and management of our businesses metal coil coating metal components and

engineered building systems All business segments operate primarily in the nonresidential construction market Sales

and earnings arc influenced by general economic conditions the level of iionresidential construction activity metal

roof repair and retrofit demand and the availability and terms of financing available for construction Products of our

business segments use siniilar basic raw materials The metal coil coating segment consists of cleaning treating

tainting and slitting continuous steel coils before the steel is fibricated for use by construction and industrial users

The metal components segnlent products include metal roof and wall panels doors metal plrtitions metal trim and

other related accessories The engineered building systems segment includes the manufacturing of main frames Long

Bay Systems and valueadded engineering and drafting which are typically not part of metal components or metal

coil coating products or services The reporting segments follow the same accounting policies used for our

Consolidated Financial Statements
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We evaluate segments performance based primarily upon operating income before
corporate expenses

Intersegment sales are recorded based on standard material costs plus standard markup to cover labor and

overhead and consist of hot-rolled light gauge painted and slit material and other services provided by the

metal coil coating segment to both the metal components and engineered building systems segments

ii building components provided by the metal components segment to the engineered building systems

segment and iii structural framing provided by the engineered building systems segment to the metal

components segment

Corporate assets consist primarily of cash hut also include deferred financing costs deferred taxes and

property plant and equipment associated with our headquarters in Houston Texas These items and income

and expenses related to these items are not allocated to the business segments

Summary financial data by segment is as follows in thousands

2009 2008 2007

Total sales

Metal coil coating 169897 305657 272543

Metal components 458734 715255 663331

Engineered building systems 541609 11 10534 1021544

Intersegment sales 202317 367287 332350

Total net sales 967923 $1764159 $1625068

External sales

Metal coil coating 53189 96957 83583

Metal components 389132 600010 561622

Engineered building systems 525602 1067192 979863

Total net sales 967923 $1764159 $1625068

Operating income loss
Metal coil coating 99631 29381 25136
Metal components 129975 82094 49609

Engineered building systems 389309 107851 113265

Corporate 64583 64616 56276

Total operating income loss $683498 154710 131734

Unallocated other expense 117990 24330 26909

Income loss before income taxes $801488 130380 104825
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2009 2008 2007

Depreciation and amortization

Metal coil coating 5456 6574 6510

Metal componcnts 9282 9384 8856

Engineered building systems 14823 15940 16794

Corporate 3215 3690 3375

Total depreciation and amoiti ation CXCflSC 32776 35588 35535

Capital expenditures

Metal coil coating 1865 3073 4150

Metal components 14726 9109 17.693

Engineered building systems 1347 10912 15839

Corporate 3719 1709 4359

Total capital expenditures 21657 2483 42041

Property plant and equipment net

Metal coil coating 36116 39738

Metal components 89256 84026

Engineered building syslel1s 77551 108876

Corporate 28917 18523

Total property plant and equipment net $231840 251163

Total assets as of fiscal year end 2009 and 2008

Metal coil coating 57208 196615

Metal components 159690 371464

Engineered building systems 241260 716671

Corporate 155690 95951

$613848 $1380701
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26 QUARTERLY RESULTS Unaudited

Shown below are selected unaudited quarterly data in thousands except per share data

First Second Third Fourth

Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter

FISCAL YEAR 2009

Sales 260364 224719 $238439 244401

Gross profit 16527 31212 61080 60034

Net income loss $528610 $120207 3971 $1021182
Net income loss applicable to common

shares $528610 $120207 3971 $113831

Earnings loss per share1

Basic 27.20 6.17 0.20 3.54

Diluted 27.20 6.17 0.20 3.54

FISCAL YEAR 2008

Sales 361489 416143 $477596 508931

Gross profit 82431 $103440 $128525 $124139

Net income 7510 14866 31891 24614

Earnings per sharel

Basic 0.39 0.77 1.65 127

Diluted 0.39 0.76 1.63 1.26

The sum of the quarterly income per share amounts may not equal the annual amount reported as per

share amounts are computed independently for each quarter and for the full year based on the respective

weighted average common shares outstanding

Included in net income loss is pre-tax debt extinguishment and refinancing costs of $99.2 million

incurred as result of the completion of the Recapitalization Plan

The quarterly income loss amounts were impacted by the following special income expense items

First Second Third Fourth

Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter

FISCAL YEAR 2009

Goodwill and other intangible asset impairment $517628 $104936

Lower of cost or market charge 29378 10608

Restructuring charges 2479 3796 1213 1564
Change in control charges 11168
Asset impairment 623 5295 26 347
Pre-acquisition contingency adjustments 1115

Total special charges in operating income

loss $550108 $124635 $1239 $14194

FISCAL YEAR 2008

Lower of cost or market charge 2739
Executive retirement costs 663 2189

Restructuring charges 226 640 43 150
Asset impairment 157

Total special charges in operating income 889 2829 43 3046
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Item Changes in and Disagreenients wit/i Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure

Not applicable

Item 9A Controls and Procedures

Our management with the participation of our chief executive of6cer and chief financial olhccr

evaluated the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures as of November 2009 The term

disclosure controls and procedures as defined in Rules 3a 15e and Sd 5e under the Exchange Act

means controls and other procedures of company that are designed to ensure that information required to he

disclosed by company in the reports that it files or submits under the Exchange Act is recorded processed

summarized and reported within the time periods specified in the SECs rules and forms Disclosure controls

and procedures include without Ii mitation controls and procedures designed to ensure that information

required to he disclosed by company in the reports that it files or submits under the Exchange Act is

accumulated and communicated to the companys management including its principal executive and principal

financial officers as appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding the required disclosure Management

recognizes that any controls and procedures no matter how well designed and operated can provide only

reasonable assurance of achieving their objectives and management necessarily applies its judgment in

evaluating the costbenelit relationship of possible controls and procedures Based on the evaluation of our

disclosure controls and procedures as of November 2009 our chief executive officer and chief financial

officer concluded that as of such late our disclosure controls and procedures were effective

Managements report on internal control over financial reporting is included in the financial statement

pages at page 47

No change in our internal control over financial reporting as defined in Rules 3a 151 and Sd 151

under the Exchange Act occurred during the fiscal quarter ended November 2009 that has materially

affected or is reasonably likely to materially affect our internal control over financial reporting

Item 9B Other Information

None

PART IJI

Item 10 Directors Executive Qificers and Corporate Govertiance

We have adopted Code of Rosiness Conduct and Ethics copy oF which is available on our websile at

onniicilp.com under the heading Corporate Governance NCI Guidelines Any amendments to or waivers

from the Code of Business Conduct and Ethics that apply to our executive othcers and directors will be posted

on the Corporate Governance NC Guidelines section of our Internet web site located at www.ncilp.com

However the in formation on our websife is not incorporated by reterence into this Form 0K

The information under the captions Election of Directors Management Section 16a Beneficial

Ownership Reporting Compliance Board of Directors and Corporate Governance in our definitive proxy

statement for our annual meeting of shareholders to he held on February 19 2010 is incorporated by reference

herein

Item 11 Executive Compensation

The information under the captions Compensation Discussion and Analysis Report of the Conipensa

tion Committee and Executive Compensation in our dehinitive proxy statement br our annual meeting of

shareholders to he held on February 19 2010 is incorporated by reforence herein
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Item 12 Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder

Matters

The information under the captions Outstanding Capital Stock and Securities Reserved for Issuance

Under Equity Compensation Plans in our definitive proxy statement for our annual meeting of shareholders to

he held on February 19 2010 is incorporated by reference herein

Item 13 Certain Relationships and Related Transactions and Director Independence

The information under the captions Board of Directors and Transactions with Directors Officers and

Affiliates in our definitive proxy statement for our annual meeting of shareholders to be held on February 19

2010 is incorporated by reference herein

Item 14 Principal Accounting Fees and Services

The information under the caption Audit Committee and Auditors Our Independent Registered Public

Accounting Firm and Audit Fees in our definitive proxy statement for our annual meeting of shareholders to

he held on February 19 2010 is incorporated by reference herein

Item 15 Exhibits Financial Statement Schedules

The following documents are filed as part of this report

Consolidated Financial Statements see Item

Consolidated Financial Statement Schedules

All schedules have been omitted because they are inapplicable not required or the information is

included elsewhere in the consolidated financial statements or notes thereto

Exhibits

Those exhibits required to he filed by Item 601 of Regulation S-K are listed in the Index to Exhibits

immediately preceding the exhibits filed herewith and such listing is incorporated herein by reference
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15d of the Securities Exchange Act of 934 the registrant

has duly caused this report to he signed on its behalf by the undersigned tilCreLlnto duly authorized on the

22nd day of December 2009

NCI BUILDING SYSTEMS INC

By

POWER OF ATTORNEY

Is NORMAN CHAMRORS

Norman Chambers President and

Chief Executive Officer

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS that each person whose signature appears below constitutes

and appoints Norman Chambers Mark Johnson and Todd Moore and each of them severally his or

11cr true and lawful attorney or attorneysinlact and agents with full power to act with or without the others

and with full power of substitution and resubstilution to execute in his name place and stead in
any

and all

capacities this Annual Report on Form 10K and any or all amendments including preeffective and post

effective aniendments to this Annual Report and to file the same with all exhibits thereto and other

documenis in connection therewith with the Securities and Exchange Commission granting unto said

attorneysintact and agents and each of them full power and authority to do and perform in the name and on

behalf of the undersigned jim any and all capacities each amid every act and thitig necessary or desirable to he

clone in and about the premises to all intents and purpos and as fully as they might or could do in person

hereby ratifying approving and conlirming all that said attorneysinfact and agents or their substitutes may

lawfully do or cause to he clone by virtue hereof

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 934 this report has been signed below

by the following persomis on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities indicated as of tue 22nd day of

December 2009

Name title

Is NoRrvIAN Ct-IAMtmtRs

Norman Chambers

Is MARK Jom-INsON
--__________

Mark Johnson

Kathleen Affeldt

James Berges

Gary Forbes

John Holland

Chairnian of the Board President and Chief Executive Officer

Principal Executive Officer

Executive Vice President Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer

Principal Financial and Accounting Officer

Di rector

Director

Director

Director

10



Name Thie

Director

Lawrence Kremer

Director

George Martinez

Director

Nathan Sleeper

Director

Jonathan Zrebiec

By Is NORMAN CHAMBERS

Norman Chambers Attorney-in-Fact
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Index to Exhibits

Stockhoklers Agreement dater as of October 20 2009 by and between the Company Clayton

Duhilier Rice Fund VIII L.P and CDR Friends Family Fund VIJI L.P filed as Exhibit

to NCI Current Report on Form 8K dated October 26 2009 and incorporated by reference herein

2.2 Registration Rights Agreetnent dated as ol October 20 2009 by and between the Company

Clayton Dubilier Rice Fund VIII L.I and CDR Friends Family Fund VI II L.P filed as

Exhibit 2.2 to NCIs Current Report on Form 8K dated October 26 2009 and incorporated by

reference herein

2.3 Indemnification Agreement dated as of October 20 2009 by and between the Company NCI

Group Inc RobertsonCeco II Corporation Clayton Dubilier Rice Fund VIII L.P CDR
Friends Family Fund VIII L.E and Clayton Dubilier Rice Inc filed as Exhibit 2.3 to NCIs

Current Report on Form 8K dated October 26 2009 and incorporated by reference herein

2.5 Investment Agreement dater as of August 14 2009 by and between NCI Building Systems Inc

and Clayton Duhilier Rice Fund VIII LP filed as Exhibit 2.1 to NCIs Current Report on Form

8K dated August 19 2009 and incorporated by reference herein

2.6 Amendment dater as of August 28 2009 to the Investment Agreement dated as of August 14

2009 by and between NCI Building Systems Inc and Clayton Duhilier Rice Fund VIII L.P

filed as Exhibit 2.1 to NCIs Current Report on Form 8K dated August 28 2009 and incorporated

by reference herein

2.7 Amendment No dated as of August 2009 to the Investment Agreement as amended dated

as of August 14 2009 by and between NCI Building Systems Inc and Clayton Duhilier Rice

Fund VIII L.P including exhibits thereto filed as Exhibit 2.1 to NCFs Current Report on Form

filed September 2009 and incorporated by reference herein

2.8 Amendment No dated as of October 2009 to the Investment Agreement as amended dated

as of August 14 2009 by and between NCI Building Systems Inc artd Clayton Duhilier Rice

Fund VIII LP including exhibits thereto filed as Exhibit 2.1 to NOs Current Report on Form

Filed October 2009 and incorporated by reference herein

2.9 Amendment No dated as of October 16 2009 to the Investment Agreement as amended dated

as of August 14 2009 by and between NCI Building Systems Inc and Clayton Dubilier Rice

Fund VIII L.P including exhibits thereto filed as Exhibit to NCIs Current Report on Form

filed October 19 2009 and incorporated by reference herein

3.1 Restated Certificate of Incorporation as amended through September 30 1998 tiled as Exhibit

to NCIs Annual Report on Form 10K or the fiscal year ended November 2002 and incorporated

by reference herein

3.2 -Certificate--o11 A-me-nd-me-ni--to- -Restated- -Certificate- olIncorporation effeciivc as oLMarch 12 2007

filed as Exhibit 3.2 to NCIs Quarter Report on Form 0Q br the quarter ended April 29 2007

and incorporated by reference herein

3.3 Second Amended and Restated By-Laws effective as of October 20 2009 filed as Exhibit 3.4 to

NCIs Current Report on Form 8K dated October 26 2009 and incorporated by reference herein

3.4 Certificate of Designations preberences limitations and relative rights of Series Cumulative

Convertible Participating Preferred Stock of the Company filed as Exhibit to NCIs Current

Report on Form 8K dated October 26 2009 and incorporated by reference herein

3.5 Certificate of Elimination of the Series .Iunior Participating Preferred Stock of the Company filed

as Exhibit 3.2 to NCIs Current Report on Form 8K dated October 26 2009 and incorporated by

reference herein

3.6 Certificate of Increase of Number of Shares of Series Cumulative Convertible Participating

Preferred Stock ot the Conipany filed as Exhibit 3.3 to NCIs Current Report on Form 8K dated

October 26 209 and incorporated by reference herein

Form of certificate representing shares of NCI common stock filed as Exhibit to NCIs

registration statement on Form 8A filed with the SEC on July 20 1998 and incorporated by

reference herein

4.2 Credit Agreement dated .1 une 18 2004 by and among NCI certain of its subsidiaries as

guarantors Wachovia Bank National Association as administrative agent Bank of America NA.
as syndication agent and the several lenders named therein filed as Exhibit 4.1 to NCIs Form 10

QIA filed with the SEC on September 16 2004 amending its quarterly report on I-orm 0Q for

the quarter ended July 2004 and incorporated by reference herein
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4.3 First Amendment to Credit Agreement dated as of November 2004 between NCI Building

Systems mc as borrower certain of its subsidiaries as guarantors Wachovia National Bank
National Association as administrative agent and lender and the several lenders named therein

filed as Exhibit 10.1 to NCIs Current Report on Form 8-K dated November 16 2004 and

incorporated by reference herein

4.4 Second Amendment to Credit Agreement dated as of October 14 2005 between NCI Building

Systems mc as borrower certain of its subsidiaries as guarantors Wachovia National Bank
National Association as administrative agent and lender and the several lenders named therein

filed as Exhibit 10.1 to NCIs Current Report on Form 8-K dated October 14 2005 and

incorporated by reference herein

4.5 Third Amendment dated April 2006 to Credit Agreement dated June 18 2004 by and among
NCI Building Systems Inc as borrower certain of its subsidiaries as guarantors Wachovia Bank
National Association as administrative agent and lender and the several lenders parties thereto

filed as Exhibit 10.2 to NCIs Current Report on Form 8-K dated April 2006 and incorporated

by reference herein

4.6 Indenture dated November 16 2004 by and among NCI and The Bank of New York filed as

Exhibit 4.1 to NCIs Current Report on Form 8-K dated November 16 2004 and incorporated by

reference herein

4.7 Amended Credit Agreement dated as of October 20 2009 among the Company as borrower

Wachovia Bank National Association as administrative agent and collateral agent and the several

lenders party thereto filed as Exhibit 10.1 to NCIs Current Report on Form 8-K dated October 26
2009 and incorporated by reference herein

4.8 Loan and Security Agreement dated as of October 20 2009 by and among NCI Group Inc and

Rohertson-Ceco II Corporation as borrowers the Company and Steelhuilding.Com Inc as

guarantors Wells Fargo Foothill LLC as administrative and co-collateral agent Bank of America

N.A and General Electric Capital Corporation as co-collateral agents and the lenders and issuing

bank party thereto filed as Exhibit 10.2 to NCIs Current Report on Form 8-K dated October 26
2009 and incorporated by reference herein

4.9 Intercreditor Agreement dated as of October 20 2009 by and among the Company as borrower or

guarantor certain domestic subsidiaries of the Company as borrowers or guarantors Wachovia

Bank National Association as term loan agent and term loan administrative agent Wells Fargo

Foothill LLC as working capital agent and working capital administrative agent and Wells Fargo

Bank National Association as control agent filed as Exhibit 10.3 to NCIs Current Report on Form

8-K dated October 26 2009 and incorporated by reference herein

4.10 Guarantee and Collateral Agreement dated as of October 20 2009 by the Company and certain of

its subsidiaries in favor of Wachovia Bank National Association as administrative agent and

collateral agent filed as Exhibit 10.4 to NCIs Current Report on Form 8-K dated October 26 2009

and incorporated by reference herein

4.11 Guaranty Agreement dated as of October 20 2009 by NCI Group Inc Robertson-Ceco II

Corporation the Company and Steelbuilding.corn Inc in favor of Wells Fargo Foothill LLC as

administrative
agent and collateral agent filed as Exhibit 10.5 to NCIs Current Report on Form 8-

dated October 26 2009 and incorporated by reference herein

4.12 Pledge and Security Agreement dated as of October 20 2009 by and among the Company NC
Group Inc and Robertson-Ceco Corporation to and in favor of Wells Fargo Foothill LLC in its

capacity as administrative agent and collateral agent filed as Exhibit 10.6 to NCIs Current Report

on Form 8-K dated October 26 2009 and incorporated by reference herein

10.1 Employment Agreement dated April 12 2004 among the Company NCI Group L.P and Norman

Chambers filed as Exhibit 10.1 to NCIs Quarterly Report on Form 0-Q for the quarter ended

May 2004 and incorporated by reference herein

tlo.2 Amendment Agreement dated August 14 2009 among the Company NCI Group L.P and Norman

Chambers

10.3 Amended and Restated Bonus Program as amended and restated as of September 2008 filed as

Exhibit 10.2 to NCIs Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended November 2008 and

incorporated by reference herein
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10.4 Stock Option Plan as amended and restated on 1ecember 14 2000 filed as Exhibit 0.4 to NCIs

Annual Report on Form tOK for the tiscal year ciidcd October 31 2000 and incorporated by

reference herein

10.5 Form of Nonquali bed Stock Option Agreement tiled as Exhibit 10.5 to NCIs Annual Report on

Form 10K for the fiscal year ended October 2000 and incorporated by reference herein

110.6 2003 LongTerm Stock Incentive Plan as amended and restated March 12 2009 filed as Annex

to NCIs Proxy Statement for the Annual Meeting hekl March 12 2009 and incorporated by

re6rencc herein

10.7 Form of Nonqualified Stock Option Agreement filed as Exhibit 4.2 to NCIs registration statement

no 333I II 39 and incorporated by reference herein

10.8 Form of Incentive Stock Option Agreement filed as Exhibit 4.3 to NCIs registration statement no

333111139 and incorporated by reference herein

10.9 Form of Restricted Stock Award Agreement for Senior Executive Officers Electronic filed as

Exhibit 10.2 to NCIs Current Report on Form 8K dated December 2006 and incorporated by

reference herein

10.10 Form ol Restricted Stock Award Agreement for Key Employees filed as Exhibit 10.3 to NCIs

Current Report on Form 8K dated December 2006 and incorporated by reference herein

10 II Form Rest ricted Stock Unit Agreement filed as Exhibit 10.1 to NCIs Current Report on Form

8K dated December 2006 and incorporated by reference herein

10 12 Form ol Restricted Stock Award Agreement for NonEmployee Directors filed as Exhibit 10.4 to

NCFs Current Report on Form 8K dated October 23 2006 and incorporated by reference herein

110 13 Restricted Stock Agreement dated April 26 2004 between NCI and Norman Chambers filed as

exhibit 10.2 to NCIs Quarterly Report on Form 0Q for the quarter ended May 2004 and

incorporated by reference here in

10.14 First Amendment dated October 24 2005 to Restricted Stock Agreement dated April 26 2004
between NCI and Norman Chambers filed as Exhibit 10.21 to NCIs Annual Report on Form

10K for the fiscal year ended October 29 2005 and incorporated by reference herein

10.15 Restricted Stock Agreement effective August 26 2004 between NCE and Mark Dobbins

1.10 16 Restricted Stock Agreement effective August 26 2004 between NCt and Charles Dickinson

10.17 Amended and Restated NCI Building Systems Inc Deferred Compensation Plan as amended and

restated effective January 2007 filed as Exhibit 10.23 to NCI Annual Report on Form 10K for

the fiscal year ended October 29 2006 and incorporated by reference herein

10.18 First Amendment to the NCI Building Systems Inc Deferred Compensation Plan as amended and

restated effective October 20 2009

ti ft 19 hetWen NCI iind filed Exhihif lft25

NCIs Annual Report on Form 0K for the fiscal year ended October 28 2007 and incorporated by

reference herein

10.20 Form of Amendment Agreement dated August 14 2009 among the Company NC1 Group L.P and

executive officers

10.21 Form of Indemnification Agreement for Oflicers and Directors filed as Exhibit 10 to NCI

Current Report on Form 8K dated October 22 2008 and incorporated by reference Ilerein

10.22 Form of Director Indemni tication Agreement tiled as Exhibit 10.7 to NCIs Current Report on

Form 8K dated October 26 2009 and incorporated by reference herein

21 List of Subsidiaries

23 Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

24 Powers of Attorney

31 Rule 3a 14a/I SdI 4a Certilications Section 302 of the SarbanesOxley Act of 2002

1.2 Rule 3a 4a/I SdI 4a Certifications Section 302 of the SarbanesOxley Act of 2002

32 Certifications pursuant to Section 1350 of Chapter 63 of Title IS of the United States Code Section

906 of the SarhanesOxley Act of 2002

32.2 Certifications pursuant to Section 1350 of Chapter 63 of Title of the United States Code Section

906 of the SarhanesOxley Act of 2002

Filed herewith

Management contracts or compensatory plans or arrangements
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James Berges
14

Chairman HO Supply
Inc

Chairman Sally Beauty Holdings Inc

Director PPG Industries Inc

Director Diversey
Inc

Former President Emerson Electric Co

Nathan Sleeper
12.4

Director Hertz Global Holdings Inc

Director The Hertz Corporation

Director Culligan
Ltd

Director U.S Foodservice Inc

Lawrence Kremer

Director Fifth Third Bank Southern Region

George Koch Sons LLC

Director St Marys Hospital System

Vice Chairman Board of Trustees

University of Evansville

Former Corporate
Vice President of Global

Materials Emerson Electric Co

Gary Forbes 1345

Senior Vice President

EQUUS Total Return Inc

Director Consolidated Graphics
Inc

George Martinez

Chief Executive Dfficer Allegiance Bank Texas

Senior Partner Chrysalis Partners LLC

Chairman Center for Houstons Future

Former Chairman Sterling Bancshares Inc

Kathleen Affeldt

Director GTE Inc

Director Sally Beauly Holdings Inc

Former Vice President Human Resources

Lexmark International

Former Director SIR VA Inc

Jonathan Zrebiec

Principal CDR LLC

John Holland 235

President Greentree Advisors LLC

Director Coopet Tire ft Rubber Co

Director Saia Inc

Former Chairman and CEO

Butler Manufacturing Company

Executive Committee

Compensation Committee

Audit Committee

Nominating and Corporate Governance

Committee

Affiliate Transaction Committee

Corporate Headquarters
NCI Building Systems Inc

10943 North Sam Houston Parkway West

Houston Texas 77064

281-897-7788

Common Stock Transfer

Agent Registrar

Computershare Investor Services

250 Royall Street

Canton Massachusetts 02021

Auditors

Ernst Young LLP

Form 10-K

The Companys Annual Report on Form 10-K for

the year ended November 2009 as filed with the

Securities and Exchange Commission is available

without charge upon request to Todd Moore at the

address of the Corporate Headquarters The Companys

common stock is traded on the New York Stock

Exchange NYSE under the trading symbol NCS

Certifications

The Company has filed the required certifications

under Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

regarding the quality of our public disclosures as

Exhibits 31.1 and 31.2 to our annual report on Form

10-K for the fiscal year ended November 2009

After the fiscal Annual Meeting of Stockholders

the Company intends to file with the New York

Stock Exchange the CEO certification regarding its

compliance with the NYSEs corporate governance

listing standards as required by NYSE Rule 303A.1

Last year the Company filed this CEO certification with

the NYSE on April 13 2009

Annual Meeting
The Annual Meeting of Shareholders of NCI Building

Systems Inc will be held at 1000 am Central Time

on Friday February 19 2010 at the NCI Conference

Training Center 7313 Fairview Houston Texas 77041

Shareholders of record as of January 2010 will be

entitled to notice of and to vote at the Annual Meeting

Directors Officers

Norman Chambers

Chairman of the Board

President Chief Executive Officer

Norman Chambers

Chairman of the Board

President Ft Chief Executive Officer

Mark Dobbins

Executive Vice President Ft

Chief Operating Officer

Mark Johnson

Executive Vice President

Chief Financial Officer Ft Treasurer

John Kuzdal

President of Metal Coil Coating Division

Charles Dickinson

President of Metal Components Division

Bradley Robeson

President of NCI Buildings Ft

Robertson-Ceco Divisions

Eric Brown

Executive Vice President Ft

Chief Information Officer

Todd Moore

Executive Vice President General Counsel Ft

Secretary

Mark Golladay

Vice President of Corporate Development

Richard Allen

Vice President of Finance Ft

Corporate
Controller




